Public Document Pack o s
Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr  ©° )

Bridgend County Borough Council

Swyddfeydd Dinesig, Stryd yr Angel, Pen-y-bont, CF31 4WB / Civic Offices, Angel Street, Bridgend, CF31 4WB Co RIDGEND

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. Cyfarwyddiaeth y Prif Weithredwr / Chief

Rhowch wybod i ni os mai Cymraeg yw eich Executive’s Directorate
dewis iaith. Deialu uniongyrchol / Direct line /: 01656 643148 /
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please 643147 [ 643694
let us know if your language choice is Welsh. Gofynnwch am / Ask for:

Ein cyf/ Our ref:
Eich cyf/ Your ref:

Dyddiad/Date: Wednesday, 12 December 2018

Dear Councillor,
CABINET

A meeting of the Cabinet will be held in the Council Chamber - Civic Offices Angel Street Bridgend
CF31 4WB on Tuesday, 18 December 2018 at 14:30.

AGENDA

1. Apologies for Absence
To receive apologies for absence from Members.

2. Declarations of Interest
To receive declarations of personal and prejudicial interest (if any) from Members/Officers in
accordance with the provisions of the Members’ Code of Conduct adopted by Council from
1 September 2008.

3. Approval of Minutes 3-16
To receive for approval the Minutes of 20/11/18

4. Outcome of the Consultation 'Shaping Bridgend's Future' 17 - 64
5. Capital Programme 2018-19 to 2027-28 65-72
6. Kenfig National Nature Reserve Management 73-78
7. Traffic Regulation Order / Traffic Calming and Pedestrian Crossing Process 79 -84
8. School Modernisation Programme - Band B 85 - 96
9. Welsh - Medium Capital Grant 97 - 106
10.  Appointment of Local Authority Governors 107 - 120
11.  Advocacy - Children's Services 121 -124
12. Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act Section 65 Power To Fix 125 - 232

Fares For Hackney Carriages Objections To The Proposal To Amend The

By receiving this Agenda Pack electronically you will save the Authority approx. £5.64 in
printing costs



Hackney Carriage Fares Tariff

13. Gambling Act 2005 Statement of Principles 233 -280

14. Urgent Items
To consider any items of business that by reason of special circumstances the chairperson

is of the opinion should be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency in accordance
with paragraph 2.4 (e) of the Cabinet Procedure Rules within the Constitution.

15. Exclusion of the Public
The following item is not for publication as it contains exempt information as defined in
Paragraph 14 of Part 4 and Paragraph 21 of Part 5, Schedule 12A of the Local Government
Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) (Wales)
Order 2007.

If following the application of the public interest test Cabinet resolves pursuant to the Act to
consider this item in private, the public will be excluded from the meeting during such
consideration.

16. Approval of Exempt Minutes 281 - 282
To receive for approval the exempt minutes of 20/11/18

Yours faithfully
K Watson
Head of Legal and Regulatory Services

Councillors: Councillors Councillors
HJ David PJ White D Patel
CE Smith HM Williams RE Young



Agenda Iltem 3

CABINET - TUESDAY, 20 NOVEMBER 2018

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE CABINET HELD IN COMMITTEE ROOMS 1/2/3 - CIVIC
OFFICES ANGEL STREET BRIDGEND CF31 4WB ON TUESDAY, 20 NOVEMBER 2018 AT
14:30

Present
Councillor HJ David — Chairperson

CE Smith PJ White HM Williams D Patel
RE Young

Apologies for Absence

Officers:

Gill Lewis Interim Head of Finance and Section 151 Officer
Kelly Watson Head of Legal & Regulatory Services

Darren Mepham Chief Executive

Mark Shephard Corporate Director - Communities

Mark Galvin Senior Democratic Services Officer - Committees
Lindsay Harvey Corporate Director Education and Family Support
Jackie Davies Head of Adult Social Care

John Fabes Specialist Officer Post 16 Education & Training

265. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest made.

266. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

RESOLVED: That the Minutes of a meeting of Cabinet dated 23 October
2018 be approved as a true and accurate record.

267. MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2019-20 TO 2022-23

The Interim Section 151 Officer submitted a report, the purpose of which, was to present
Cabinet with the draft Medium Term Financial Strategy 2019-20 to 2011-23, which sets
out the spending priorities of the Council, key investment objectives and budget areas
targeted for necessary savings. The Strategy also included a financial forecast for 2019-
2023, and a detailed draft Revenue Budget for 2019-20.

She introduced her submission, by advising that the MTFS had been guided by the
Council’s three priorities as contained in its Corporate Plan.

The next sections of the report contained a budget narrative, which aimed to articulate
the continued and significant investment in public services that the Council will make. It
also set out how the Council aims to change particular areas of service delivery and the
financial consequences of this.

The report then gave a financial overview, following which the Interim Section 151
Officer gave a resume of how much budget is allocated to each of its key service areas
of follows:-

e Education

Page 3



CABINET - TUESDAY, 20 NOVEMBER 2018

e Social Care and Early Help
e Public Realm

e Supporting the Economy

e Other Services

The Interim Section 151 Officer confirmed that the Council’'s MTFS was set within the
context of UK economic and public expenditure plans, Welsh Government’s priorities
and legislative programme.

She explained about the Welsh Government’s draft budget announced by the Finance
Secretary on 2 October 2018, and how this affected local authorities in Wales including
BCBC. Since then Central Government in its Autumn budget on 29 October, which
confirmed that Welsh Government will receive an £550m over the years 2018-19 to
2020-21.

The next section of the report, advised what the above settlements meant for this
Authority, which reflected for 2019-20 an overall reduction of £1.616m or -0.84%. Welsh
Government also indicated that the settlement contained an additional £20m to ease
pressures on Social Services. If this was also taken into account, the real position for
Bridgend was a reduction of -1.3% or £2.5m. The settlement also included £2.5m floor
funding to ensure that no Authority has to manage with a reduction of greater than 1% to
its Revenue Support Grant next year.

Overall the provisional settlement was in line with the -1.5% “most likely” assumption
that is contained within the Council’s original MTFS 2019-20, but it did not recognise a
number of new pressures that the Council will have to meet.

The next section of the report outlined reasons why there was a need to combat
financial pressures the Council have to face in the coming year, by having to consider an
increase of 5.4% in Council Tax.

Paragraph 4.11 of the report then showed in Table 1, a comparison of budget against
projected outturn at 30 September 2019, that reflected a net underspend of 2,551m.

Table 2 in paragraph 4.17 of the report, showed detail of an MTFS proposal supported
by Budget Reductions Contingency Reserve in 2018-19, which was in the sum of £200k
for MREC.

The report then gave an outline of the MTFS forecast for the next 4 years showing that
the Council would still be likely to achieve a budget reduction overall in each of these
years of around -1.5%. This in real terms meant that over this period it would have to
find a total of £33,645m on a ‘best case scenario’ or £44,648 on a ‘worse case.’

Table 5 of the report reflected the current position in addressing the most likely forecast
budget reduction requirement of £36,439m. This showed that despite savings made thus
far, the Council were still required to develop proposals in order to achieve a further
£21.3m in reductions (not yet accounted for).

The Interim Section 151 Officer then made reference to the Budget Reduction Proposals
identified in the current MTFS (Table 6 in the report) and the Draft Revenue Budget as it
presently stood (Table 7).

A full breakdown of budget pressures was shown in Appendix A to the report.

Page 4



CABINET - TUESDAY, 20 NOVEMBER 2018

She confirmed that budget reduction proposals of £8,836m had been identified from
service and corporate budgets to achieve a balanced budget. These were outlined in
Appendix B to the report.

Table 9 in paragraph 4.39 of the report gave a summary of Usable Earmarked
Reserves, whilst Table 10 showed Annual Allocations of Capital Funding.

The Interim Section 151 Officer then concluded her submission by referring to the Well-
Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Assessment as were detailed in
Appendix c to the report.

The Deputy Leader advised that the draft budget featured £115m for Education and
Family Support, plus capital investment of £21.5m for Band A and £23m for Band B of
its school modernisation programme.

It anticipated spending £67m on Social Care and Wellbeing services, and £23.5m on
Public Realm services including £9m on the collection and disposal of waste.

The proposals included a suggested Council Tax increase of 5.4%, which is the
equivalent of an extra £1.45 a week for an average Band D property.

Setting a multi-million pound budget was never easy the Deputy Leader added, but this
was especially the case under the current financial climate where the Council had been
forced to cover huge shortfalls in funding.

He proceeded by confirming that the suggested Council tax increase reflected the need
to mitigate against unfunded and unavoidable pressures, but it in no way covered the
entire cost of this.

As well as reductions in the amount of funding the Authority received, it faced additional
pressures such as new regulations and legislative changes, increased pupil numbers,
increased dependency upon Council services from an ageing population, and more.

He added that whilst the local authorities awaited the results of the public consultation,
the Council was sharing the draft proposals in order that the scrutiny process could get
underway.

The Deputy Leader advised that he was looking forward to receiving the public
consultation feedback at the next meeting of Cabinet, so Members could consider
proposals in context, prior to moving on to the next stage of proceedings.

He concluded his submission by confirming that future years would be very challenging
with savings required of between £30 - £40m. The report indicates that in future years
and in order to protect vital services that the Council have to provide to its 140,000
residents, Council Tax may have to increase to 10% in future years to fill the financial
void the Council is yet to face.

Cabinet Members in turn, echoed the sentiments of the Deputy Leader.

The Leader concluded debate on this item, by urging the public that there was still time
for them to write in with their proposals on the MTFS moving forward. He added that
Cabinet were working closely with Overview and Scrutiny, in order to make the best of
the settlement. He hoped that there would be added funding from Welsh Government
via Central Government, in order that the Authority could be financially supplemented,
as every little helped in this regard.

Page 5



CABINET - TUESDAY, 20 NOVEMBER 2018

RESOLVED: That Cabinet submitted for consultation the 2019-20 annual
budget and development of the MTFS 2019-20 to 2022-23.

268. PARC AFON EWENNI

The Corporate Director — Communities submitted a report, the purpose of which, was to
develop a modern Highways Depot at Waterton on a reduced footprint to allow the Parc
Afon Ewenni (PAE) regeneration site proposal to progress and future proof future depot
requirements for the Council as part of the overall depot rationalisation process . The
report further sought approval to present a report to Council proposing a revision to the
Capital Programme for a further capital sum of £4,944,000 to be included in the Capital
Programme to fully refurbish and develop the depot.

The report gave some background information which confirmed that Cabinet approval
was given in November 2016, to as an interim measure, continue operating a reduced
footprint Depot at Waterton for the next 4 or 5 years and the report outlined certain
options that could be pursued to achieve this.

He referred Members to paragraph 3.5 of the report, where it mentioned that it was
considered likely that any future configuration of local government re-organisation will
still require a Highways Depot in Bridgend to serve the County Borough. The cost of
providing a new Highways Depot at a new location was likely to cost considerably more
than the £6.5m - £7.5m estimated back in 2016. It was now estimated that the cost of a
new Depot in a new location would be in the region of £9m - £12m, as a result of
(probable) changing and more onerous NRW requirements. In recognition of this, the
option of operating a largely unchanged depot for 4/5 years as an interim measure and
then constructing a new depot at a revised location looks increasingly unaffordable.

Paragraph 3.6 of the report, then gave information with regard to an investigation
undertaken to identify the differences between the continued operation of the reduced
footprint for 4-5 years, with a new depot constructed at a new location thereafter and the
alternative option of the development of a permanent operational depot on a reduced
footprint, at Waterton.

The Corporate Director — Communities then referred to the subsequent sections of the
report on options suggested, including what the PAE Board had agreed, and that the
total current capital budget for the scheme was £4.376m. However, some of this budget
has already been committed to works at Bryncethin Depot, as a result of moving some
of the parks and built environment operations to this location, leaving a balance of
£3.2m.

Turning to the current situation, the Corporate Director — Communities confirmed that
the scheme cost of what was now the preferred option, was estimated to be in the region
of £8.144m, however, due to other added costs, there was now a deficit between the
overall cost of the maintenance/compliance works and the total estimated net land
receipt and the existing capital budget. In order to progress this option, a further capital
investment of the order of £4.944m was required in addition to the estimated remaining
capital of £3.2m, which would come from the estimated total land receipt of £3.5m plus
an additional £1.444m of general capital funding.

The proposed depot layout provides for:
e The smallest operationally acceptable footprint;

e A permanent, modern depot, compliant with the appropriate standards
¢ Maximum land available for disposal

Page 6



CABINET - TUESDAY, 20 NOVEMBER 2018

The next part of the report advised that although the existing depot was compliant with
the relevant health and safety legislation, etc, the existing depot was in a run-down
condition.

The Corporate Director — Communities concluded his submission by outlining the
report’s financial implications.

The Cabinet Member — Communities advised that the current proposal took into
consideration the most effective use of the land for placing such a new facility at this
location, and he was pleased to note that although the new depot would be smaller than
the one originally proposed, it would cost 40% less on a reduced sized footprint.

The Leader advised that potential partners could also use such a facility which would
reduce the costs associated with this, as well as adding that the proposal would be
subject to a rigorous procurement process, ie with the works going out to tender in order
to secure ‘best value’ (for the project).

The Corporate Director — Communities expanded upon this for the benefit of Members,
adding that some of the work could be undertaken internally by the Corporate Landlord
section.

RESOLVED: That Cabinet:

(1)  Noted the proposed preferred option for development of the
Highways Depot is now to provide a permanent modern, fit for
purpose depot, on a reduced footprint at the Waterton site. This will
ensure compliance with all necessary current standards/legislation
while maximising the amount of land available for sale to generate a
capital receipt and allow housing development in line with the
approved Local Development Plan.

(2) Gave authority to submit a report to Council recommending that the
capital receipt from the sale of the Council’s land at Waterton is
reinvested to support the development of the depot as without the
progression of the new depot proposed above, it would not be
possible to release all of the land for sale.

(3) Gave authority to submit a report to Council seeking approval that a
further capital sum of £4,944,000 be included in the Capital
Programme to fully refurbish and redevelop the depot as proposed,
including refurbishment of the appropriate buildings.

269. OUR GREEN SPACES - ENABLING NATURAL RESOURCES AND WELLBEING
GRANT

The Corporate Director — Communities submitted a report, the purpose of which, was to
seek Cabinet approval for the submission of a full application to the Enabling Natural
Resources and Well-Being Grant (ENRaW) and, if successful, to accept the resulting
funding offer and enter into any legal and management agreements required to
implement the projects funded by the grant.

He advised that the Enabling Natural Resources and Well-Being Grant (ENRaW) is
administered by Welsh Government (WG) and supports projects that make
improvements in residential areas by delivering benefits for people, businesses and
communities.

The above proposal had been shared with the Public Services Board (PSB) he added,
and then went on to explain that, Our Green Spaces was a project to manage the green

Page 7



CABINET - TUESDAY, 20 NOVEMBER 2018

infrastructure of Bridgend County for the benefit of people, businesses and communities.
The project was split into four themes that aligned with the PSB Well-being Plan, and
through delivery, would identify opportunities to maximise benefits across a range of
sites, such as:-

Enabling the best start in life

Enabling safe and cohesive communities

Enabling equality

Enabling healthy choices in a healthy environment

In respect of the reports financial implications, the Corporate Director — Communities
advised that the timeframe was proposed as starting in spring 2019 and ending in spring
2022, subject to WG decision making processes. The project was currently costed at
£734,579. A breakdown of the funding package as currently drafted, was shown in
paragraph 8.2 of the report. This however, was subject to final discussion with WG and
may be subject to change.

The Cabinet Member — Education and Regeneration advised that the report included a
considerable amount of funding to support various types of open space programmes,
including linking in with schools also so as to encourage pupils to make most of these
areas in order to promote their health and wellbeing. There were other programmes, for
example the Sustainable Management Scheme and the Single Revenue Programme 18-
19, which all contributed to £1.1m worth of investment (into open spaces).

The Leader concluded debate, by reiterating that the bulk of resource came from grant
funding, which would also benefit wildlife and ecology as well as individuals themselves.

RESOLVED: That Cabinet:-

(1) Approved the submission of the Our Green Spaces proposal as outlined to the
Enabling Natural Resources and Well-Being Grant;

(2) Delegated authority to the Corporate Director — Communities, to finalise and
submit, in consultation with the Section 151 Officer, the full application and
accept any resulting funding offer;

(3) Delegated authority to the Corporate Director — Communities upon receipt of any
resulting funding offer to put in place the required legal and management
agreements in consultation with the Head of Legal and Regulatory Services and
the Section 151 Officer.

270. PORTHCAWL REGENERATION SCHEME UPDATE

The Corporate Director — Communities submitted a report, the purpose of which, was to
provide Cabinet with an update on the Porthcawl Regeneration Scheme, and to seek
approval to present a report to Council proposing a revision to the capital programme to
invest anticipated capital receipts arising from the sale of land, encompassing Salt Lake
Car Park.

The report also sought approval to present a report to Council to secure match funding
for coastal defence improvements which will unlock future development phases.

The report outlined certain background information, then confirmed the various phases
of the work comprising the scheme.

Page 8



CABINET - TUESDAY, 20 NOVEMBER 2018

The Corporate Director — Communities advised that the scheme required processing in
this manner, as prior considerations needed to be considered, for example market
analysis, key infrastructure constraints, as well as cash flow considerations. A plan
attached to the report set out the proposed phasing strategy of the scheme.

He then gave a resume for the benefit of Cabinet, of Phases 1 to 7 of the scheme
inclusive, as was outlined in paragraphs 4.2 to 4.10 of the report.

The next section of the report included a summary of the various phases, which covered
the following areas. He added that the plan would extend a period of 4 to 5 years:-

Phase 1 — Foodstore Site

Phase 2 — Housing

Phase 3 — Hillsboro Place Car Park

Phase 4 — Eastern Promenade and wider coastal flood defence works
Phase 5 & 6 — Housing Sites

Phase 7 — Leisure Site

The Corporate Director — Communities then expanded upon the investment of Capital
Receipts and gave a summary of Actual Receipts and ways proposed to reinvest these.

This would result in more efficient car parking at Hillsboro Place Car Park; improvements
to Salt Lake for it to be run as a public car park in the intervening period, prior to this
area being brought forward for development (ie Phases 5 and 6 of the Scheme). He
added that there was also proposed accessibility improvements to the Portway, to
include crossing points and the potential of on-street parking to improve accessibility to
the town centre.

He continued by advising that there was also intended, physical works to the leisure site
to enable temporary uses to be brought forward as part of the interim Leisure Strategy,
and finally, a series of physical improvements in other key areas, such as the gateway to
the site (potentially in partnership with the Town Council), the promenade and
pedestrian links to the town centre.

The Corporate Director — Communities then confirmed that the proposals in the report
had been assessed against the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015, a
summary of which was shown in paragraphs 7 of the report.

He then concluded his submission, by advising of the report’s financial implications and
requested that £2.64m of project costs associated with the development of Porthcawl
Strategic Regeneration Scheme are included in the capital programme.

The Cabinet Member — Education and Regeneration advised that the Council had
always wished for quality rather than quantity to be the overriding factor of the scheme
going forward, and felt that it would be beneficial if as part of the scheme the Portway
was kept open, as this area was pedestrian friendly and gave direct site lines into
Porthcawl town. Added car parking would also alleviate parking pressures that were
currently in existence in Porthcawl he added.

The Leader concluded debate, by advising that Officers and Cabinet had worked hard
and closely with Porthcaw!’s local members regarding the schemes proposals as well as
with Porthcawl Town Council and further such work would continue in the future.

The latest proposals were carrying on from excellent work achieved to date with the re-
opening of the Jennings Building and the re-development of the harbour as a Marina. He

Page 9



CABINET - TUESDAY, 20 NOVEMBER 2018

further added that it was important that the regeneration of Porthcawl, also includes
adequate sea defences and affordable housing on brownfield (as opposed to greenfield)
sites. All these proposed works would hopefully contribute towards Porthcawl becoming
the premier seaside town in South Wales.

RESOLVED: Cabinet recommended a report to Council which sought
authority:

(1) To revise the capital programme to include a budget of £2.64m of investment in
Porthcawl Regeneration, funded from a combination of capital receipts generated
from the sale of land within Salt Lake, and prudential borrowing;

(2) To provide 25% match funding (circa £1 million) towards coastal defence works in
Porthcawl and authority to secure 75% funding via the Local Government
Borrowing Initiative (LGBI) towards these works. The scheme will not be
incorporated in the capital programme until the 75% LGBI funding has been
approved; and

(Note: the sums will be confirmed prior to the detailed business case submission to
Welsh Government expected around Summer 2019.)

(3) To delegate authority to the Corporate Director — Communities and S151 Officer
to agree any cost variations associated with the Porthcawl Development Scheme.

271. LOCAL AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT - PROPOSED AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT
AREA

The Head of Legal and Regulatory Services submitted a report on the above matter and
introduced from the Shared Regulatory Services (SRS), the Operational Manager —
Enterprise and Specialist Services and the Specialist Services Officer to explain the
technical issues of the report.

Supported by the evidence outlined in the Technical Note, attached at Appendix 1, the
purpose of the report is to seek Cabinet approval for an Air Quality Management Area
(AQMA) designation order for Park Street, Bridgend. Cabinet is required to approve the
designation of the AQMA order prior to a final version being submitted to Welsh
Government, and the order made publically available.

The report also requested the approval of a public engagement exercise with impacted
residents and businesses prior to the implementation date of 1st January 2019.

The report gave some background information, following which it confirmed that Cabinet
at its meeting on 18 September 2018, approved the 2018 Local Air Quality Management
Annual Progress Report (APR) for Bridgend, as produced by SRS on behalf of BCBC.
This report examined datasets captured during 2017 and noted that Park Street,
Bridgend, was an area of particular concern and subsequently an AQMA was required.

It was subsequently noted, that two nitrogen dioxide (NO2) monitoring locations situated
at residential facades on Park Street, as shown in the report, recorded elevated and
exceeding annual average levels of NO2 when compared to normal levels.

Under Section 83 of the Environment Act 1995, BCBC is required to legally declare an

AQMA for Park Street, Bridgend, and in doing so, raise an AQMA order that defines the
detail and locality of the AQMA.

Page 10



CABINET - TUESDAY, 20 NOVEMBER 2018

The Officers advised that a draft AQMA order was attached at Appendix 2 of the report,
and it was proposed that the order comes into effect on 1 January 2019.

As part of developing an Air Quality Action Plan (AQAP), SRS/BCBC will form a cross-
departmental working group, that will examine and assess a number of mitigation
measures, designed to improve/reduce NO2 levels as reasonably as was practicable.

Finally, Cabinet were advised that as part of the AQAP schedule, a public consultation
will be undertaken which will allow for residents to pass comment on envisaged
mitigation measures as well as to make their own mitigation suggestions also.

Cabinet commended the report, and awaited a further report on the outcome of the
above proposals.

RESOLVED: That Cabinet:

(1) Approved the decision to implement an Air Quality Management Area (AQMA)
on Park Street based on the evidence provided.

(2) Approved the detail of the proposed AQMA Order, as attached in Appendix 2
for submission to Welsh Government and to be made publically available.

(3) Approved the decision to undertake a public engagement exercise with
impacted residents and businesses, prior to the implementation of the AQMA
Order.

(4) That a further report be awaited on this matter in due course.

272. FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

The Head of Legal and Regulatory Services submitted a report, in order to seek
approval from Cabinet, for items to be included on the Forward Work Programme (FWP)
for the period 1 January to 30 April 2019.

Attached to the report were the FWP’s for Cabinet (Appendix 1 to the report), Council
(Appendix 2) and Overview and Scrutiny (Appendix 3).

RESOLVED: That Cabinet:

1. Approved the Cabinet Forward Work Programme for the period 1 January to 30
April 2019, as shown at Appendix 1 to the report.

2. Noted the Council and Scrutiny Forward Work Programme as shown at Appendix
2 and 3 of the report, respectively.

273. OUTSIDE BODIES NOMINATION

The Head of Legal and Regulatory Services presented a report, the purpose of which,
was to seek Cabinet approval for the appointment of Councillor CA Green to the WLGA
Council replacing Councillor N Clarke.

The report outlined certain background information, following which, the Head of Legal
and Regulatory Services advised that if Cabinet approved the recommendation of the
report, it was proposed that Clir Green’s appointment reminded in effect until June 2019,
at which time Cabinet would be asked to appoint/re-appoint to a number of outside
bodies and joint committees as routine.

Page 11



CABINET - TUESDAY, 20 NOVEMBER 2018

The appointment was proposed on the basis that the appointee represents Bridgend
CBC, and should she cease to be a Member of the Authority, her appointment would be
suitably relinquished.

RESOLVED: That Cabinet approved the appointment of Councillor CA
Green to the WLGA Council, replacing Councillor N Clarke.

274. INFORMATION REPORTS FOR NOTING

The Head of Legal and Regulatory Services submitted a report, in order to inform
Cabinet of the Information Reports for Noting published since its last scheduled meeting.

These were outlined in paragraph 4.1 of the report.

The Leader in respect of the report regarding the Estyn Inspection outcomes for
Tynyrheol Primary School, noted that Estyn intended monitoring progress on a termly
basis due to the findings of such Inspection.

To this end, he asked for a further report to be submitted to Cabinet in due course
outlining progress in respect of the Action Plan devised by Estyn to address the
recommendations they had made in order to improve performance at the School.

He also wished to congratulate Maes Yr Haul Primary for the excellent report it had
received following a similar inspection carried out by Estyn.

RESOLVED: That Cabinet acknowledged the publication of the documents
listed in the report.

275. SCHOOL MODERNISATION PROGRAMME - BAND B

The Corporate Director — Education and Family Support and Interim Head of Finance
and S151 Officer submitted a joint report, the purpose of which, was to update Cabinet
with regards to the outcome of Welsh Government’s review of the Mutual Investment
Model (MIM) Band B funding mechanism, and to also seek Cabinet approval to pursue
Option 3, for the financial delivery of Band B of the School Modernisation Programme,
prior to submission to Council.

By way of background to the main provisions of the report, the Corporate Director —
Education and Family Support advised that the School Modernisation Programme was
established to deliver on several objectives including:-

o developing first-class learning environments;
e locating the right number of schools, of a viable size, in the best places to
serve their communities;
¢ making schools an integral part of the life and learning of their communities;
e reducing surplus places and achieving best value for money; and
make schools more efficient and sustainable.

He continued by confirming that at its meeting on 31 January 2018, Council approved
in principle the financial commitment required for Band B of the School
Modernisation Programme. The approval would be subject to sufficient resources
being identified and allocated to meet the match funding commitment. The overall
programme was estimatedto be in the region of £68.2m, of which approximately
£43.2m was anticipated to be capital funded (circa £23m funded by Bridgend County
Borough Council (BCBC)), the balance proposed to be funded through the Welsh
Government Mutual Investment Model (MIM).

10
Page 12



CABINET - TUESDAY, 20 NOVEMBER 2018

Since the approval and subsequent introduction of the Strategic Review Overarching
Board in May 2016, Welsh Government had reviewed the schemes that have been
proposed for its Mutual Investment Model (MIM), and this review assessed:-

1. The feasibility of delivering the individual schools as MIM projects.

2. The practicalities associated with grouping the schools together by region and
capital value; and

3. The optimal procurement route

The Corporate Director — Education and Family Support then referred to paragraph
4.6 of the report, which identified certain new builds as ideal facilities for MIM
delivery.

He continued by advising that Welsh Government had stated that it was not value for
money to include small or very complex schemes through a MIM. Consequently,
Bridgend Special School was now deemed unsuitable for delivery under this funding
model. This was purely a Welsh Government decision based on a recent review. In
light of this decision, the funding approach to BCBC’s Band B schemes needs to be
re-considered in order to reach a decision on the way forward.

Projects progressed via the MIM are subject to a number of differences compared to
schemes undertaken via the capital grant route, including the procurement process
and the intervention rates. A direct comparison of each route was provided in Table 1
of the report.

The report then gave some financial implications, after which the Corporate Director
— Education and Family Support stated that Officers had spoken to Welsh
Government officials about potential options available following the removal of
special school builds from the MIM procurement route. These which totalled four,
were expanded upon in the next sections of the report and he gave a resume of each
of these for the benefit of Members.

The Cabinet Member — Education and Regeneration confirmed that Cabinet had
looked at all the options contained in the report and the advantages and
disadvantages of these, and it had been recommended that Option 3 be pursued as
this was considered the most balanced option and allowed for more flexibility in
respect of issues such as building design etc.

The Leader added that the Option so chosen, would also would also assist in
meeting higher pupil intervention rates, particularly as local authorities had struggled
to identify capital contributions to match fund Welsh contributions for the construction
of new school facilities in Band A and will find it more difficult in Band B.

He finally requested that Cabinet receives a further on this matter, in due course.
RESOLVED: That Cabinet:

(1) Noted the outcome of Welsh Government’s review of the Mutual Investment
Model (MIM) Band B funding mechanism.

(2) Discontinued with the original approach to funding Band B of the School
Modernisation Programme.

(3) Gave approval to pursue Option 3 for the financial delivery of Band B, subject
to sufficient resources being identified and allocated to meet the match-
funding commitment.

11
Page 13



CABINET - TUESDAY, 20 NOVEMBER 2018

(4) Gave approval for a report to be submitted to Council to amend the capital
programme to reflect the above.

276. WESTERN BAY INTEGRATED FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICE

The Corporate Director — Education and Family Support presented a report, the purpose
of which, was to seek approval to enter into a revised collaboration agreement with
Neath Port Talbot CBC and the City and County of Swansea Council, in relation to the
Western Bay Integrated Family Support Service (IFSS).

By way of background information, the report confirmed that that the IFSS focused on
families where parents have substance misuse problems that affect the welfare of the
children, and was a Welsh Government programme unique to Wales.

He continued by confirming that the Project Board and related parties, had now agreed
the terms of a revised collaborative agreement to cover the period April 2017 to March
2019.

Paragraph 3.6 of the report, outlined the purpose of the revised agreement, a provision
of which, gave an obligation for parties to co-operate in seeking to ensure the orderly
transfer of any relevant staff to their respective authority.

The Cabinet Member — Social Services and Early Help, advised that the service was a
very important one that BCBC were not walking away from and one which assisted the
Authority in care arrangements.

He further added that given the impending health boundary change , BCBC'’s
involvement with the Western Bay regional collaboration was expected to come to an
end in April 2019, and therefore, the new TUPE provisions would protect BCBC from
funding a disproportionate share, or all, of any potential redundancy costs.

RESOLVED: That Cabinet approved entering into a revised collaboration
agreement with Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council and
the City and County of Swansea Council, in relation to the
Western Bay IFSS.

277. PUBLIC CONSULTATION ON POTENTIAL CONCEPTS FOR POST-16 PROVISION
ACROSS BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH

The Corporate Director — Education and Family Support advised that Cabinet gave
approval for a public consultation on the future development of post-16 education across
the Bridgend County Borough (“the County”). This latest report before Members,
provided Cabinet with the Post-16 Consultation Paper and set out the proposed
approaches for consultation, together with an initial Equalities Impact Assessment and
Wellbeing of Future Generations Assessment.

He advised that on 24 April 2018 Cabinet gave approval for a public consultation on six
concepts of post-16 educational provision, as were outlined in paragraph 3.2 of the
report.

The Corporate Director — Education and Family Support, confirmed that the consultation
paper on concepts for post-16 educational provision across the County has now been
prepared and was attached at Appendix A to the report. Included as appendices in the
report were also an initial Equalities Impact Assessment and a Well-being of Future
Generations (Wales) Act Assessment. Of the concepts listed in paragraph 3.2 of the

12
Page 14



CABINET - TUESDAY, 20 NOVEMBER 2018

report, Concepts 4 and 5 were the Cabinet’s preferred options after the April 2018
Cabinet report.

Further detail regarding these two Concepts were outlined in the next sections of the
report.

The Corporate Director — Education and Family Support then alluded to paragraph 4.5 of
the report, which listed a range of contextual information relating to post-16 provision as
contained in the consultation paper. The public consultation would run from 26
November 2018 to 22 February 2019.

In terms of the main financial implications of the report, the Corporate Director —
Education and Family Support advised that funding for sixth-form provision in BCBC is
provided by Welsh Government as a single post-16 grant allocation each year. There is
a core allocation based mainly on learner numbers, with additional allocations to take
into account learner deprivation and Welsh-medium education. Total funding for 2018-19
is £5,829,430, of which over 97% is distributed to secondary schools. In the last three
financial years the core grant has been reduced by £672,427 as a result of the combined
effects of lower learner numbers and reductions by Welsh Government to the central
post-16 grant for schools.

The Cabinet Member — Education and Regeneration advised that no firm decisions had
been made as of yet in respect of future potential concepts for post-16 provision.

The Cabinet Member — Wellbeing and Future Generations hoped that the consultation
was going out far and wide across a whole range of organisations, particularly those
associated with young people, such as the Military Preparation College.

The Corporate Director — Education and Family Support confirmed that the consultation
would cover a wide range of organisations and sectors etc, particularly local businesses,
including all training providers aged years 16 — 18.

The Leader added, that he hoped the consultation would also be in the form of face to
face and on-line including for students and higher education providers also, to include
colleges and local universities. He also thought it of considerable benefit if the
consultation was extended to include the Youth Council.

The Specialist Officer, Post-16 Education and Training advised that the deadline date for
the consultation process had been put back from 26 November to 3 December, as the
Consultation document needed to also be translated.

A further report on the outcome of the consultation would be presented to Cabinet at its
April meeting.

The Leader concluded debate on this item, by advising that it would be worthwhile to
have a briefing for all Members on the future of Post-16 education at an appropriate date
in the future.

RESOLVED: That Cabinet gave approval to the consultation paper on six
concepts for the future of post-16 education across Bridgend
County Borough.

278. URGENT ITEMS

None.

13
Page 15



CABINET - TUESDAY, 20 NOVEMBER 2018

279. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

RESOLVED:

That under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972
as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information)
(Variation) (Wales) Order 2007, the public be excluded from the
meeting during consideration of the following item of business as
it contains exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 14 of
Part 4 and Paragraph 21 of Part 5 of Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government
(Access to Information) (Variation) (Wales) Order 2007.

Following the application of the public interest test in
consideration of this item, it was resolved that pursuant to the Act
referred to above, it be considered in private, with the public
being excluded from the meeting as it would involve the
disclosure of exempt information of the nature as stated above.

280. INDUSTRIAL STRATEGY PROSPERING FROM THE ENERGY REVOLUTION

The meeting closed at 16:40

Page 16

14



Agenda Item 4

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
REPORT TO CABINET
18 DECEMBER 2018
REPORT OF THE INTERIM HEAD OF FINANCE AND SECTION 151 OFFICER
OUTCOME OF THE CONSULTATION ‘SHAPING BRIDGEND’S FUTUREF’
1.0 Purpose of this report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform Cabinet of the outcome of the ‘Shaping
Bridgend’s Future’ 2018 consultation which asked citizens to share their views
on a number of key budget proposals being considered over the Medium
Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) period.

1.2  This report provides an overview of the budget consultation activities, analysis
and key findings.

2.0 Connection to Corporate Improvement Objectives / Other Corporate
Priorities

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate priorities:-

1. Supporting a successful economy — taking steps to make the county a
good place to do business, for people to live, work, study and visit, and
to ensure that our schools are focused on raising the skills,
qualifications and ambitions of all people in the county.

2. Helping people to be more self-reliant — taking early steps to reduce or
prevent people from becoming vulnerable or dependent on the Council
and its services.

3. Smarter use of resources — ensuring that all its resources (financial,
physical, human and technological) are used as effectively and
efficiently as possible and support the development of resources
throughout the community that can help deliver the Council’s priorities.

2.2  The ‘Shaping Bridgend’s Future’ 2018 consultation sought to obtain views on
specific budget reduction proposals across Council directorates. The
allocation of financial resources determines the Council’s ability to meet its
corporate objectives. As such the report links to all corporate priorities.

3.0 Background
3.1 Following further reductions in funding from central government, all Councils
across the country are continuing to change the way they work and the

services they provide so that they can manage with less. Bridgend County
Borough Council has made reductions from its budget of £30.7 million over

Page 17



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.5

3.6

3.7

the last four years, with an expectation of significant further reductions
required.

Respondents were asked to share their views on a range of budget proposals
being considered between 2019-20 and 2022-23, including: proposed
increases to council tax, considering which services to protect and/or cut over
others, post 16 transport, nursery education, school budgets, leisure and
cultural services (our partnerships with Awen and Halo Leisure), recycling and
waste, social services, bus services and nursery education.

Budget consultation exercises have been undertaken annually since 2013-14.
This ‘Shaping Bridgend’s Future’ 2018 consultation exercise has built on the
knowledge gained from the previous consultations and further developed the
consultation to include new ways for people to participate and engage with the
Council. A wide variety of methods of communication were used including
surveys, social media and drop in sessions with clicker pads.

In addition, In order to gather the views of young people the consultation team
attended an all-Bridgend head-teacher’s event to promote the survey as well
to ask individual schools to take part in interactive sessions in order to gather
feedback. As a result, all nine comprehensive schools across the county
borough took part in clicker-pad sessions with an average of 87 young people
taking part in each school (Coleg Cymunedol y Dderwen were the exception
to this. Due to ICT issues a group of 70 young people completed paper
surveys instead).

Interactive sessions also took place in 15 primary schools and a total of 832
pupils in years five and six took part in these pupil-led sessions. A separate
report has been produced for primary schools but the highlight report is
detailed in section nine of the attached Budget Consultation report.

The budget consultation overview, document and different surveys were
made available between 24 September and 18 November 2018. The surveys
were available on the council’s website while paper copies were available to
complete at local libraries and other venues.

The consultation aimed to reach the following key stakeholders: citizens of
Bridgend County Borough, schools, BCBC cabinet members/councillors, local
businesses, the third sector, council staff, town and community councils,
partner organisations, community and equality groups, youth services/council
and local media.

Methods of engagement included a survey (available online and paper copies
at all local libraries), community meetings/events/stands (open to the public to
attend), elected member workshops, other meetings/networking events, social
media debates and comments, and a dedicated Citizens’ Panel survey
(available online and paper copies). A bespoke survey was also designed for
youth engagement and an accessible version of the survey was also
available. Survey completions and/or comments were collated as part of the

Page 18



3.8

4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

different events and meetings. Feedback to the consultation was also
welcome via letter, email or telephone.

The consultation was supported by a full communications and promotional
plan. The main activities included: a Wales Online digital package, various
press release/editorials in the media, a social media/web campaign,
poster/sign campaign, direct marketing to key target audiences e.g.
businesses, schools, youth council and internal communications for staff and
elected members.

Current Situation / proposal

The attached consultation report (Appendix 1) sets out in detail the views
expressed by those who participated.

Overall, the council has received 5,288 responses via the various consultation
mechanisms identified in paragraph 3.8. The 5,288 interactions total 3.69% of
the Bridgend County Borough population and represents a significant
increase on last year’s figure of 2619.

The response rate, by method of interaction is set out below:

Interactions Number
Survey completions 2,677
Events/meetings/workshops 2,148
Emails 9
Letters 1
Telephone calls 6
Social media comments 165
Social media Q&A 282
Total interactions 5,288

e 2,677 responses to the surveys were received in total. This represents
a 44% increase on last year’s total of 1,858.

e Overall 2,148 people attended the various events, workshops and
meetings — these figures include schools. This represents a significant
increase on last year’s total of 152.

e A total of 447 interactions were received via social media. This includes
282 interactions from the live question and answer (Q&A) session. This
represents a 25% decrease for overall interactions compared to last
year’s figure of 593 but a 25% increase compared to last year’s figure
of 226 for the Q&A.

e 16 comments were received by email, telephone and letter.

Page 19



4.4  Headline figures and themes include:

Council increase/decrease and protecting/cutting services

Headlines from the Public Consultation

Council Tax

48% of respondents stated that they would not be willing to pay more council tax in order
to protect services (than the proposed 4.9% increase).

Services to Protect

Most popular services to protect (through council tax or by comparing all proposals)
were schools, care of older people, services for disabled people and leisure services.
53% of respondents disagreed with the proposal to ask schools to make budget savings
of 1% per year over the next four years.

66% of respondents disagreed with the proposal to make savings through reducing day
centres or services.

Increasing Revenue

79% of respondents stated that Blue Badge holders should pay for parking, 48% stated
Blue Badge holders should pay the same amount as non-Blue Badge holders. A further
31% stated that Blue Badge holders should pay a reduced rate.

60% of respondents stated that they would be willing to pay more to access sports
facilities, pavilions and parks (10% stated significantly more and 50% stated a small
amount more).

48% of respondents stated that the council should explore the option of charging for
shopmobility.

When asked about increased revenue within recycling and waste 53% of respondents
were willing to pay an increased charge to £20 for three bulky item collection.

Services to Cut

Services most frequently selected to make cuts were libraries, arts centres and theatres,
sports and recreation services, weed spraying, funding for post-16 transport and
separate collection for absorbent hygiene products.

48% of respondents agreed that nursery provision should be reduced to 15 hours per
week in order to make budget savings.

47% of respondents agreed that funding for post-16 transport should be removed in
order to make budget savings.

46% of respondents agreed that the bus station should be closed in order to make
budget savings.

5.0 Effect upon Policy Framework and Procedure Rules
5.1  There are no proposed changes to the policy framework and procedure rules.
6.0 Equality Impact Assessment

6.1 Budget reduction proposals pursued will be subject to the appropriate equality
impact assessment prior to implementation.

Page 20



7.0

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Implications

7.1 The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation
of the Budget Consultation. Officers have considered the importance of
balancing short-term needs in terms of meeting savings targets, while
safeguarding the ability to meet longer-term objectives and maintain
sustainable services, when proposals were devised. A full Well-being of
Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 assessment will be completed for the
final MTFS presented to Council in February 2019.

8.0 Financial Implications

8.1  The consultation report seeks to inform and aid cabinet members’ decisions
on the future direction of the Council and how to meet the challenging budget
constraints in the years ahead.

9.0 Recommendation

9.1  Cabinet is recommended to note the outcome of the consultation with
interested parties as detailed in the attached consultation report.

Gill Lewis

Interim Head of Finance and Section 151 Officer

December 2018

Appendix 1: Shaping Bridgend’s Future Consultation Report
Background Documents - None

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



"
Bridgend County Borough Council ¥

BRIDGEND
County Borough Coungil

Shaping Bridgend’s Future

Consultation report

Date of issue: November 2018 {ﬁ

%
3 = o
W BRIDGEND

| ) ala
www.bridgend.gov.uk


http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/
extond
Text Box
APPENDIX 1


Contents

L. OVEBIVIBW .ttt 3
2. INTFOTUCTION. ... 3
3. Promotional tools and engagement Mmethods .........ccooeeeviiiiiiiiiiiiiie e, 3
4, RESPONSE FALE .....eieetie ettt e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e renr e nee 10
5. How effective was the CONSUILALIONT .......ccooiiiiiiiiiiii et eeeeees 11
6. HEAAIINE fIQUIES ... 11
7. Question and analysis - CONSUItAtioON SUIVEY ............uuiiiiiieeiiieeieee e 12
745 I A o Yo 10 | 0o U 12
A 2SN Y= VA o [V T=T] 1 o] g 14
7.2.1 COUNCIl tAX INCIBASE ..o e e e 14
7.2.2 SEIVICES 10 PrOLECT. ... e e i 15
7.2.3 SEIVICES 10 MAKE CULS ..uvuiiiieeeeeeiieiiiiie e e e e e e ettt s e e e e e e e e e ettt e e e e e e e e e eeenann e aaeees 16
A - Y[ BN I S = 17
7.2.5 AWEN CUIUIAL TIUST...eeeitiiiiie e e e et e e e e e e e e e e eeaa e e e eees 17
7.2.6 YOULN CIUDS ... 18
7.2.7 Outdoor sports facilities, pavilions and parks ...........ccccceevvveviiiiiiiee e 19
7.2.8 SCROOIS DUAQEL.... .o 20
7.2.9 NUISEIY PrOVISION ..ottt e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eeesaaa e eaeees 21
7.2.10 POSE-16 traNSPOIT....ceieeiiiiiee ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 22
7.2.11 DAY CENIES ....iieeeiieeette ettt ettt e e e e et et e e b e e e e e e e e e e e e e b e e e eee s 23
7.2.12 Blue Badge Parking ........ccooeeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeee e 24
7.2.13 SROPMODIITY .o 25
7.2.14 SUDSIAISEA DUSES ... 26
7.2.15 Bridgend BUS StatiON..........cccooiiiiiiiiiiiie e 27
7.2.16 RECYCIING @NU WASTE......uuuiiiiieiieiieeie et e e e 28
A A O T o [T T T (= T 29
7.2.18 Three DUIKY ITEMIS ... 30
7.2.L9 WEE SPIraYiNg ...cceeeeeeeeeeeee oo 31
7.2.20 SUMMATY — PIOTECT ..ttt e e e e e e e e e e e 32
A YU 01 = Ul o] U | 33
7.2.22 INCrEASING FEVENUE ... .cettiiieeeeite e e ettt e e e ettt e e e e et e e e e et e e e e et e e e e e et e e e e eaaa e e e eesaanaas 34
7.2.23 Do you have any further comments that you would like to make on the budget

ProposSals fOr 2019/207...... e 34
8. Social Media FESPONSES .....cociiiiiiiiiiiie e 35
9. Primary SChooIS WOrKSNOPS ........oooiiiiiiiiiiiii e 36
10 0] T 1113 [0 o T 40

«D%W.
—['fl’?IDGFND

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

1. Overview

A public consultation reviewing Bridgend County Borough Council’s proposed budget
reductions to 2020/21 was undertaken over an eight week period from 24 September to 18
November 2018. The consultation received 5,288 interactions from a combination of
survey completions, engagement at stands held across the county borough, workshops
held with comprehensive and primary pupils, engagement at various meetings with different
local groups, social media engagement and via the authority’s Citizens’ Panel. This paper
details the analysis associated with the consultation.

2. Introduction

The public survey was available to complete online through a link on the consultation page
of the council’'s website or by visiting www.bridgend.gov.uk/future. Paper copies of the
consultation were also made available at local libraries, community groups or engagement
events or alternatively, they could be sent directly to residents upon request. Surveys were
available in several formats, including easy-read, large print, standard and a youth version.
All were available in English and Welsh. The content of the page remains available online.

In total, there were 23 questions (within all survey formats) that required a reply from
respondents. These were made up of questions about budget reduction proposals as well
as ways in which revenue could be increased. All survey responses offered the option of
anonymity. Two of the questions were summary questions, enabling respondents to select
their favoured proposals in order to make savings and which were their least preferred
options. The council’s standard set of equalities monitoring questions were also included
with the survey in line with recommended good practice for all public-facing surveys carried
out by the council.

A programme of engagement events/sessions were held across the county borough and
took the form of engagement stands in libraries, presenting to different groups, attending
other group’s events, meetings and workshops and holding sessions in comprehensive and
primary schools.

Comments regarding the consultation were also invited via social media (including a
dedicated social media Q&A), letter, email and phone call.

3. Promotional tools and engagement methods

Details of the consultation were promoted to/shared with the following stakeholders: general
public/residents, Citizens’ Panel members, elected members, BCBC employees, Bridgend
businesses, town and community councils, school governors, Bridgend Community
Cohesion and Equality Forum (BCCEF) members, local interest/community groups, BAVO,
Bridgend College, partners, primary and secondary schools (including head teachers) and
media outlets. We also contacted residents who have previously engaged with us over
other consultations and have asked to be kept up-to-date with future consultations.

3.1 Promotional tools

This section details the methods used to raise the profile of the consultation and encourage
participation.

BRIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

3.1.1 Free prize draw

To encourage participation, respondents (aged over 13) were able to opt-in to a free prize
draw for a one year Halo Leisure membership, a family of four pantomime ticket for The
Grand Pavilion, Porthcawl, or a family of four pantomime ticket for Maesteg Town Hall.
Respondents were asked to select their prize of choice and provide their email address in
order to opt-in.

3.1.2 Social media

In December 2017 the council committed to managing its social media accounts bilingually.
In addition to introducing Welsh language corporate Twitter and Facebook accounts at that
time, it started posting bilingually across the remainder of its social media channels.
Information was posted to the council’s corporate Facebook, Twitter, Instagram and
LinkedIn channels throughout the consultation period to raise awareness of the consultation
and to encourage citizens to share their views on the proposals.

The council currently has 10,908 followers on its corporate Twitter accounts, 10,950 ‘fans’
on its Facebook pages, 1,024 Instagram followers and 2,486 followers on LinkedIn. While
content is most likely to be seen by these users, it is also displayed to users who are not
connected to the accounts.

In addition to general social media content, a collection of five GIFs were introduced this
year to help promote the consultation and its key issues, and to improve citizens’
understanding of the current situation and what the consultation exercise is designed to
achieve.

During the period, the authority ‘tweeted’ 96 times (48 English, 48 Welsh), posted to
Facebook 22 times (11 English, 11 Welsh), made nine LinkedIn updates (4 English, 4
Welsh, 1 bilingual), and one Instagram post about the consultation. This content was seen
59,364, 76,273, 5,448 and 439 times respectively.

Paid Facebook and Instagram advertising was used to reach a wider audience within the
county borough between 1 and 8 October 2018, and again between 16 and 18 November
2018. The adverts were seen 88,607 times by 34,344 users, generating 117 comments and
1,837 clicks through to the website.

BRIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

3.1.3 Press and media

WalesOnline wews- mvourasea~ wharson~ suesy roorsawe swansea caroirr seowr~ susiNess - MoRe~

[0 secstsosees » snsges
Bridgend Council launches its budget consultation
for 2019-20 and seeks to save £10m

Shaping Bridgend's Future is as v much the council s on specific services

wAYBEO °

BEE ® roosccom
NEWS

A" News Sport Weather iPlayer

Home UK Word By

Wales Wales Politics

joth East ~ Mid ~ South West  Sc

Bridgend council warns of ‘unthinkable
cuts’

i SHAPING
‘" BRIDGEND’S
i FUTURE i

°
°
° Y
BRIDGEND COUNCIL'S BUDGET CONSULTATION

% The Cowbridge GEM

B news

Home UK World Politics US OceanRescue Science&Tech Business

Home News Sport What'sOn Motors ContactUs Digital Editions Q Our Papers v

‘More hard decisions ahead’ warns BCBC Welsh councils braced for cuts

Monday, 1 October 2018 - Local People E
E 12:13, UK, Sunday 16 September 2018

by GEM Staff Reporter - GEM Reporter
O@(wmer com/gem news editorial@glamorgan-gem.co.uk

Bridgend County Borough Council (BCBC)
is warning residents to expect some
difficult choices and major reductions in
services as it launches its ‘Shaping
Bridgend’s Future’ budget consultation for
2019-20.

Cyngor Bwrdeistrei

(]
NS,

A total of three media releases were issued to coincide with the start, middle and end of the
consultation to raise awareness and encourage participation. These were issued on 24
September, 15 October and 12 November.

The first was featured as a front page lead and double-page inner spread in the Glamorgan
Gazette dated 26 September. It was also prominently featured in the Glamorgan Gem
dated 19 September, and at Wales Online on 25 September.

Prior media work was carried out to prepare residents and the media for the scale of the
budget challenges and encourage their participation. This work ranged from media
statements to interviews with the Leader and Deputy Leader.

It resulted in related coverage in the Glamorgan Gem on 11 June and 20 July, at the BBC
News website on 20 July, at Wales Online on 14 August and on Sky News on 14
September.

Further coverage took place in the Glamorgan Gazette on 4 October and 25 October, in the
Glamorgan Gem on 1 October, 18 October and 21 November, at Wales Online on 10
October and 15 October, and in the South Wales Echo on 14 November.

‘;&
g
=
5 N
%
A
=

BRIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk


http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

The media releases were included at the media centre of the council’s website where they
were hyperlinked with associated social media posts, and a print advert ran in the
Glamorgan Gazette dated 7 November.

Information was also included in Cabinet member announcements for meetings of full
Council dated 19 September, 24 October and 21 November, and Seaside News columns
on 1 October and 1 November.

3.1.4 Wales Online digital package

An article on the budget consultation along with a short video was posted on Wales Online
in both English and Welsh. The article was pushed out in line with Wales Online breaking
news. A Facebook post through Wales Online partners was issued and boosted to
Facebook followers across Bridgend County Borough and a sponsored tweet was issued
on the Wales Online Twitter feed to drive traffic to the article.

The budget article was clicked on and fully read 139 times with 37,681 ad *impressions.
The article saw 365 page views and 342 people reached. The social media element saw
6,006 impressions and 26 engagements through the Twitter post and 11,118 impressions
and 126 clicks on the Facebook post.

The campaign was successful as it offered a total of 55,000 *impressions, and the
engagement/click-through rate was considerably higher than average. Average
engagement for native articles is 0.07%, and the budget article achieved five times this,
which means it was well placed to reach the target audience and was very relevant to them.

3.1.5 Internal communications
The consultation was promoted internally with a feature at the staff intranet homepage.

The autumn edition of the Bridgenders staff magazine incorporated a feature encouraging
staff who are residents of Bridgend County Borough to participate with the consultation.

It was also promoted with all-staff emails issued on 25 September, 27 September and on 12
October.

Information was included in Cabinet member announcements for meetings of full Council
dated 19 September, 24 October and 21 November.

3.1.6 Promotional materials

Posters, business cards and flyers promoting the consultation and engagement events were
circulated to the library service for use in their 12 branches, to town and community councils
and schools. Organisations including Bridgend carers’ café, the Stroke Association, Bridgend
College, Evergreen Hall and Caerau Men’s Sheds also received promotional materials. When
attending schools all pupils were given promotional materials to take home to their parents
and carers, including pencils which stated ‘I helped shape Bridgend’s future’.

A digital screen within Civic Offices reception displayed messages about the consultation
throughout the live period.

s
'&
a: )
D
6
-

BRIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

Pop-up banners were used at events and a window display was developed for Civic Offices.
Posters were also displayed in council offices.

3.1.7 Other promotional activities

The council’'s website was updated to promote the consultation with a link through to the
survey.

All internal and external emails sent from council staff promoted the consultation with a link
to the survey via a footer graphic.

Content was secured within the Bridgend Business Forum e-newsletters in the October and
November editions as well as in BAVO’s newsletter and e-newsletter sent to members during
September.

Targeted letters and emails were sent to school governing bodies, town and community
councils and BCCEF members.

Awen and Halo helped to raise the profile through their own channels such as social media
and by emailing their database of customers.

3.2 Engagement methods

This section details the mechanisms available for stakeholders to engage with the council
and share their views.

3.2.1 The budget survey

The survey was made available in a variety of formats to ensure inclusion across community
groups. A standard survey, easy-read, large print and youth version of the survey were all
made available in Welsh and English. All were available in paper format and online. The
same survey was replicated for Citizens’ Panel members and sent to them in the format of
their choice.

3.2.2 Community meetings/events

An email about the consultation proposals and how to share views was sent to local
community, equality and diversity groups. As part of this email, we offered to attend their
meetings to encourage and aid participation.

The consultation and engagement team attended 13 community group’s meetings to inform
people about the consultation and assist attendees to complete paper surveys (where
requested) or to share their views via the clicker-pad version of the survey.

. Number of
Event Equality group attendees
Whist Group Over 50s 12 _
Bridgend Carers Community Café Carers 39 p%‘“‘:

‘."&
5
=
7 g
%
3
3

BRIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

OAP Association Over 60s 25
Stroke Association Stroke recovery 29
Bridge Vision Blind/visually impaired 35
Bridgend Coalition for Disabled People

(BCDP) Disabilities 10
Bridgend Shout Over 50s 13
Caerau Men's Shed Over 50s 58
Community Hub Bridgend Learning disabilities 32
Creative Wednesdays Over 60s 4
Headway Mental health 18
Hearing Impair Deaf/deaf/hearing impaired 14
Bridgend Deaf Club Deaf/deaf 24
Total 313

3.2.3 Community engagement stands

11 public engagement stands were held in libraries throughout the county borough. Event
dates and times were published online at the beginning of the consultation and shared
through promotional activities.

Event Attendees
Sarn Library 14
Pencoed Library 18
Betws Library 45
Pyle Library 35
Bridgend Library 15
Maesteg Library 23
Aberkenfig Library 11
Y Llynfi Library 15
Pontycymmer Library 7
Porthcawl Library 12
Ogmore Vale Life Centre 16
Total 211

3.2.4 School engagement sessions

In order to gather the views of young people the consultation team attended an all-Bridgend
head-teachers’ event to promote the survey as well to ask individual schools to take part in
interactive sessions in order to gather feedback.

As a result, all nine comprehensive schools across the county borough took part in clicker-
pad sessions with an average of 87 young people taking part in each school (CCYD were
the exception to this - due to ICT issues a group of 70 young people completed paper
surveys).

BRIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

Interactive sessions took place in 15 primary schools and a total of 832 pupils in years five
and six took part in these pupil-led sessions. A separate report has been produced for
primary schools but the highlight report is detailed in section nine.

Event Number of attendees
Head teachers all-Bridgend meeting 67
Cynffig Comprehensive 70
Brynmenyn Primary 48
Afon Y Felin Primary 52
Croesty Primary 46
Pencoed Primary 30
YGG Llangynwyd 55
Blaengarw Primary 30
Caerau Primary 35
Maesteg Comprehensive 63
CCYD Comprehensive 70
St Roberts Catholic Primary 44
Pencoed Comprehensive 69
Ogmore Vale Primary 79
Bryncethin Primary 69
Cwmfelin Primary 49
Brynteg Comprehensive 84
Bryntirion Comprehensive 89
Litchard Primary 70
Archbishop McGrath High School 77
Coychurch Primary 26
Porthcawl! Primary 46
Porthcawl Comprehensive 86
Tremains Primary 104
Mynydd Cynffig Primary 104
Total 1562

3.2.5 Elected Member’s workshop

Two interactive workshops took place for elected members on 24 October 2018. A total of
31 members attended across the two sessions. Members were given the opportunity to
complete the survey using clicker-pads. The sessions were led by the chief executive, the
head of finance and the Deputy Leader also attended to feedback on any questions or
comments. Comments are added to the themes in section 7.2.23.

3.2.6 Bridgend Community Cohesion and Equality Forum (BCCEF)

The quarterly meeting of BCCEF took place during the live period of the budget
consultation on 4 October 2018. Members of the meeting were invited to take part in an
interactive clicker-pad session. The meeting consisted of members representing community ¢ 05

v":

<
9

-

BRIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

based organisations including the police, Bridgend College, BCDP, faith organisations,
EYST and the British Deaf Association. All organisations were provided with promotional
materials to promote the consultation within their individual community groups.

3.2.7 Bridgend Association of Voluntary Organisations (BAVO)

BAVO organised an event for their members to share their views on the MTFS proposals.
This was advertised on their website and on social media. The event was held in the St.
Johns’ Centre on Minerva Street on Wednesday 14 November. The event was attended by
the Leader and Deputy Leader of the council, who answered questions and queries raised
by attendees. 21 people attended the event. All attendees completed the survey via an
interactive clicker-pad presentation delivered by the consultation and engagement team.
Comments made during the event were recorded and are themed in section 7.2.23.

4. Response rate

In total, there were 5,288 interactions during the consultation. The response rate has been
segregated into several areas: consultation survey responses, engagement event attendees
and social media interactions.

Interactions Number
Survey completions 2677
Events/meetings/workshops 2148
Emails 9
Letters 1
Telephone calls 6
Social media comments 165
Social media Q&A 282
Total interactions 5288

We received 2677 survey responses in total (1,491 online submissions, 679 clicker-pad
submissions and 507 paper versions).

Survey type Online | Online | Paper Paper | Clicker- | Total
English | Welsh | English | Welsh pad

Standard 947 1 61 0 86 1095
Easy read 68 2 167 0 0 237
Large print 14 0 16 0 0 30
Citizens’ Panel 369 2 150 3 0 524
Youth 88 0 110 0 593 791
Total 1486 5 504 3 679 2677

There were 2148 attendees at the various events, meetings and workshops.

During the consultation period, there were 447 interactions on our social media channels.
This includes the social media Q&A session, where 282 interactions were recorded on
Twitter and Facebook.

Comments that were received by letter, email or telephone call have been themed and are
included in section 7.2.23.

10

L
oY
‘;’k )
13
<2
%
-
BRI

RIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

5. How effective was the consultation?

The budget consultation was conducted over an eight week period in which a range of
marketing methods were used to create awareness of the consultation as well as reach and
encourage stakeholders to engage with the council.

The data collection methods, which include the online survey, a paper survey, the Citizens’
Panel and a youth survey (aimed at 11-24 year olds) were all developed using plain English
to maximise understanding. The easy read survey was developed with the support of
Bridgend People First. These response methods were designed to give a consistency to the
survey across multiple platforms.

The youth version of the budget consultation was designed for young people aged 11-24.
This was available in paper and online formats (Welsh and English). The youth survey was
developed with the support of pupils from Porthcawl Comprehensive School

6. Headline figures

6.1 48% of respondents stated that they would not be willing to pay more council tax
in order to protect services (than the proposed 4.9% increase).

6.2 50% of respondents felt that leisure services should be protected.

6.3 50% of respondents felt that in order to make budget savings cultural services
could be reduced.

6.4 60% of respondents stated that they would be willing to pay more to access sports
facilities, pavilions and parks (10% stated significantly more and 50% stated a
small amount more).

6.5 53% of respondents disagreed with the proposal to ask schools to make budget
savings of 1% per year over the next four years.

6.6 48% of respondents agreed that nursery provision should be reduced to 15 hours
per week in order to make budget savings.

6.7 47% of respondents agreed that funding for post-16 transport should be removed
in order to make budget savings.

6.8 66% of respondents disagreed with the proposal to make savings through reducing
day centres or services.

6.9 79% of respondents stated that Blue Badge holders should pay for parking, 48%
stated Blue Badge holders should pay the same amount as non-Blue Badge
holders. 31% stated that Blue Badge holders should pay a reduced rate.

6.10 48% of respondents stated that the council should explore the option of charging
for shopmobility.

‘."&

H

11
=

BRIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

6.11 42% of respondents disagreed with the proposal to remove subsidies from bus
services.

6.12 46% of respondents agreed that the bus station should be closed in order to make
budget savings.

6.13 When asked about increased revenue within recycling and waste 53% of
respondents were willing to pay an increased charge to £20 for three bulky item
collection.

6.14 Most popular services to protect (through council tax or by comparing all
proposals) were schools, care of older people, services for disabled people and
leisure services.

6.15 Services most frequently selected to make cuts were libraries, arts centres and
theatres, sports and recreation services, weed spraying, funding for post-16
transport and separate collection for absorbent hygiene products.

7. Question and analysis - consultation survey

The consultation contained 23 questions related to current proposals to make savings
across a range of services as well as opportunities to increase revenue in areas such as
recycling and waste services. All questions were optional, so participants could chose to
answer all or some of the questions.

Respondents were also asked, taking all proposals into consideration to select three
proposals that they agreed (where cuts should be made) with and three proposals that they
disagreed with (services that they felt should be protected).

Within sections respondents were either asked to select the response that best represented
their opinion, or select from a scale of strongly agree to strongly disagree dependent on the
question type.

Respondents were also able to give qualitative responses to some of the questions and
these are themed within the report.

Where responses provided were not relevant to the question they have been themed in the
final qualitative section.

In the final question respondents could make any other comments about the consultation or
make recommendations about the budget for the next four years.

7.1 About you

The questions in this section were not available in the clicker-pad version of the survey. The
easy read survey did not include the question about employment status.

Respondents were asked how they heard about the consultation.

.
ko% :

RIDGEND

12

'l‘zc“.)‘- bun,"

jws]

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

2598 respondents

600 _ !
provided this
5o 484 information.
400 - 363 The most popular
responses were:
300 -
221 190 o council social
200 179 media
100 o direct email or
0 letter
& & o council website
Oé'\'b Oé'\®
é’\\": (,}\‘o
S
O
& ,@‘\
%Qos

400

1914 respondents provided their age

350

300

250
200
150
100

50

group:

19% of respondents were aged 35-44;
19% of respondents were aged 55-64;

18% of respondents were aged 45-54.

Respondents were then asked for their employment status.

&
£
e
13 g
-

BRIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk


http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

1772 respondents provided their
employment status.

41% of respondents informed us that
they were in full time employment;

25% of respondents informed us that
they were retired;

10% of respondents informed us that
they were students or trainees.

7.2 Survey questions

7.2.1 Council tax increase

Respondents were informed that council tax is, based on current figures, projected to rise
by 4.9% in 2019. Respondents were asked that if it could protect more services would they
be willing to pay more council tax.

Respondents were asked to select from options which represented a further increase of 1%
up to a total of 9.9% increase.

A total of 2241 people responded to this question.
48% of respondents did not agree, that in order to protect services, they would be willing to
pay more council tax. This was followed by 17% of respondents who would be willing to pay

only an additional 1%. 14% of respondents were willing to pay up to 9.9% additional council
tax in order to protect services.

14

www.bridgend.gov.uk

= | qanybons,

vﬂ.. i
ko‘b :

IDGEND



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

1200
1000
800
600
400
200

315

374
275

No, lam not  (+1%) £1.58 total (+2%) £1.85 total (+3) £2.12 total (+4%) £2.39 total (+5%) £2.66 total
willing to pay  weekly increase weekly increase weekly increase weekly increase weekly increase
more than 4.9%  per average per average per average per average per average
(£1.31 total house (17%) house (12%) house (7%) house (2%) house (14%)
weekly increase
per average
house) (48%)

S
N

7.2.2 Services to protect

Respondents were asked to select, in order of preference (1-3) the three services they felt
should be protected by council tax increases. This question also gave an option of not
protecting any services.

The three most popular services to be protected through council tax increases were:

e Schools
e Care of older people
e Services for disabled people

1200 1110 1118
1000
786
800
600
491 462
423 381
400 349
I - I I

200 -

o . 1l .

(2 Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q
%o(\ BN & qué‘ q,"/@ ?,6‘ & BN N3 ?6‘
S P8 & P % ¢ %
& & \° & & oF e~ A O
N2 N4 00 RY ) & \SQ/ 'ba}' .\(,Q' \é
oQ oQ (:(\ Q/C\ \\\\0 z’b » Q\ \)(4
& o° N (‘,\'2} X & L &
o D N o N X &
N N NG 6 & & & &
g R <& & & & 4 & &
© O S & > N4
© RS & ? & &
C Q/b . Q?‘ & @
f_)e N (&) o
@ KR )
3 O
S &
&
B
15
D N O

www.bridgend.gov.uk

BRIDGEND



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

Service Total times chosen | 1 2 3
None 109 97 2 10
Care of older people (£20.3m) 1110 495 | 346 | 269
Services for disabled people (£22.4m) 786 215 | 317 | 254
Schools (£89m) 1118 606 |312 | 200
Educational support services (£21m) 423 74 189 | 160
Children's social services (£18.8m) 491 111 | 168 | 212
Libraries, art centres and theatres (£3.1m) 209 43 68 98
Recycling and waste (£9.5m) 349 67 118 | 164
Sport and recreational services (£3.5m) 381 78 126 | 177
Highways, street lighting, infrastructure (£6.4m) 462 100 | 145 | 217

7.2.3 Services to make cuts

Respondents were asked to select, in order of preference (1-3) the three services they felt
should not be protected by council tax increases. Again this question included an option to
protect none of the services.

The three most popular services to not be protected through council tax increases were:

e Libraries, arts centres and theatres
e Sport and recreation services
¢ None, don’t protect any services through council tax

900 807
800
700 085
600 580
503
500 - 449 420
400 -
300 - 240 271 254
200 - 162
1 O 0 ] .
0 -
éo& O & Cg)@\ ,»@\ o 2 qﬂo@\ S W&
{;\9. \g?/l». 6\(‘/ 6\(9 \g,&. \({3). e\(‘/ \({/‘b- @\(S/
@ \@ S & 2 & > & S
R S %c‘,“o & & & bSb & &
e @ < X 2 §$
Q}Q e’bQ oé . ,b\rOQ/ (\b\' ,b(\ %9 K&,b‘%
© N R 5 0 P & &
ﬁ\o .. s'b QQ (&) o) é X
o & O 5 R & > &
e < 9 Q Q 2 & Q
(Pk <0 & & @ < @ &5
& '5\'\ '%b N (\6 ’&\\
RS 0(: (‘}\ > e?/
é (06 . 09‘ &
(_)Q/ N (¢)
& R o
S N
% N
'\505\
RS "

16

% ‘Q oY b"n"“’»

IDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

Total times chosen |1 2 3
None 580 544 | 13 23
Care of older people (£20.3m) 162 67 49 46
Services for disabled people (£22.4m) 240 82 81 77
Schools (£89m) 271 130 |70 71
Educational support services (£21m) 449 124 | 164 | 161
Children's social services (£18.8m) 254 58 95 101
Libraries, art centres and theatres (£3.1m) 807 421 | 229 | 157
Recycling and waste (£9.5m) 503 155 | 168 | 180
Sport and recreational services (£3.5m) 685 200 | 304 | 181
Highways, street lighting, infrastructure (£6.4m) 420 112 | 132 | 176

7.2.4 Halo Leisure

Respondents were informed of the current partnership arrangements in place with Halo
Leisure, and the savings already delivered through this partnership arrangement (over £1
million). Respondents were asked which statement best represented their opinion in
relation to further savings that could be made.

2502 people responded to this question.
50% of respondents stated that they did not think further savings should be made within
leisure services. This was followed by 42% of respondents stating that services should

reduce opening hours across one or more facilities. Only 8% of respondents said that they
believed savings should be made through the closure of facilities.

1400

1244

1200

1046

1000

800

600

400

212

0 - ‘
| think that we should reduce the | think that we should reduce the | think that leisure facilities and
amount of facilities available, e.g. amount of services available, e.g. a services should not be affected

closing a leisure centre or reduction in opening hours across  and should remain as they are
swimming pool (8%) one or more facilities (42%) (50%)

7.2.5 Awen Cultural Trust

Respondents were informed of the current partnership arrangements in place with Awen _
Cultural Trust, and the savings already delivered through this partnership arrangement p%‘“‘:

)

17

qes-bon

jws]

RIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

(£625,000). Respondents were asked which statement best represented their opinion in
relation to further savings that could be made.

A total of 2562 people responded to this question.
50% of respondents agreed with the statement that services should be reduced, 34% felt

that cultural services should remain as they are and 16% selected the statement that the
amount of facilities should reduce.

1400
1200
1000

800

600

403
400 -
0 = T T
| think that we should reduce the | think that we should reduce the | think that cultural services and

amount of facilities available, e.g.  amount of services available, e.g. facilities should not be affected and
closure of one or more libraries,  reduction in opening hours across  should remain as they are (34%)
community centres or theatres one or more facilities (50%)
(16%)

7.2.6 Youth clubs

Respondents were informed of the current availability of youth clubs across the county
borough, and the current attendance figures at these youth clubs. Respondents were asked
if they agreed that in order to save £26,000 the three remaining youth clubs should be
closed.

2542 people responded to this question.
The majority of respondents 52% either disagreed (26%) or strongly disagreed (26%) with

this proposal. 17% of respondents provided a neutral response and a total of 31% either
agreed (17%) or strongly agreed (14%) with this proposal.

18

www.bridgend.gov.uk

= | qanybons,

vﬂ.. i
ko‘b :

IDGEND



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

800
700 657
600
500
400
300
200
100

B
w
[\o)

Strongly agree (14%) Agree (17%) Neutral (17%) Disagree (26%) Strongly disagree
(26%)

In this question respondents were asked if they had any further comments on this proposal.
501 comments were received. All comments were themed (comments could contain more
than one theme) and these are detailed in the table below:

Theme No.
Unhappy with proposal 134
Youth clubs mean reduction in anti-social behaviour/saves money in long run 126
Cut the youth clubs 50
Other youth clubs to take over, e.g. scouts 32
Youth clubs do not take up as much of the budget as other services 26
Keep one youth club open 20
* Comment not relevant to question 20
Need more volunteering 16
Merge services (with Halo etc.) 15
Charge membership fees 14
Not a great number of attendees 14
More work to be done to make youth clubs better 11
General comment / query about budget and costs 5
Youth provision doesn't cover all areas of the borough 5
Don't understand enough to be able to make a decision 4
Reduce opening times 4
Survey feedback including comments about the question wording 3
Query on the cost to run the clubs 2

*Where responses provided were not relevant to the question they have been themed in section
7.2.23.

7.2.7 Outdoor sports facilities, pavilions and parks
Respondents were informed of the current subsidy provided to sports facilities pavilions and

parks. In order to recover some of the costs for these facilities respondents were asked
which statement best represented their opinion.

‘.”&
H
19 :
=

BRIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

A total of 2573 people responded to this question.

e 10% said they would be willing to pay significantly more to protect facilities;
e 50% said they would be willing to pay a small amount more to protect facilities;
e 40% said they would not be willing to pay any more to protect facilities.

1400 1295
1200 1026
1000

800

600

400 252

I

0 - ‘ ‘
I would be willing to pay I would be willing to pay a small | would be not be willing to pay any
significantly more to protect these amount more to protect these more to protect these facilities
facilities (10%) facilities (50%) (40%)

7.2.8 Schools budget

Respondents were asked whether they felt that in order to make a saving of £3.5 million per
year, schools should be asked to make a 1% budget saving per year over the next four
years. Respondents were asked to say whether they agreed with this proposal.

2487 people provided a response to this question.

The majority of respondents did not agree with this proposal, with a total of 53% either
disagreed (22%) or strongly disagreed (31%). 13% of respondents provided a neutral
response and 34% of respondents agreed with the proposal by either selecting strongly
agree (13%) or agree (21%).

800 758
700
600
500
400
300
200
100

0

Strongly agree (13%) Agree (21%) Neutral (13%) Disagree (22%) Strongly disagree
(31%)

In this question respondents were asked if they had any further comments on this proposal.
446 comments were received. All comments were themed (comments could contain more
than one theme) and these are detailed in the table below:

Theme No. .
No cuts to school budget/staff 266 p‘b"":

20

= | qanybons,

IDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

Agree with proposal 58
* Comment not relevant to question 21
Too much money spent on special schools 20
Parents to help out more with costs and volunteering 15
Look at admin costs 12
Remove unnecessary equipment/extra courses/school trips etc. 10
Close/merge schools 9
General comment / query about budget and costs 7
Don't understand enough to be able to make a decision 6
Take cuts from schools with more funding 5
School transport should be reduced 4
Council should challenge central government funding cuts 3
Change school holiday dates or times to save money 3
Schools to make money by renting out sports halls/fields 3
Schools should become more business like 2
Survey feedback including comments about the question wording 2

*Where responses provided were not relevant to the question they have been themed in section
7.2.23.

7.2.9 Nursery provision

Respondents were informed that in Bridgend County Borough, nursery school children were
provided with additional nursery provision above the statutory minimum (30 hours provided
against the 15 hour statutory provision). Respondents were informed that if the provision
were to be reduced back to 15 hours this would save £1.9 million per year over the next
four years.

Respondents were asked to select whether they agreed with this proposal.
2576 people provided a response to this question.
Overall there were more respondents (48%) who selected agree (29%) or strongly agree

(19%) for this proposal. 16% of respondents provided a neutral response and overall 36%
of respondents selected either disagree (16%) or strongly disagree (20%).

‘."&

H

21
=

BRIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk


http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

800

700

600

500 -

412

400 -
300 -
200 -

100 -

Strongly agree (19%) Agree (29%) Neutral (16%) Disagree (16%) Strongly disagree
(20%)

In this question respondents were asked if they had any further comments on this proposal.
337 comments were received. All comments were themed (comments could contain more
than one theme) and these are detailed in the table below:

Theme No.
Agree with proposal 87
Will prevent parents from working 79
Early education is important 51
Should be means-tested based on whether the parents work or not 37
Unhappy with proposal 27
Parents could contribute 18
Partly reduced 18
* Comment not relevant to question 12
General comment / query about budget and costs 7
Survey feedback including comments about the question wording 1
*Where responses provided were not relevant to the question they have been themed in section
7.2.23.

7.2.10 Post-16 transport

In Bridgend County Borough free school transport is provided to post-16 learners if they live
more than three miles from school (sixth form) or attend Bridgend College.

Respondents were asked to select whether they agreed with the proposal to remove this
funding which would save £400,000 over the next four years.

A total of 2573 people provided a response to this question.

20% of respondents strongly agreed with this proposal and a further 27% agreed with the
proposal to end funding for post-16 transport. 15% of respondents provided a neutral
response. 18% of respondents disagreed with the proposal and a further 20% strongly
disagreed with the proposal.

22

i
oY

“’é :
13
£

T

%
-

BR

IDGEND

)N /1/

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

800

692
700

600

500
400 -

300 -
200 -
100

Strongly agree (20%) Agree (27%) Neutral (15%) Disagree (18%) Strongly disagree
(20%)

In this question respondents were asked if they had any further comments on this proposal.
359 comments were received. All comments were themed (comments could contain more
than one theme) and these are detailed in the table below:

Theme No.
Disagree with proposal 106
Agree with proposal 76
Should be means tested 72
Could prevent children attending school 52
Reduced fees 44
* Comment not relevant to question 7
Merge school buses 2

*Where responses provided were not relevant to the question they have been themed in section
7.2.23.

7.2.11 Day centres

Respondents were asked whether day services provided to older people and people with
learning disabilities should be reduced in order to make savings of £280,000.

Respondents were asked to select whether they agreed with this proposal.

A total of 2585 people responded to this question.

Overall the majority of responses did not support the proposal to save money by reducing
day centre services. 66% of respondents either disagreed (34%) or strongly disagreed

(32%) with this proposal. 16% of respondents provided a neutral response and only 18% of
respondents agreed or strongly agreed with this proposal.

e
ko‘b :

IDGEND

23

= | qanybons,

www.bridgend.gov.uk


http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

1000 866 837
800
600
400 304
163
200
0 - ‘
Strongly agree (6%) Agree (12%) Neutral (16%) Disagree (34%) Strongly disagree
(32%)

In this question respondents were asked if they had any further comments on this proposal.
328 comments were received. All comments were themed (comments could contain more
than one theme) and these are detailed in the table below:

Theme No.
Disagree with proposal 141
Will result in loneliness/isolation 42
Reduce the hours/merge centres 32
Closing day centres will create further costs later on 29
Don't understand enough to be able to make a decision 16
Charge a small fee/means tested 16
Users should have access and transport to alternative facilities 16
Merge with third-sector partners 15
Cut the day centres 10
* Comment not relevant to question 7
General comment / query about budget and costs 4
*Where responses provided were not relevant to the question they have been themed in section
7.2.23.

7.2.12 Blue Badge parking

Respondents were informed that in Bridgend County Borough parking in council car parks
for people who have a Blue Badge is currently free of charge. It is proposed that in order to
create revenue people with a Blue Badge should be charged for parking.

Respondents were asked to select which statement best represented their opinion.

A total of 2580 people responded to this question.

e 48% of respondents stated that Blue Badge holders should pay the same as non-
Blue Badge holders to park in council car parks;

e 31% of respondents stated that Blue Badge holders should pay a reduced rate
compared to non-Blue Badge holders to park in council car parks;

e 21% stated that Blue Badge holders should not pay to park in council car parks.

‘."&

H

24
=

BRIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

1400
1228

1200 -

1000 -

800 -~

600 -

400 -~

200 -
0

| think people who have a Blue | think people who have a Blue | think people who have a Blue
Badge should pay the same as non- Badge should pay a reduced rate Badge should not pay for parking in
Blue Badge holders for parking in compared to non-Blue Badge council car parks (21%)
council car parks (48%) holders for parking in council car
parks (31%)

7.2.13 Shopmobility

In Bridgend, Shopmobility is provided within the town centre for a refundable deposit of £2.
The service is fully funded by Bridgend County Borough Council and costs £20,000 per
year.

Respondents were asked to select which statement best represented their opinion.
A total of 2577 people provided a response to this question.

e 17% of respondents stated that they thought Shopmaobility should close;

e 20% of respondents think Shopmobility should continue with reduced availability;

e 15% of respondents think Shopmobility should continue providing the current service
at no cost to the customer;

e 48% of respondents think the council should explore the option to keep the service
by charging customers to use Shopmobility.

vﬂ.. i
ko‘b :

IDGEND

25

= | qanybons,

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

1400
1250
1200
1000
800
600
400
200
0
I think shopmobility I think shopmobility | think shopmobility I think the council should
should close making 100%  should continue with  should continue providing explore the option to keep
saving (17%) reduced availability e.g.  the current service at no  the service by charging
three days per week (20%) cost to the customer (15%) customers to use
shopmobility (48%)

7.2.14 Subsidised buses

Respondents were asked if they agreed with the proposal to make further savings (in
addition to the £188,000 savings that were identified following a consultation in 17/18) by
removing the remaining subsidies for buses across the county borough. This would make a
further saving of £183,000 annually.

Respondents were asked to select whether they agreed with this proposal.

A total of 2580 people responded to this question.

42% of respondents disagreed with the proposal (24% disagreed and a further 18%

strongly disagreed). 35% of respondents agreed with the proposal and 23% gave a neutral
response.

800

584 596 617

600

4/6

w
(=]
~

400

200 -

0 |
Strongly agree (12%) Agree (23%) Neutral (23%) Disagree (24%) Strongly disagree
(18%)

In this question respondents were asked if they had any further comments on this proposal.
467 comments were received. All comments were themed (comments could contain more
than one theme) and these are detailed in the table below:

26

&

vﬂ.. i
ko‘b :

RIDGEND

qes-bon

jws]

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

Theme No.
The bus station is essential 82
** Comments about the bus station 82
Disagree with proposal 54
Results in isolation 47
Agree with proposal 42
Reduce buses/merge routes 39
Charge reduced fee instead of free bus pass 27
Don't understand enough to be able to make a decision 23
Encourage more to use public transport 14
Could affect town centre shopping 13
Smaller buses/taxis 11
* Comment not relevant to question 10
More cars on the road/not environmentally friendly 9
Certain routes should be removed 6
Hand over to private bus companies 2
General comment / query about budget and costs 6

*Where responses provided were not relevant to the question they have been themed in section
7.2.23.

** comments about the bus station were more relevant to the next question so have been added to
the themes in Bridgend Bus Station question below.

7.2.15 Bridgend Bus Station

Respondents were informed that a saving of £89,000 per year could be made if the bus
station in Bridgend town centre was to close. Bays outside the station would still be
accessible.

Respondents were asked to select whether they agreed with this proposal.

2509 people provided a response to this question.

46% of respondents agreed that the closure of the bus station should be considered in
order to make budget savings, with 22% stating strongly agree and a further 24% stating

agree. 14% of respondents provided a neutral response and overall 40% disagreed with
this proposal.

‘."&

H

27
-

BRIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

700
600 560
500 -
400 -
300 -
200 -
100 -

604

w
w
N

Strongly agree (22%) Agree (24%) Neutral (14%) Disagree (21%) Strongly disagree
(19%)

In this question respondents were asked if they had any further comments on this proposal.
420 comments were received. 82 comments have also been included from the previous
guestion. All comments were themed (comments could contain more than one theme) and
these are detailed in the table below:

Theme No.
Disagree with proposal 114
Bus station has public toilets 78
Need outside shelter/seats/toilets 61
Agree with proposal 58
Weather will be a problem 41
Anti-social behaviour in the bus station 27
Could affect town centre 26
Ask newsagents/cafes etc. to set up inside bus station 20
General comment / query about budget and costs 18
Issues with bus station becoming an empty building 17
Don't understand enough to be able to make a decision 12
Accessibility 7
Only open during peak hours 7
Safety issues 6
* Comment not relevant to question 4
Could cause further costs later on 3
Open in the winter, closed in the summer 3

*Where responses provided were not relevant to the question they have been themed in section
7.2.23.

7.2.16 Recycling and waste

Respondents were provided with four proposals which could create savings or increase
revenue over the next four years. Respondents were asked to rank the proposals in their
order of preference.

The proposals were:

e
ko‘b :

IDGEND

28

= | qanybons,

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

e Change household food waste bags from biodegradable to single use plastic,
potentially creating savings of £35k (74%) over the next four years;

e Cease the provision of providing ‘blue bags’ to households. The two bag restriction
will still apply, however householders will be able to use their own black bags,
potentially creating savings of £50k (38%) over the next four years;

e Cease the separate collection and recycling of absorbent hygiene products, e.g.
nappies, stoma bags and adult incontinence pads. An allowance would be made for
those who need this service for this to be treated as refuse. This would potentially
creating savings of £200k (36%) over the next four years;

e Reduce the opening hours of community recycling centres by one hour, potentially
saving £34k (36%) over the next four years.

When analysed the overall ranking for the proposals were:

Cease the provision of providing ‘blue bags’ to households;

Cease the separate collection and recycling of absorbent hygiene products;
Reduce the opening hours of community recycling centres by one hour;
Change household food waste bags from biodegradable to single use plastic.

PoONE

7.2.17 Garden waste

Respondents were asked whether they agreed with a proposal to increase the charge for
collection of garden waste in order to increase revenue.

A total of 2349 people responded to this question.

e 31% of respondents stated that they would not be willing to pay more than the
current charge of £28.30;

e 18% of respondents stated that they would be willing to pay £30.80, creating an
additional £12,500 in revenue annually;

e 15% of respondents stated that they would be willing to pay £33.30, creating an
additional £25,000 in revenue annually;

e 5% of respondents stated that they would be willing to pay £35.80, creating an
additional £37,500 in revenue annually;

e 31% of respondents stated that they would be willing to pay £38.30, creating an
additional £50,000 in revenue annually.

800 725
600 -~
436
400 - 350
200 -+ 112
0 |
£28.30 (EO revenue)  £30.80 (£12.5k £33.30 (£25k £35.80 (£37.5k £38.30 (£50k
(31%) revenue) (18%) revenue) (15%) revenue) (5%) revenue) (31%)
o‘b""..
S~
29
s
BRIDGEND
D 'ala

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

7.2.18 Three bulky items

Respondents were asked whether they agreed with a proposal to increase the charge for
collection of bulky items in order to increase revenue.

2379 people provided a response to this question.

e 28% of respondents stated that they would not be willing to pay more than the
current charge of £15.50;

e 19% of respondents stated that they would be willing to pay £17.75, creating an
additional £10,000 in revenue annually;

e 53% of respondents stated that they would be willing to pay £20, creating an
additional £20,000 in revenue annually.

1400
1200
1000
800 675
600 -

400 -
200 -~
0 -

£15.50 (£0 revenue) (28%) £17.75 (£10k revenue) (19%) £20 (£20k revenue) (53%)

o
(¥,
[NEN

At the end of this section, respondents were asked if they had any further comments about
recycling and waste. 257 comments were received. All comments were themed (comments
could contain more than one theme) and these are detailed in the table below:

Theme No.
Fly tipping will be a bigger problem if costs are increased 93
Bad service 25
Issues with single-use plastic 18
Promote recycling more 13
Charge more for bulky waste/garden waste 10
Too many bags

Residents to buy blue bags/food bags

General comment / query about budget and costs

Expensive already

Bulky waste items shouldn't be limited to three items

Encourage donations of bulky waste items to charities etc.

Don't cut recycling and waste budget

Be more environmentally friendly (should be able to recycle more etc.)

Bulky waste/garden waste should be free
Charge per bulky waste item rather than for three
Happy with service

Less frequent collections

=
o

gjoojol 01|10 |O) |0 | [ |©

‘."&

H

30
=

BRIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk


http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

Should be means tested

Consider private companies

Public to help out more

Reduce hours/days recycling centres are open
Concerns around absorbent hygiene collection
Fine those who don't recycle

NINW|A~~ O

7.2.19 Weed spraying

Respondents were informed that one of the current proposals is to reduce the amount of
times the council sprays weeds along the highways per year. In order to save £20,000 per
year it is proposed that weed spraying is reduced from twice per year to once per yeatr.
Respondents were asked to select whether they agreed with this proposal.

A total of 2415 people responded to this question.

44% of respondents did not agree with the proposal to reduce weed spraying to once per

year (24% disagreed and 20% strongly disagreed). 18% of respondents provided a neutral
response and 38% of respondents agreed with this proposal.

700
600
500
300 -
200 -
100

0 -

574 570

486

Strongly agree (14%) Agree (24%) Neutral (18%) Disagree (24%) Strongly disagree
(20%)

In this question respondents were asked if they had any further comments on this proposal.
373 comments were received. All comments were themed (comments could contain more
than one theme) and these are detailed in the table below:

Theme No.

Will make the area look untidy/affect tourism 68

Will affect road infrastructure 42

Don't see any spraying being done 40

Supports proposal - better for the environment 38

Danger to motorists - reduced visibility 25

Increase spraying 22

Supports proposal - saves money 21

Need to spray paths/pavements for access 20

Residents to do more 20

Japanese knotweed concerns 15 _

Transfer to town and community councils/work with partners 13 jo%‘“:

31 ‘3;
—['fl’?ID(_‘.F\[D
D N O

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

Community service/unemployed to do it
Prioritise areas

Maintain two sprays per year

Not cost effective

Use stronger weed killer

Stop planting flowers etc.

Health issues - asthma etc.
Negatively impacts jobs

* Comment not relevant to question
Supports proposal - better health
Unsure about this proposal 2

*Where responses provided were not relevant to the question they have been themed in section
7.2.23.

NINININWOIN|N [0 (©

7.2.20 Summary — services to protect

As a summary question respondents were asked to select three of the proposals outlined
within this consultation that should be protected.

The three most frequently selected services to protect were:
1. School budgets;

2. Day centres;
3. Leisure services.

vﬂ.. i
ko‘b :

IDGEND

32

= | qanybons,

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

1400

1200 -
1000 -
800
600 -
460 462 435
400 -
200
O -
A cg\°\ o <g\°\ S <§\°\ ,,;\°\ R ,,g\°\ ,,§\°\ <§\°\ ,§\°\ ,§\°\ S
AR N RN S AN AU
A A R A ) NN L L& e &
& &£ & & & & F O @60\ N \\Q’é o L
) 3 of o S < X & N e N
< QA RS 5 & & Q C < & < <
& P S ¥ @ K &S L
O \ Q o "N R -O X < D X Q >
o S ) > S & < S D &
R ORI A S S . I G N
'c)(.: ) S 6\e,\ Qg, ko Qé) Q& b\(\ Q/e Q n < KQ'
o & & TP SN &
AR R & @ KK ¢ & ©
EOERS SRS 4\6 K & N & <& . Q&
A ) SR AN P VO S
& & ® & & &
© NN Ay go@ o
3 o
. \’Ib
&

7.2.21 Summary — services to cut

As a summary question respondents were asked to select three of the proposals outlined
within this consultation that should be cut.

The three most frequently selected services to cut were:
1. End separate absorbent waste collection;

2. Reduce weed spraying;
3. End funding for post-16 home to school transport.

33

www.bridgend.gov.uk

BRIDGEND



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

900

793

800

700

600

500

400

300

200

100

7.2.22 Increasing revenue

As a summary question respondents were asked to rank the four revenue-generating
proposals outlined within this consultation in their order of preference.

When analysed the overall ranking for the proposals were:

Blue Badge holders to pay for parking;

Increase charges for garden waste;

Increase charges for three bulky items;

Consider increased charges for sports pitches and pavilions.

PoObE

7.2.23 Do you have any further comments that you would like to make on
the budget proposals for 2019/207?

Finally, respondents to the survey were asked if they would like to make any further
comments on the budget proposals for 2019/20.

In addition any final comments made following the completion of the clicker-pad interactive
sessions were recorded. p@,u:

&
£
el
34 z
-

BRIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

These comments, along with comments that were not relevant to individual proposal
guestions, were themed and are presented in the table below:

Theme No.
No more cuts to services 178
Cut council staff/wages/expenses 82
Ideas to generate money 80
Cut councillors/wages/expenses 77
Protect the most vulnerable 63
Issues with recycling and waste/environmental issues 47
Work more with third-sector/engage with community 42
Council tax isn't good value for money 34
Agree with proposals to save money 33
Look at internal costs to save money (admin, electricity etc.) 33
Difficult decision to be made/no further comments 31
Highways comments 28
Explore the effects of the cuts first 22
General comment / query about budget and costs 21
Positive survey/ question style feedback 21
Savings could cause further problems/costs in the future 20
Schools should save money 19
Neutral survey/question style feedback 19
Comments specific to political parties 18
Negative survey/question style feedback 18
Merge councils/departments within the council 17
Increase council tax 16
Need public toilets 16
Reduce hours/days of services instead of cutting them 15
Close non-essential services 13
Accessibility/equality issues 8
Cut down people claiming benefits/abusing Blue Badge 8
Unhappy with Cardiff City Deal 8
Remove costs associated with Welsh language 6
Comment not related to budget consultation 3

The majority of the responses related to no more cuts to services followed by cuts to
council staff wages.

8. Social media responses

During the consultation period there were 447 interactions on our social media channels,
282 of which were in response to the social media Q&A. The comments have been themed
and are detailed in the table below (comments could contain more than one theme):

Theme No.
Highways comments 52 g
35 z

BRIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

Not relevant — general council queries 46
Unhappy with proposals 37
Issues with recycling and waste 34
Cut council staff/wages/expenses 31
Ideas to generate money 26
Cut councillors/wages/expenses 22
Council tax revenue/new housing deals 19
More council tax, less services 18
Unhappy with Cardiff City Deal 18
Keep essential services 16
Survey/question style feedback 17
Unhappy with closure of public toilets 15
Council should challenge central government funding cuts 13
General comment/query about budget and costs 14
Business rate comments 11
Repairs to council building 11
Look after schools 10
Budget consultation events 7
Cost of sports/playing fields 7
Savings could cause future problems 6
Need to understand reasons for cuts 5
Merging of councils 5
General comment about the Q&A session 4
Cost of Welsh Language Standards 3

9. Primary schools workshops

Primary school workshops took place in 15 schools and included 832 Year 5 and Year 6
young people. The sessions were interactive and pupils were asked to comment on some of
the proposals within the consultation. The figures in this section are not included in the figures
within the main report. Young people were asked about a range of services in each session
however sessions were bespoke, pupil-led workshops and as a result not all services were
discussed in each session.

507 young people were asked the question about the reduction of day services.

350 328
300 65% did not agree with this proposal.
250 .
22% of young people asked this

200 question were unsure.
150 111
100 68 13% of those asked this question agreed

50 - . with the proposal to reduce day services.

0
Agree Unsure Disagree

‘."&

H

36
=

BRIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

315 young people were asked the question about removal of funding for post-16 transport.

250

200

150

100

50

0

187

215

Agree

Unsure Disagree

55% did not agree with this proposal.

23% did agree with this proposal to
make budget savings.

22% young people gave a neutral
response.

277 young people were asked whether the
remaining youth clubs.

council should continue to fund the three

160
140
120
100
80
60
40
20
0

134

49% of young people asked this
guestion felt that the youth clubs

should be closed.

13% gave a neutral response.

38% of young people who were

asked this question felt that the

youth clubs should remain open.

Agree

Unsure Disagree

590 young people were asked whether schools should be asked to make savings in their
budgets over the next four years.

38% of young people asked this question
did not think schools should be asked to
make savings.

37% however agreed that this saving
should be made.

25% of those asked gave a neutral
response to this question.

250
217 225
200
148
150
100
50
0
Agree Unsure Disagree
37

= | qanybons,

www.bridgend.gov.uk

A

IDGEND



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

392 young people were asked if they would be willing to pay more for sports pitches.

250 519 16% agreed that they would be willing to
pay more for sports pitches.
200
150 28% were unsure about this proposal.
100 3 56% did not agree with this proposal. They
felt the council should continue to fund
>0 . sports
0
Agree Unsure Disagree

388 young people had a discussed whether savings should be made by closing or reducing
Halo leisure services.

300 276 15% of young people asked this
guestion felt that some services could
250 be closed or reduced in order to save
200 money.
150
14% gave a neutral response.
100
59 53 _
50 71% of young people felt that leisure
0 - services were too important and that
. savings shouldn’t be made through
Agree Unsure Disagree .
reductions or closures.

139 young people were asked if savings should be made by closing or reducing Awen
cultural services.

30 18% of young people agreed that |
72 .
70 order to save money services should
be reduced or close.
60
50 30% gave a neutral response.
40 -
52% of young people asked this
30 2 question felt that services should
20 remain as they are.
10
0
Agree Unsure Disagree
0‘.8,4(...
38 z
BR

IDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

477 young people were asked about nursery provision.

250 45% of young people asked did not
agree that in order to make savings

215
200 187 nursery places should be reduced to 15
hours per week.
150
40% of young people did agree with
100 75 this proposal and a further 15% gave a
. neutral response.
50
0

Agree Unsure Disagree

The proposal in relation to the potential closure of the bus station in Bridgend town centre
was discussed with 194 young people.

120 57% of young people asked this

guestion did not agree that the bus
100 station should be closed.
80
65 34% of young people agreed with this
60 proposal in order to make budget
savings.
40
18
20
0

Agree Unsure Disagree

174 young people were asked if people with a Blue Badge should pay to park in council car

parks.
120 58% of young people did not agree
101 with this proposal and felt that
100 someone with a blue badge should
80 park for free.
60 28% of young people asked this
40 question said that they did think that
someone with a Blue Badge should
20 pay the same as someone without a
0 Blue Badge.
Agree Unsure Disagree
14% of those asked were unsure.
39 ‘;b

jws]

RIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

Young people were asked what was important to them in their communities. Young people
in Years 5 and 6 told us that the most important services to them are school, followed by their
houses and shops followed by parks, bridges, traffic lights and sports pitches.

Young people were asked to make any further comments on services that they would like to
protect:

e local food places free for homeless
e public toilets

e social services for everyone
movie theatres

schools for autism

hospitals

house services

parks

electricity

provide food for food banks
sports equipment
defibrillators

healthcare

Mental health

Mental health of prisoners

10. Conclusion
10.1 Prioritising particular services

When asked the question about services to be protected through council tax increases, the
three most popular services to be protected were:

e Schools
e Care of older people
e Services for disabled people

The least popular services to be protected through council tax increases were:
e Libraries, arts centres and theatres
e Sport and recreation services
e None, don’t protect any services through council tax

When presented with all proposals as a summary question, respondents selected the
following areas to protect:

e School budgets;

e Day centres;
e Leisure services.

e
ko‘b :

IDGEND

40

= | qanybons,

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

In the same summary question the most frequently selected services to cut were:

e End separate absorbent waste collection;
e Reduce weed spraying;
e End funding for post-16 home to school transport.

10.2 Budget proposals — savings
The proposals to make savings that were supported by respondents were:

Reduce services provided by Awen Cultural Trust (50%)

Reduce nursery provision to 15 hours per week (48%)

Remove funding for post-16 transport (47%)

Close Bridgend Bus Station (46%)

Blue Badge holders to pay for parking in council car parks (79%)

The council should explore the option of charging for shopmobility (48%)
Charge more for collection of three bulky items (53%)

The proposals that were not supported by respondents were:

Closure of Halo Leisure facilities (50%)
Closure of youth clubs (52%)

Reduction in schools budgets (53%)
Reduction in day centres/services (66%)
Removal of bus subsidies (42%)
Reduce weed spraying (44%)

10.3 Increasing revenue

When asked about increasing revenue and protecting services through increased council
tax payments the majority of respondents did not want to pay more than the predicted 4.9%
rise in council tax.

60% of respondents were willing to pay more to access sports pitches, pavilions and parks.

79% of respondents started that Blue Badge holders should pay for parking in council car
parks.

10.4 Summary

A sample of 2,677 survey completions is robust and is subject to a maximum standard error
of +1.96% at the 95% confidence level. Therefore, we can be 95% confident that responses
are representative of those that would be given by the total adult population, to within
+1.88% of the percentages reported.

This means that if the total adult population of Bridgend had taken part in the survey and a
statistic of 50% was observed, we can be 95% confident that the actual figure lies between
48.04% and 51.96%.

‘."&

H

41
=

BRIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

The response to the consultation demonstrated a significant increase on previous years, with
engagement across a range of community groups, schools and organisations.

The consultation document was available in a variety of formats: standard; easy-read; large
print and youth in Welsh and English. Respondents were able to select online or paper
surveys in all formats.

A total of 2677 survey responses were received. 1491 online surveys were received. 507
paper surveys and 679 surveys were completed during interactive sessions. This
demonstrates a 44% increase on last year’s survey completions. A particular increase can
be noted in youth survey completions, where there is a 553% increase compared to last year.

Survey type 2017 2018 +/-
Standard 1181 1095 -7.3%
* Easy read /large print (accessible surveys) 51 267 +423.6%
** Citizens’ Panel 505 524 +3.8%
Youth 121 791 +553%
Total 1858 2677 +44.1%

* For the first time an easy read version of the survey was available, easy read and large print
surveys have therefore been analysed together as accessible surveys in the table above.

** In 2017 the survey was sent to 1609 Citizens Panel members. The 2017 response rate
therefore represented a 31% response rate from Citizens’ Panel members. In 2018 the
Citizens’ Panel members had reduced to 1096. The 2018 response rate of 524 therefore
represents a 48% response rate from Citizens’ Panel members.

The consultation and engagement team attended 53 events, meetings and workshops during
the live period resulting in 2148 face to face interactions with people in events. In 2017, face
to face engagement totalled 152 so 2018’s figure represents an increase of 1313%. This is
due in large-part to attending schools across the county borough.

All response types have been analysed and are included in the main report. 832 young people
in years 5 and 6 also had the opportunity to engage in the consultation however their
responses are reported separately.

880 people told us that they wanted to be kept up to date with the consultation outcome.
393 provided their details to sign up for the Citizens’ Panel.

894 people provided their details to enter the prize draw.

This report is to be shared with Cabinet in order to inform the MTFS for 2019/20 and further
into 2020-2023.

¥

;
H

42

-

BRIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

11

2.1

2.2

3.1

4.1

Agenda Iltem 5

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
REPORT TO CABINET
18 DECEMBER 2018
REPORT OF THE INTERIM HEAD OF FINANCE
CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2018-19 TO 2027-28
Purpose of Report

The purpose of this report is to seek agreement from Cabinet to present a report to
Council for approval for a revised capital programme for 2018-19 to 2027-28.

Connection to Corporate Plan / Other Corporate Priorities

This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate priorities:-

1. Supporting a successful economy — taking steps to make the county a
good place to do business, for people to live, work, study and visit, and to

ensure that our schools are focused on raising the skills, qualifications and
ambitions of all people in the county.

2. Helping people to be more self-reliant — taking early steps to reduce or
prevent people from becoming vulnerable or dependent on the Council and its
services.

3. Smarter use of resources — ensuring that all its resources (financial,

physical, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as
possible and support the development of resources throughout the community
that can help deliver the Council’s priorities.

Capital investment in our assets is a key factor in meeting the Council’s Priorities as
set out in the Council’s Corporate Plan.

Background

On 28th February 2018 Council approved a capital programme covering the period
2018-19 to 2027-28 as part of the Medium Term Financial Strategy. Since then,
additional schemes have been approved by Council including the Enterprise Hub
Development Programme, new classrooms at Cwmfelin Primary School, Porthcawl
Regeneration and Waterton Depot, along with a number of externally funded
schemes.

Current situation / proposal.
Since the programme was last approved, a number of new schemes have been

progressed which require that Council approve changes to the capital programme.
These are outlined below.

Page 65



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

21st Century Schools Band A Programme — Pencoed Primary School

Despite site investigation works being undertaken in advance of letting the Pencoed
Primary School construction contract, the site required significant cut and fill activities
which were not originally anticipated. This had a detrimental impact on the overall
cost of the scheme, resulting in the project costs increasing by £200,000. In order to
meet this additional cost, projected under spends for other Band A schemes will be
used to offset the additional spend and re-balance the remaining programme.
Therefore, £150,000 and £50,000 will be vired from the Brynmenyn Primary School
and Garw Valley South schemes respectively, to the Pencoed Primary School
scheme. Also, an additional £20,000 will be transferred from the school
modernisation retention budget to offset increased costs relating to the highways
works.

Cwmfelin Primary School — Accommodation

On 20th June 2018 Council approved the inclusion of a budget of £165,000 in the
capital programme for the provision of additional accommodation at Cwmfelin
Primary School. However, following design development, the original project estimate
was deemed insufficient and, despite a value engineering exercise being undertaken,
a revised project cost has been received of £235,000 which equates to an additional
£70,000 funding over and above the approved budget. The additional funding will be
vired from the school modernisation retention budget.

Multi Agency Safequarding Hub (MASH)

In October 2017 Council approved a total scheme budget of £205,000 to meet the
capital investment required to establish the MASH in the preferred premises. This
was to cover:

£155,000 for the procurement of furniture.
£50,000 to install the required ICT infrastructure to support collaborative working.

Costs were to be split between the Council and the MASH partners, with Bridgend
funding 40%.

However, the MASH has now moved into one wing of Raven’s Court, so the costs
are considerably less than anticipated due to the existing ICT infrastructure being in
place along with an element of furniture. The total scheme cost has been finalised at
£86,409 with contributions from partners of £49,525, leaving Bridgend to pay
£36,884. As the scheme is complete the budget can be reduced within the capital
programme to reflect actual spend. Bridgend’s contribution is being funded from a
contribution from the Change Fund so this will release funding of £45,116 for other
schemes.

Agile Working

A report was presented to Council in October 2015 seeking approval for capital
funding of £1.217 million to deliver agile working, including physical works at
Sunnyside House, a scanner, and investment in laptops, plus replacement, and
“follow me” phone capability. The investment in ICT was dependent on securing a
tenant for Raven’s Court.

Page 66



4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

As members will be aware, following work undertaken under the Rationalising the
Estate programme, and following decisions on where to place the MASH, a decision
has been taken to no longer pursue the active marketing of Raven’s Court.
Consequently the investment initially identified is no longer required at this time. A
small amount of funding has been spent to date on undertaking DDA works, leaving
a balance of £1.201 million to be de-committed and used to fund other schemes.

Cemetery Extensions

Funding of £360,000 was approved by Council in the MTFS 2018-19 to 2021-22
towards extensions to Porthcawl and North Cornelly cemeteries. However, following
further investigation and feasibility works, it is estimated that the total cost to
complete these works will be £530,000, which will require an additional £170,000.
There is land available at both of these sites to extend the plots and infrastructure.
However the costs to evaluate and mitigate environmental and ecological impacts
from the extensions is now expected to be significantly higher than originally
anticipated. The cost of the extensions will be met from prudential borrowing, the
annual cost of which will be funded from the income from internments, as the service
operates on a full cost recovery basis.

Fleet

The Council has an ageing Highways fleet of vehicles with some registrations dating
from 2009 with vehicles at or beyond their economic life, leading to increasing
maintenance costs. A capital budget of £1.64 million is required for the purchase of
replacement highway maintenance vehicles including gritters, gulley cleansing,
elevated platforms, schools mini bus and tipping lorries. The vehicles are to be
funded from within clients’ existing revenue budgets, through revenue contributions
to capital or prudential borrowing. Large commercial vehicles ordered in 2018 would
have a delivery time of between 9 and 12 months due to build times for specialist
body types i.e. elevated platforms, gulley cleansing and winter gritting vehicles. In the
interim any vehicles currently in use within the Borough Council including lease
expiry vehicles would have to be extended until replacement vehicles are available.

ICT Rolling Programme

Following a review of the ICT estate within the Council, it was identified that five
hundred desktop PCs were more than five years old and had no warranty support. A
procurement exercise was carried out for replacement PCs which resulted in a total
cost to replace of £346,375. There is a capital budget of £120,000 already available
within the capital programme, funded from an earmarked reserve, so this will be
increased by £226,375 and funded from a revenue contribution from the existing ICT
rolling programme budget.

Porthcaw!l Resort Investment Focus (PRIF)

A report was presented on 31st January 2017 to update Cabinet on progress in
relation to the development of the EU funded, Porthcawl Resort Investment Focus
(PRIF) Programme. The total value of Bridgend Council’s activity for the PRIF
scheme was £2.555 million, which included funding from European Regional
Development Fund (ERDF) grant of £1,565,940 and match funding of £989,060. The

Page 67



4.10

411

4.12

report to Cabinet explained that costs were still subject to final confirmation, which in
part included determination of final costs following procurement processes.

Now that the major procurement exercises have been completed, the PRIF scheme
has increased to a total value of £2,924,000. The ERDF grant value is currently fixed
at £1,565,940 with a revised match funding requirement of £1,358,060. The
Council’s match funding is currently made up of a range of external resources and
Council funds, including £881,000 of Strategic Regeneration capital and revenue
funding, an earmarked reserve £100,000 and £277,000 of Coastal Communities
Funding. This re-profile has been completed, agreed by the Porthcawl Programme
Board and submitted to the funder. If opportunities arise to access further external
funds, either through ERDF or other sources then these will be targeted in an effort to
further reduce the requirement for Council resources.

Reqistrars

There is current significant commercial interest in the land and building (Ty’r Ardd)
that the BCBC Registrar’s Office and Awen’s Reference Library operate from. This
has coincided with an increase in wedding cancellations at the Ty’r Ardd site due to
the works that are taking place on the adjacent land. This work will increase over the
coming year and is likely to cause a further increase in wedding cancellations, risking
the financial viability of the service.

Feasibility work has been undertaken on relocating the Registrar’s Office to a core
BCBC building and the service can be accommodated on the ground floor of Civic
Offices. This would benefit the authority by providing a one-off capital receipt from
the sale of the land as well as ongoing revenue savings from the closure of a
building. It would also benefit the service through helping to safeguard its budget
position and providing a less isolated and more centrally based building for the
service to operate from. The indicative capital budget that will be needed to remodel
the area of the Civic Offices that will be affected is £275,000 and this includes
creating a patio area for wedding photos. The anticipated capital receipt, as indicated
in the draft valuation report, is expected to be significantly more than the cost of the
works.

Welsh-Medium Capital Grant

Welsh Government (WG) has made £30 million available across Wales for projects
dedicated to supporting and growing the use of the Welsh language in education,
and to assist the delivery of WG’s ongoing commitment to achieve a million Welsh
speakers by 2050. Bridgend was awarded £2.6 million in order to create Welsh-
medium childcare provision in Bettws, Ogmore Valley, Bridgend Town and
Porthcawl. The four projects are allocated £650,000 each.

A report is due to be presented to Council to update the funding package for the 21t
Century Band B Programme following discussions with, and announcements from,
Welsh Government with regard to proposed funding options and intervention rates.
Should this report be approved, then any changes will be built into the final capital
programme presented to Council as part of the Medium Term Financial Strategy in
February 20109.

Page 68



4.13

5.1

6.1

7.1

8.1

9.

9.1

A revised capital programme is attached as Appendix 1 to this report, which also
includes a number of other adjustments required to the capital programme to reflect
new external funding approvals and changes to expenditure profiles across financial
years. This shows a total revised programme of £211.185 million, of which £138.408
million is met from BCBC resources, including General Capital Funding from Welsh
Government, and £72.777 million met from external resources.

Effect upon Policy Framework and Procedure Rules
There is no effect upon the policy framework or procedure rules.
Equality Impact Assessment

Projects within the capital programme will be subject to the preparation of Equality
Impact Assessments before proceeding.

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Implications

The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of this
report. As the report is for information it is considered that there will be no significant
or unacceptable impacts upon the achievement of wellbeing goals/objectives as a
result of this report. Specifically the development of a 10 year capital programme,
which reflects the Council’s affordability in terms of capital receipts and borrowing,
supports the principle of sustainability over the long term.

Financial Implications

The financial implications are outlined in the body of the report. Any capital receipts
released as a result of schemes being removed from the capital programme will be
re-allocated to other schemes already included within the programme, but funded
from external borrowing, to reduce potential borrowing costs and therefore reduce the
pressure on the revenue budget.

Recommendations

It is recommended that Cabinet agrees that the revised Capital Programme be
submitted to Council for approval.

Gill Lewis
Interim Head of Finance and Section 151 Officer
December 2018

Contact Officer: Deborah Exton

Group Manager — Financial Planning and Budget Management

Telephone: 01656 643604

Email:

deborah.exton@bridgend.qgov.uk

Page 69


mailto:deborah.exton@bridgend.gov.uk

Postal Address : Raven’s Court
Brewery Lane
Bridgend
CF31 4AP
Background documents:
MTFS Report to Council — 28 February 2018
Report to Council: Enterprise Hubs Development Programme — 25 April 2018

Report to Council: Cwmfelin Primary School Capital Project — 20 June 2018

Report to Council - 21 November 2018

Page 70



T/ 9bed

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2018-2028 APPENDIX 1
Total 2018-2028 2018-2019 CUMULATIVE
Council
Approvals
Improvement BCBC External | Total Costs since Feb New Revised
Priority Total Cost | Funding | Funding | to 31-3-18 |Feb 2018 2018 Approvals| Vire | Slippage | 2018-19 | 2019-2020 | 2020-2021 | 2021-2022 | 2022-2023 | 2023-2024 | 2024-2025 | 2025-2026 | 2026-2027 | 2027-2028 | Total 2018 - 2028
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Education & Family Support
Pen Y Fai Primary School IP3 362 362 - 6,877 357 - - - 5 362 - - - - - - - - - 362
Y Dderwen Comprehensive School IP3 155 155 - 39,333 150 - - - 5 155 - - - - - - - - - 155
Coety/Parc Derwen Primary School IP3 56 56 - 8,504 - - - - 56 56 - - - - - - - - - 56
Additional Learning Needs IP3 56 56 - 4,063 - - - - 56 56 - - - - - - - - - 56
Garw Valley South Primary Provision IP3 4,519 3,896 623 6,240 841 - - -50 3,728 4,519 - - - - - - - - - 4,519
Garw Valley Primary Highways Works IP3 146 146 - 254 - - - - 146 146 - - - - - - - - - 146
Pencoed Primary School IP3 4,751 4,751 - 6,282 216 - - 200 4,335 4,751 - - - - - - - - - 4,751
Pencoed School Highways Works IP3 115 115 - 305 - - - 20 95 115 - - - - - - - - - 115
Brynmenyn Primary School IP3 305 44 261 8,044 166 - - -150 289 305 - - - - - - - - - 305
Brynmenyn Primary Highways Works IP3 181 95 86 626 - - - - 181 181 - - - - - - - - - 181
21st Century Schools Band B IP3 43,200 22,772 20,428 - 120 - - - - 120 1,616 3,243 16,533 16,595 4,521 572 - - - 43,200
Highways Schemes Band B Schools IP3 500 500 - - - - - - - - - 500 - - - - - - - 500
Heronsbridge Special School 1P3 53 53 - 247 - - - - 53 53 - - - - - - - - - 53
Cwmfelin Primary IP3 235 235 - - - 165 - 70 - 235 - - - - - - - - - 235
Welsh Medium Childcare Provision IP3 2,600 - 2,600 - - - - - - - 180 320 1,094 980 26 - - - - 2,600
Schools Modernisation Retentions IP3 377 377 - - 475 -8 - -90 - 377 - - - - - - - - - 377
Maesteg Comprehensive School Highways Improvements 1P3 88 88 - 412 80 - - - 8 88 - - - - - - - - - 88
Schools Traffic Safety 1P3 297 297 - 203 289 - - - 8 297 - - - - - - - - - 297
Education S106 Schemes IP3 97 - 97 88 - - 97 - - 97 - - - - - - - - - 97
Complex and Medical Needs Works in Schools IP3 593 593 - 82 370 - - - 163 533 60 - - - - - - - - 593
Total Education and Family Support 58,686 34,591 24,095 81,560 3,064 157 97 - 9,128 | 12,446 1,856 4,063 17,627 17,575 4,547 572 - - - 58,686
Social Services and Well-being
Adult Social Care
Extra Care Facilities P2 2,222 2,222 - 778 1,497 - - - 725 2,222 - - - - - - - - - 2,222
Bridgelink 1P2 - - - - 30 - - -30 - - - - - - - - - - - -
Care Standards Act NONPTY 98| 98 - 268 100 - - - -2 98 - - - - - - - - - 98
Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) 1P2 87| 37 50| - 105 - -118 - 100 87 - - - - - - - - - 87
ARCH - Healthy Living and Wellbeing Centre 1P2 500 100] 400 - 500 - - - - 500 - - - - - - - - - 500
Children's Residential Accommodation Hub - Newbridge House 1P2 600 600 - - 600 - - - - 600 - - - - - - - - - 600
Total Social Services and Well-being 3,507 3,057 450 1,046 2,832 - -118] -30| 823 3,507 - - - - - - - - - 3,507
Communities
Street Scene
Town Beach Revetment Sea Defence, Porthcawl IP1 2,241 560 1,681 1,059 2,470 - 75 - -304 2,241 - - - - - - - - - 2,241
Eastern Promenade, Porthcawl IP1 383 96 287 24 - - 383 - - 383 - - - - - - - - - 383
Highways Structures IP3 2,000 2,000 5 200 200 - - - - 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 2,000
Highways Maintenance IP3 2,500 2,500 5 250 250 - - - - 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 2,500
Replacement of Street Lighting Columns/ River Bridge Protection
Measures P3 4208 4,208 ] 593 400 - - 34 174 608 400 400 400 400 400 400 400 400 400 4,208
Road Safety IP1 81 81 - 349 - - - 81 - 81 - - - - - - - - - 81
Fleet Vehicles 1P3 2,062 2,062 - 452 500 - - - -310 190 1,872 - - - - - - - - 2,062
Re-locate Household Waste Recycling Centre - West IP3 1,322 1,322 E 6 1,320 - - - -1,320 - 1,322 - - - - - - - - 1,322
Parks Pavilions 1P3 1,000 1,000 - - 1,000 - - - -850 150 850 - - - - - - - - 1,000
Aberfields Playing Fields IP3 11 11 - - - - - - 11 11 - - - - - - - - - 11
Bridge Strengthening - A4061 Ogmore Valley 1P1 2,093 2,093 - 356 50 - - -34 77 93 2,000 - - - - - - - - 2,093
Communities Minor Works 1P3 100 100 - - - - - 100 - 100 - - - - - - - - - 100
Residents Parking Bridgend Town Centre 1P1 128 128 - 24 128 - - - - 128 - - - - - - - - - 128
Remedial Measures - Car Parks IP1 215 215 - 1 110 - - 71 34 215 - - - - - - - - - 215
Public Rights of Way 1P3 40 40| - 137 - - - 40 - 40 - - - - - - - - - 40
Transport Grant Scheme - Safe Routes to School IP3 950 - 950 - - - 950 - - 950 - - - - - - - - - 950
Road Safety Improvements 1P3 690 400 290 - 400 - 290 - - 690 - - - - - - - - - 690
METRO National Cycle Network 1P1 150 - 150 302 - - 150 - - 150 - - - - - - - - - 150
Retaining Wall Replacement, Bettws IP3 137 137 - 38 100 - - - 37 137 - - - - - - - - - 137
Civil Parking Enforcement Vehicle IP3 57 57 9 11 68 - - - -11 57 - - - - - - - - - 57
City Deal IP1 43,590 9,113 34,477 2,285 1,888 - - - -191 1,697 2,479 2,593 4,080 4,337 6,827 6,840 6,854 6,869 1,014 43,590
Carriageway Resurfacing & Renewal of Footways IP3 5,704 5,704 - - 2,000 - - - - 2,000 2,000 1,704 - - - - - - - 5,704
Car Park Pay and Display Machines IP3 85 85 - - 85 - - - - 85 - - - - - - - - - 85
Extension to Cornelly Cemetery NONPTY 314 314 - - 190 - 124 - - 314 - - - - - - - - - 314
Extension to Porthcawl Cemetery NONPTY 216 216 - - 170 - 46 - - 216 - - - - - - - - - 216
Street Lighting Energy Efficiency IP3 2,500 2,500 - - 300 - - - - 300 1,100 1,100 - - - - - - - 2,500
Regeneration & Development
Porthcawl Resort Investment Focus IP1 2,188 797 1,391 111 - - 1,097 535 - 1,632 484 72 - - - - - - - 2,188
Porthcawl Regeneration IP1 2,643 2,643 - - - - - - - - - 2,643 - - - - - - - 2,643
Special Regeneration Funding IP1 1,272 1,272 - - 1,372 -60 - -758 -454 100 607 565 - - - - - - - 1,272
Porthcawl Townscape Heritage Initiative IP1 480 270 210) 683 35 - 70 160 - 265 215 - - - - - - - - 480
Business Support Framework IP1 183 183 - - - - - 63 - 63 60 60 - - - - - - - 183
Llynfi Valley Development Programme IP1 2,400 - 2,400 - 2,400 - - - -2,400 - 2,400 - - - - - - - - 2,400
Maesteg Town Hall Cultural Hub IP1 4,948 1,080 3,868 220 - - - - - - 500 2,830 1,618 - - - - - - 4,948




2/ abed

Total 2018-2028 2018-2019 CUMULATIVE
Council
Approvals
Improvement BCBC External | Total Costs since Feb New Revised
Priority Total Cost | Funding | Funding | to 31-3-18 |Feb 2018 2018 Approvals| Vire | Slippage | 2018-19 | 2019-2020 | 2020-2021 | 2021-2022 | 2022-2023 | 2023-2024 | 2024-2025 | 2025-2026 | 2026-2027 | 2027-2028 ] Total 2018 - 2028
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Smart System and Heat Programme IP1 250 250 - - 100 - - - - 100 100 50 - - - - - - - 250
Nantymoel Community Facilities (former Berwyn Centre) NONPTY 200 200 - - 200 - - - - 200 - - - - - - - - - 200
Property
Corporate Landlord - Energy Savings Strategy IP3 1,300 1,300 - - 1,300 - - - -1,300 - 635 665 - - - - - - - 1,300
Enterprise Hub - Innovation Centre IP3 3,522 1,174 2,348 - 170 285 - - -130 325 658 2,452 42 45 - - - - - 3,622
Minor Works IP3 12,268 12,268 - - 1,540 - - -262 120 1,398 1,830 1,130 1,130 1,130 1,130 1,130 1,130 1,130 1,130 12,268
Civic Offices External Envelope IP3 54 54 - 2,496 - - - - 54 54 - - - - - - - - - 54
Agile Working (Rationalisation of Admin. Estate) IP3 - - - 16 621 - -621 - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Relocation of Depot Facilities IP3 951 951 - 225 3,816 - -| -3,200 335 951 - - - - - - - - - 951
Waterton Upgrade IP3 8,144 8,144 - - - - -| 3,200 - 3,200 4,944 - - - - - - - - 8,144
Relocation of Registrars IP3 275 275 - - - - 30 - - 30 245 - - - - - - - - 275
Non-Operational Assets IP3 480 480 - 520 480 - - - - 480 - - - - - - - - - 480
Community Projects IP3 728 728 - 480 264 - - - 14 278 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 728
Total Communities 115,063 67,011 48,052 10,838] 23,927 225 2,594 30 -6,414| 20,362 25,201 16,764 7,770 6,412 8,857 8,870 8,884 8,899 3,044 115,063
Chief Executive's
ICT
Investment in ICT IP3 300 300 - - 300 - - - - 300 - - - - - - - - - 300
Digital Transformation IP3 520 520 - 480 520 - - - - 520 - - - - - - - - - 520
ICT Laptop Replacement (Life Expired) 1P3 327 327 - 223 300 - - - 27 327 - - - - - - - - - 327
Civic Desktop PC's IP3 346 346 - - - - 226 - 120 346 - - - - - - - - - 346
Digital Meeting Spaces IP3 129 129 - 21 - - - - 129 129 - - - - - - - - - 129
Housing / Homelessness
Housing Renewal / Empty Properties IP1 1,000 1,000 - 544 100 - - - - 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 1,000
Housing Renewal/Disabled Facilities Grants P2 22,209 22,209 - 7,343 2,650 - - - -291 2,359 2,650 2,150 2,150 2,150 2,150 2,150 2,150 2,150 2,150 22,209
Enable Grant P2 180 180 - - 180 - - 180 - - - - - - - - - 180
Brynmenyn Homelessness Unit 1P2 119 119 - 1 - - - - 119 119 - - - - - - - - - 119
Total Chief Executive's 25,130 24,950 180 8,612 3,870 - 406 - 104 4,380 2,750 2,250 2,250 2,250 2,250 2,250 2,250 2,250 2,250 25,130
Unallocated 8,799 8,799 - . - - - - - - - - - 586 565 1,483 2,055 2,055 2,055 8,799
Total Expenditure 211,185 138,408 72,777 102,056 | 33,693 382 2,979 - 3,641 | 40,695 29,807 23,077 27,647 26,823 16,219 13,175 13,189 13,204 7,349 211,185
Expected Capital Resources
General Capital Funding
General Capital Funding - General Capital Grant 23,967 23,967 - 2,394 - - - - 2,394 2,397 2,397 2,397 2,397 2,397 2,397 2,397 2,397 2,397 23,967
General Capital Funding - Supported Borrowing 39,377 39,377 - 3,935 - - - - 3,935 3,938 3,938 3,938 3,938 3,938 3,938 3,938 3,938 3,938 39,377
Capital Receipts - Schools 7,897 7,897 - - - - - 7,897 7,897 - - - - - - - - - 7,897
Capital Receipts - General 19,167, 19,167 - 9,180 - -495 - -489 8,196 6,902 4,069 - - - - - - - 19,167
Earmarked Reserves 22,179 22,179 - 7,031 150 55 - 1,970 9,206 3,692 2,811 762 764 1,236 1,236 1,236 1,236 - 22,179
Revenue Contribution 323 323 - 458 7 226 - -458 233 41 49 - - - - - - - 323
Prudential Borrowing (unsupported) 22,998 22,998 - 3,550 - 170 - -1,568 2,152 7,950 4,387 6,938 7,685 3,056 3,055 3,055 3,056 -18,336 22,998
SALIX Interest Free Loan - WG 2,500 2,500 - 300 - - - - 300 1,100 1,100 - - - - - - - 2,500
Sub-Total General Capital Funding 138,408 138,408 - 26,848 157 -44 - 7,352 | 34,313 26,020 18,751 14,035 14,784 10,627 10,626 10,626 10,627 -12,001 138,408
External Funding Approvals
WG - 21st Century Schools 21,051 - 21,051 623 - - - - 623 - - 8,898 8,499 3,031 - - - - 21,051
WG - Enable Grant 180 - 180 - - 180 - - 180 - - - - - - - - - 180
WG - Safe Routes in Communities 950 - 950 - - 950 - - 950 - - - - - - - - - 950
WG - Porthcawl Revetment 1,681 - 1,681 1,852 - 75 - -246 1,681 - - - - - - - - - 1,681
WG - Eastern Promenade 287 5 287 - - 287 - - 287 - - - - - - - - - 287
WG - Intermediate Care Fund (ICF) 300 - 300 300 - - - - 300 - - - - - - - - - 300
WG - Welsh Medium Capital Grant 2,600 - 2,600 - - - - - - 180 320 1,094 980 26 - - - - 2,600
Loan - WG 2,400 - 2,400 2,400 - - - -2,400 - 2,400 - - - - - - - - 2,400
Westminster 34,477 - 34,477 1,430 - - - -1,430 - - 114 2,266 2,523 2,535 2,549 2,563 2,577 19,350 34,477
S106 444 - 444 - - 97 - 347 444 - - - - - - - - - 444
Transport Grant 440 5 440 - - 440 - - 440 - - - - - - - - - 440
Heritage Lottery Fund (HLF) 748 - 748 35 - 100 - - 135 105 300 208 - - - - - - 748
EU 6,569 - 6,569 - 225 967 - - 1,192 1,102 3,342 896 37 - - - - - 6,569
Other 650 - 650 205 - -73 - 18 150 - 250 250 - - - - - - 650
Sub-Total External Funding Approvals 72,777 B 72,777 6,845 225 3,023 - -3,711 6,382 3,787 4,326 13,612 12,039 5,592 2,549 2,563 2,577 19,350 72,777
Total Funding Available 211,185 138,408 72,777 33,693 382 2,979 - 3,641 | 40,695 29,807 23,077 27,647 26,823 16,219 13,175 13,189 13,204 7,349 211,185

Glossary of terms
WG - Welsh Government
EU - European Union

S106 - Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990

IMPROVEMENT PRIORITY

IP1 - Supporting a Successful Economy

IP2 - Helping People to be Self-Reliant

IP3 - Smarter Use of Resources

NONPTY - Core Services & Statutory Functions




Agenda Iltem 6

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
REPORT TO CABINET
18 DECEMBER 2018

REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR COMMUNITIES

KENFIG NATIONAL NATURE RESERVE MANAGEMENT

1.

1.1

2.1

3.1

3.2

Purpose of report

The purpose of this report is to seek Cabinet authorisation that Bridgend County
Borough Council (the Council) will not be renewing its Lease dated 25" January
2001 of Kenfig National Nature Reserve when it expires on 315t December 2019
and to serve the appropriate notice on Kenfig Corporation Trust. The Management
Agreement dated 25" January 2001 entered into with the Countryside Council for
Wales will also come to an end on 315t December 2019 and this report is to seek
Cabinet authorisation to contact Natural Resources Wales (as successor to the
Countryside Council for Wales) to inform them that the Council will be vacating
Kenfig National Nature Reserve on 31st December 2019.

Connection to corporate improvement objectives/other corporate priorities

This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate priority/priorities:

o Supporting a successful economy — taking steps to make the county a good
place to do business, for people to live, work, study and visit, and to ensure

that our schools are focused on raising the skills, qualifications and ambitions
of all people in the county.

o Helping people to be more self-reliant — taking early steps to reduce or
prevent people from becoming vulnerable or dependent on the Council and
its services.

o Smarter use of resources — ensuring that all its resources (financial, physical,

human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as possible
and support the development of resources throughout the community that
can help deliver the Council’s priorities.

Background

Kenfig National Nature Reserve (KNNR) comprises approximately 1300 acres of
managed coastal sand dunes and wetlands on coastline between Porthcawl and
Port Talbot and is regarded as one of the finest examples of a sand dune habitat in
Europe.

Kenfig Pool and Dunes was designated a Site of Special Scientific Interest in 1953,
a Local Nature Reserve in 1978 and a National Nature Reserve in 1989.
Furthermore, in 2006 Kenfig was designated a Special Area of Conservation, under
the EC Habitats Directive (Directive 92/43/EEC on the Conservation of Natural

Page 73



3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

41

Habitats and of Wild Flora and Fauna), giving the site both national and
international protection.

Cabinet at its meeting of the 14 December 2010 authorised officers to work with
Kenfig Corporation Trust (KCT) to develop alternative options for the management
of KNNR. This was in order to provide sufficient flexibility to develop alternative
management arrangements. The purpose of this was to enhance the quality of the
visitor experience, and to secure the KNNR’s future sustainability, in both financial
and environmental terms.

Cabinet at its meeting of 16 October 2012 agreed changes to the way in which the
reserve was being managed due to a lack of response from the KCT to the
Council’s requests to grant permission to allow a suitably experienced and qualified
organisation to manage the reserve and maximise its potential as a visitor
attraction.

Between the Cabinet meeting of 14 December 2010 and the Cabinet meeting of 11
November 2014 officers carried out a range of actions, as laid out in the November
report, to support the KCT to identify a new management agent well in advance of
the Council leaving the site. Unfortunately no decision from the KCT was
forthcoming.

Cabinet at its meeting of the 11 November 2014 authorised the Head of
Regeneration and Development to cease the process of investigating alternative
options for the management of KNNR and to operate the KNNR in line with current
agreements, prioritising the Council’s statutory obligations to protect KNNR’s
ecological features.

A 5 year Management Plan was developed and submitted to the KCT in January
2015. It is based on widely researched and accepted best practice in nature
conservation. It is a plan that provides detail of where human and financial
resources will be deployed over the 5 year period. Throughout the term of delivering
the current Management Plan and during its occupation of the site, the Council has
provided 6 monthly reports on activity to the Kenfig Consultative Committee and
annual reports to KCT through the Annual Liaison Meetings.

Since February 2015 officers from the Communities Directorate have developed
and delivered a number of externally funded projects to add value to the prioritised
activities within the Management Plan. At the beginning of 2015 the Council was
successful in securing funding from the competitive grant of Natural Resources
Wales (NRW) for a 3 year project at KNNR. Following approval of the Bridgend
Local Development Strategy, the Bridgend Local Action Group also agreed that
Rural Development Programme (RDP) resources could be used as match funding
for the NRW grant. KNNR was included in a successful bid for funding to the
Sustainable Management Scheme (SMS) which was approved in August 2018.

Current situation/proposal
The Lease dated 25" January 2001 for the management of KNNR is for a term of

21 years from 1 January 1999 and expires on 31st December 2019. It was made
between (1) The Official Custodian for Charities, (2) The Trustees of Kenfig

Page 74



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

Corporation Trust and (3) Bridgend County Borough Council and is a protected
lease under the Landlord and Tenant Act 1954.

The Council must comply with all the lease terms and tenant covenants set out in
the Lease and the Management Agreement until the date of expiry of the Lease.
Therefore, the Council will have to manage and be responsible for the site until the
KCT agree the handover of the keys before or on 315t December 2019.

Upon expiry of the Lease the Council must ensure that the site is in the state of
repair and condition required by the Lease and that the Council properly vacates
the site by removing all its equipment, machinery and any signage.

If the KCT decides there have been breaches to the repair covenants in the Lease,
then they are entitled to prepare and serve on the Council, either before or after the
expiry of the Lease term, a schedule of dilapidations which will set out the repairs
required on the site. The Council will be obliged to carry out these repairs and pay
KCT’s costs in preparing and serving the schedule of dilapidations during or after
the expiry of the Lease term. If a schedule of dilapidations is received from KCT,
then a further report to Cabinet may be required.

The Lease states the Council is to remove any additional buildings, additions,
alterations or improvements made to the site at the expiration of the term if so
requested by the KCT and to make good any damage caused by such removal. The
KCT could therefore require the Council to demolish the visitor centre building prior
to the expiry of the Lease. However, the Council has had several meetings with
KCT’s agent and this has not been raised. Normal practice is for a landlord to give a
tenant at least 6 months notice to remove any additions or alterations before the
termination date. If a request is made, then an assessment of the cost will be
undertaken and a further report to Cabinet if required.

Prior to exiting the site, agreement will be reached with the KCT as to whether they
wish all service contracts, such as electricity, water, waste collection, to be passed
over or cancelled. If the service contracts are not passed over they will be
cancelled and all services will cease.

An asset register will be completed of all machinery, equipment, fixtures and fittings.
Where evidence exists that items were purchased exclusively for KNNR and such
conditions still apply these will be passed to KCT. Where no such evidence exists or
items were purchased with Council resources consideration will be given to all
machinery, equipment, fixtures and fittings being redeployed to other Council
departments.

The Council holds monies received from public donations and it is intended that this
sum will be spent at KNNR during the remainder of the Lease term. If any monies
remain, a further report to Cabinet may be required.

Cornelly Community Council currently contributes financially towards the Council’s
cleaning costs of the visitor toilets at KNNR. When the Council exits the site it will
no longer retain any responsibility or provide any service in relation to the visitor
toilets. Any future function in this regard will be for the KCT and/or their appointed
representatives or management agent to negotiate and deliver as they consider
appropriate.

Page 75



4.10 With regard to Public Rights of Way and public access generally, the Council’s
current Rights of Way Improvement Plan (ROWIP) (adopted 2008) promotes and
supports public access at KNNR. There are a number of existing public footpaths
and public bridleways at KNNR, including a section of the Wales Coast Path, as
well as some routes which pedestrians and equestrians are requested to use and
could be classed as permissive paths. Expiry of the Lease of KNNR will not affect
the public’s use of the existing public footpaths and bridleways but may mean that
the permissive rights of way across KNNR may be closed and stopped up by the
KCT on the termination date of the Lease even though these routes have been
provided and managed by the Council.

4.11 Provided the Council ceases to occupy the property by the expiry date, then the
Lease will terminate at the end of the contractual term. Therefore, the Council is not
required to notify the KCT that it is vacating the property.

4.12 The Council can, however, serve a section 27(1) notice under the Landlord and
Tenant Act 1954 on the KCT at least 3 months prior to the end of the contractual
term to confirm that the Council will be vacating the property on the expiry date.
Due to the nature of the property, it is proposed that the Council serves this notice
on the KCT approximately 6 months prior to the end of the contractual term to
ensure any statutory rights under the Landlord and Tenant Act 1954 come to an
end.

4.13 The Council entered into a Management Agreement dated 25" January 2001 with
the Countryside Council for Wales for a term of 21 years from 1t January 1999.
This will therefore terminate on 315t December 2019, however, the Council will
contact NRW (as successor) to inform them that the Management Agreement will
come to an end.

4.14 In exiting the site the Council will contact NRW relating to the possible requirement
to de-designate the Local Nature Reserve status.

4.15 The Council’s Human Resources Department have written to KCT and informed
them that the Council employs two employees who are based at KNNR, a Centre
Manager and a Cleaner. Both employees spend their full working hours in relation
to tasks in support of KNNR. It is therefore the view of the Human Resources
Department at this time that these two employees would be entitled to continued
employment with the new management services provider under the Transfer of
Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006 (TUPE). However, if
the TUPE process does not proceed, it is likely that the Council will have to
undertake a redundancy consultation and incur redundancy costs.

4.16 When the Council no longer occupies the site or has responsibility for it then the
Council will have no further responsibility under the Occupiers Liability Act and all
associated insurances will cease. At the point where the Council no longer employs
staff for the site then Employers’ Liability will also cease. The Council will therefore
retain no responsibility or liability for the site or any use of it by any commercial
undertaking, group, organisation or member of the public, except in relation to
designated rights of way.

Page 76



6.1

7.1

8.1

8.2

Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules
None
Equality Impact Assessment

The decision to seek alternative management agents and to exit the site was
previously considered in the Cabinet report of the 14 December 2010. The
Council’'s Equalities Impact Assessment Toolkit was used to identify that the
delivery of these proposals will have no impact on equalities.

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Assessment Template has
been completed. A summary of the implications from the assessment relating to the
five ways of working is below:

Long-term: As outlined in previous reports to Cabinet, the opportunity to identify a
new management agent to take forward the site and access resources not available
to the Council was first agreed in 2010 as part of a long term transition proposal.
Any action to now appoint such an agent and/or manage the site for the long term
will be the responsibility of the KCT.

Prevention:  The decision of the KCT selecting and appointing any new
management agent offers the opportunity to manage the ecology of the site and to
diversify its appeal to a wider range of visitor target markets and thereby support
the economic resilience of the visitor economy of the area. The pressures placed
on Council budgets are such that limited resources exist to manage the site in any
other way than that which currently occurs.

Integration: A new management agent offers the opportunity to support economic,
social, environmental and cultural outcomes through boosting the local economy,
raising the profile of the area through media coverage, increasing tourism, support
to local groups, fundraising, volunteering opportunities and overall event
conservation management experience.

Collaboration: The process of exiting the site will be undertaken in close
collaboration with the KCT, their appointed representatives and NRW.

Involvement: Updates on progress will be provided to the Kenfig Consultative
Committee and stakeholders involved through the SMS project steering group.
Updates will also be provided to local elected members as considered appropriate.

Financial implications

The decision to not renew the Lease will result in a saving of £40,400 per annum.
This has been included in the draft Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) as
£10,000 in 2019/20 and £30,000 in 2020/21.

If Cabinet decides not to renew the Lease, then the Council may incur repairing
costs under a schedule of dilapidations and KCT’s costs ‘in contemplation of or in
connection with the preparation and service of a schedule of dilapidations during or

Page 77



after the expiry of the term.” At this time, no communication has been received in
relation to this, however, KCT could serve a schedule of dilapidations upon the
Council after the expiry of the Lease. Any consideration of financial implications
can only take place in response to any communication received in relation to this
matter. The Council may also be required to demolish the Visitor Centre building
and be responsible for the costs of making good any damage caused to the site as
a result of the removal.

8.3  If there are any resulting redundancy costs, an application will be made for these to
be covered corporately as this proposal links to a MTFS proposal.

9. Recommendation

9.1  That Cabinet decide Bridgend County Borough Council will not be renewing its
Lease dated 25" January 2001 of Kenfig National Nature Reserve when it expires
on 315t December 2019 and that the Council will serve a Section 27(1) Notice under
the Landlord and Tenant Act 1954 on Kenfig Corporation Trust.

9.2  That Cabinet note the Management Agreement dated 25t January 2001 will expire
on 31st December 2019 and authorise the Council to inform Natural Resources
Wales that it will be vacating Kenfig National Nature Reserve on this date.

Mark Shephard

Corporate Director Communities
30t November 2018

Contact Officer: leuan Sherwood

Manager, Economy and Natural Resources

Telephone: (01656) 815333

E-mail: leuan.Shrewood@bridgend.gov.uk

Background documents:

Cabinet report, Kenfig National Nature Reserve, 14th December 2010
Cabinet report, Kenfig National Nature Reserve, 16th October 2012
Cabinet report, Kenfig National Nature Reserve, 11th November 2014

Page 78



Agenda Item 7

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR — COMMUNITIES
18 DECEMBER 2018
REPORT TO CABINET

TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER/ TRAFFIC CALMING AND PEDESTRIAN CROSSING
PROCESS

1. Purpose of Report.

1.1 To propose changes to the determination of sustained objections made in respect
of proposals to introduce Traffic Regulation Orders and Traffic Calming and
Pedestrian Crossings.

2, Connection to Corporate Improvement Plan / Other Corporate Priority.
2.1  This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate priorities:-

Smarter use of resources — ensuring that all its resources (financial, physical,
human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as possible and
support the development of resources throughout the community that can help
deliver the Council’s priorities.

3. Background.
Traffic Regulation Orders

3.1 The process for the making of Traffic Regulation Orders (TROs) is prescribed by
the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 and Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders
(Procedure) (England and Wales) Regulations 1996 (the Regulations). The Chief
Officer of Police must be consulted and that the Order Making Authority (OMA)
must follow the consultation requirements prescribed by the Regulations.

3.2 Under the Regulations an OMA must, before making an Order, consult those
persons/organisations specified in the Regulations. In addition to these specified
consultees it is however for the OMA to decide on the extent of any additional
consultation. Extensive informal engagement with potentially affected parties can
resolve any issues prior to formal consultation on a proposal and may involve
engagement with local member(s), community councils, police and individual
residents.

3.3 Having undertaken pre-consultation engagement a scheme may, depending on
the responses received, proceed to the formal notice stage during which
objections may be submitted to the OMA. All responses are considered further by
Traffic Management Officers and there is the potential to engage with an objector
with the aim of seeking the withdrawal of an objection at that stage.

Page 79



3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

41

A notice setting out the proposed scheme must be placed in the local press and
displayed on those streets affected by the proposals. Additionally notices are
delivered to premises likely to be affected by the provisions of the proposed order.

A minimum period of 21 days must be allowed for the submission of
representations/objections. During the 21 day notice period the Order must be
placed on deposit for inspection by the public at all reasonable times. Any
objections received must then be duly considered by the OMA.

In certain circumstances a Public Inquiry must be held where in respect of a
proposed Order:

e (a)its effect is to prohibit the loading or unloading of vehicles or vehicles
on any day of the week (i) at all times; (ii) before 07.00 hours; (iii)
between 10.00 and 16:00 hours; or (iv) after 19.00 hours, and an objection
has been made to the order (other than one which the order making
authority is satisfied is frivolous or irrelevant) and not withdrawn; or

o (b)its effect is to prohibit or restrict the passage of public service vehicles
along a road and an objection has been made to the order by the operator
of a local service the route of which includes that road.

Additionally, it is important to note that the Regulations provide that an OMA may
hold a Public Inquiry before making any other Order to which the Regulations

apply.

All objections that are duly made and not withdrawn must be considered by the
OMA. If after consideration of the objections an authority decides to proceed with
the scheme as advertised, the objectors must be informed of the reasons in writing
and the appropriate notice is then published. It should be noted however that
certain restrictions are placed on an OMA if a decision is made to modify a
proposed Order following advertisement referred to at paragraph 3.5 above.

The validity of any Order may be questioned during the six weeks after it is made
on the grounds either that it is not within the powers conferred by the legislation or
that there has been a failure to follow the procedure set out in the legislation.

Introduction of Traffic Calming/Pedestrian Crossings.

Traffic proposals that are introduced in accordance with the Highways Act 1980,
the Highways (Traffic Calming) Regulations 1999, the Highways (Road Humps)
Regulations 1999 and under the provisions of section 23 of the Road Traffic
Regulation Act 1984 are not subject to the Regulations. Any sustained objections
to these matters however are currently determined in BCBC in the same manner
as TROs. It should be noted that in respect of these provisions no Order is made.

Current situation / proposal

In BCBC sustained objections to TROS and Traffic Calming and Pedestrian
Crossings are determined by the Appeal Panel process which involves:

Page 80



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

e A panel of 3 local members being formed and scheduled to meet which due
to calendar commitments can take several weeks to arrange as the panel
needs to be supported by legal and democratic services officers.

e Objectors are invited to attend to present their case.

e Panels may request more information and then a panel reconvened.

This means that the introduction of new traffic proposals may be delayed for several
months whilst the arrangements for setting up and supporting the process are
resource intensive when compared to that adopted by other OMAs.

In view of the concern identified in paragraph 4.2 above, the County Surveyors
Society (CSS) for Wales Traffic Services Group has been approached to provide
information on the process adopted by other OMAs in Wales. Ten responses
were received, and the information provided was considered together with relevant
legislation/circulars.  This information has been used to evaluate the different
means by which local authorities approach the TRO/ Traffic Calming and
Pedestrian Crossing process in comparison to the current practice of BCBC.

It was apparent that the process for consideration of objections differs between
OMAs but two specific types appeared to be the most prevalent for those
authorities who responded to the CSS wales enquiry. Of the OMAs that were
approached the findings were that of the 10 local authorities that responded two
referred the decision via a report to their Planning Committee and eight
responded that the decision was a delegated function either to a Cabinet Member
or Senior Officer.

Both of the above require reports to be presented which evaluate any objections
received. Following consideration by member(s)/ officers a decision is made and
the objector notified.

A further difference was identified in that it is often the case that only written
objections are considered with no personal attendance by the objector due to the
potentially high level of objections that can be received. Other than the
circumstances specified in paragraph 3.6 above, the legislation does not prescribe
how the objections need to be determined, only that any sustained objections
should be duly considered.

In considering an alternative process, whilst there is an established Planning
Committee within Bridgend, this is scheduled on a 6 weekly basis and should a
query be raised that requires additional information the decision could be delayed
for a further 6 weeks.

In the case of a delegated function to a Cabinet Member(s) the determination could
be made during a weekly briefing between the Corporate Director and/or Head of
Service, and any queries raised resolved within a shorter timeframe.

It should be noted that within this process is the ability for the decision to be
selected by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee for consideration of the
decision/report is available as part of its function.

Page 81



4.10

Accordingly, it is proposed that the process for determining objections to
TROs/Traffic Calming and Pedestrian Crossings would be improved by amendment
of the process from the Appeals Panel process to a delegated function of the
Cabinet Member —Communities.

Amendment to Scheme of Delegations

4.11 It is proposed that new paragraphs 3.5 and 3.6 be added to Scheme A of the
Scheme of Delegation of Functions as functions allocated to the Cabinet Member -
Communities:

3.5 To determine whether or not proposed orders in pursuance of any
provision contained in the enactments listed below (or any statutory
modification, re-enactment or amendment thereof) in respect of which
objections and/or representations have been received should be made
as proposed; to refer (where necessary) any proposed order to a local
public inquiry; to amend or modify any proposed order; or to uphold the
objections and withdraw any proposed order:

(i) Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984;
(i) Traffic Management Act 2004

3.6 To determine whether or not any proposed traffic provision to be
implemented in pursuance the Highways Act 1980 / Road Traffic
Regulation Act 1984 Section 23 (or any statutory modifications, re-
enactment or amendment thereof) in respect of which objections and/or
representations have been received should be implemented as
proposed; to refer (where necessary) any proposed traffic provision to
a local public inquiry; to amend or modify any proposed traffic
provision; or to uphold the objections and withdraw any proposed traffic
provision.

5. Effect upon Policy Framework & Procedure Rules

5.1 The Scheme of Delegation of Functions will be amended accordingly.

6. Equalities Impact Assessment

6.1 There are no equality implications arising from the report.

7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Assessment

7.1 The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of this
report. It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable impacts upon
the achievement of well-being goals/objectives as a result of this report.

8. Financial Implications

8.1  There would be a saving of officer time in the determination of sustained objections

to TROs and Traffic Calming/Pedestrian Crossings.

Page 82



9. Recommendation.
It is recommended that Cabinet:
9.1 Approve the adoption of the process outlined at paragraph 4.10;

9.2 Approve the amendment to the Scheme of Delegation of Functions as outlined at
paragraph 4.11;

9.3 Note that the decision made in respect of a sustained objection will be published by
the Democratic Services Section and subject to Call-in;

9.4 Note that the Council’s Constitution will be amended at Part 3 to remove the TRO
functions from the responsibility of the Appeals Panel.

MARK SHEPHARD
CORPORATE DIRECTOR — COMMUNITIES
20t NOVEMBER 2018

Contact Officer: Kevin Mulcahy, Group Manager Highways Services
Telephone: (01656) 642535
E-mail: kevin.mulcahy@bridgend.gov.uk

Background Documents
None

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 8

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
REPORT TO CABINET
18 DECEMBER 2018

JOINT REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR - EDUCATION AND FAMILY
SUPPORT AND THE INTERIM HEAD OF FINANCE AND SECTION 151 OFFICER

SCHOOL MODERNISATION PROGRAMME - BAND B
1. Purpose of report
1.1 The purpose of this report is to:
e seek approval to discontinue with the Cabinet decision made on 21 November
2018 in respect of pursuing Option 3 for the financial delivery of Band B of the
School Modernisation Programme;

e apprise Cabinet of the change to the Band B capital grant intervention rate; and

e seek Cabinet approval to pursue Option 2 for the financial delivery of Band B of
the School Modernisation Programme, prior to submission to Council.

2. Connection to corporate improvement objectives/other corporate priorities
2.1 This report relates to the following Corporate Improvement Plan priorities:

e Supporting a successful economy
e Smarter use of resources

2.2 On 3 March 2015, Cabinet approval was received for the Council to adopt revised
principles as a framework for school organisation in Bridgend. Five key principles
were set out to inform the organisation and modernisation of our schools. These
are:

e commitment to high standards and excellence in provision;

e equality of opportunity, so that all pupils can access quality learning
opportunities, regardless of which school they attend;

¢ inclusive schools, which cater for the learning needs of all their pupils;

e community-focused schools, where the school actively engages with its local
community; and

¢ value for money.

2.3 The Policy and Planning Framework sets out 17 areas where these principles
should be applied in practice.

2.4  The principles which are particularly relevant in the context of Band B are:

e the size of primary schools (to ensure that “all Bridgend’s primary schools are
large enough to make the full range of necessary provision”); and

Page 85



3.

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

¢ value for money, efficiency and effectiveness (“narrowing the gap between the
most and the least expensive provision currently”).

Background

In September 2006, the Council approved a vision for the county borough’s schools
in which they would be fit for purpose in the 21st century and achieve the best use of
resources. It was recognised that we need to modernise our schools and get a
closer match between our aspiration for schools, the quality of their accommodation
and the projected number of pupils.

Since then, school modernisation has been established as one of the Council’s
main strategic programmes. The programme has been planned and implemented
in accordance with the agreed policy and planning framework and has been
matched to capital resources identified within the capital programme.

In November 2010, Cabinet was informed of the work which had been undertaken
in determining the strategic priorities for school modernisation to enable the aims of
the programme to be met.

The School Modernisation Programme was established to deliver on several
objectives including:

e developing first-class learning environments;

e locating the right number of schools, of a viable size, in the best places to serve
their communities;

e making schools an integral part of the life and learning of their communities;

¢ reducing surplus places and achieving best value for money; and

e make schools more efficient and sustainable.

In November 2010, Cabinet approved the recommended schemes included in each
of the four bands (A-D) which were subsequently detailed in Bridgend’s 21st Century
Schools Strategic Outline Programme (SOP). The SOP was submitted to Welsh
Government in 2011 and ministerial ‘approval in principle’ was received, subject to
the completion of the Welsh Government business case process.

Band A schemes, which are funded on a 50/50 basis with Welsh Government, are
due for completion in 2018-2019 and are at various stages. The special educational
needs (SEN) provision at Bryncethin Campus, Coety Primary School, two additional
teaching spaces at Heronsbridge Special School, Betws Primary School,
Brynmenyn Primary School and Pencoed Primary School schemes have been
completed. Work is nearing completion on the remaining scheme within Band A,
Ysgol Gynradd Gymraeg Calon Y Cymoedd.

In 2014, a Schools Task Group was established to ensure the Council planned for a
high-quality education system. What was evident was that the work of the individual
workstreams established under the Schools Task Group could not be undertaken in
isolation, as there were dependencies relating to each workstream and that there
needed to be a coherent strategy for Bridgend.

Cabinet approval was sought in September 2015 to build on the work of the Schools
Task Group and approval was given for officers to undertake a strategic review into

Page 86



3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

3.14

the development and rationalisation of the curriculum and estate provision of
primary, secondary and post-16 education.

In May 2016, a Strategic Review Overarching Board was established, and four
operational boards were identified, one of which was specifically related to
consideration of Band B investment priorities. It was considered that Band B
priorities identified within the 2010 SOP may no longer be of primary importance
and the issues facing the Council and schools need to be reviewed to establish a
strategic approach for investment, establishing a priority list of schemes for delivery
within the Band B timescale (ie 2019-2024).

The school modernisation workstream considered relevant data to assist in
prioritising the future investment in schools, including suitability, condition,
maintenance backlog, population growth, projections of pupil population, housing
developments identified within the Local Development Plan (LDP) and pupil places.

In 2017, Welsh Government requested that local authorities submit a new SOP,
updated to reflect revised priorities. The revision was submitted on 31 July 2017,
with the proviso that no political support and financial commitment had been
received.

In October 2017, Cabinet was presented with a report detailing the outcome of the
work of the school modernisation workstream and the revised SOP submission and
gave approval to discontinue the original Band B schemes identified in the
November 2010 Cabinet report. Cabinet considered the proposed Band B schemes,
and determined to approve the following, based on the increasing demand for
places, the requirement to promote the Welsh language and building condition:

Bridgend North East (2 form entry (FE)) - capital grant

Bridgend South East (2.5FE) - capital grant

Bridgend Special School (270 places) — Mutual Investment Model
Bridgend West — Welsh-medium (2FE) - capital grant

Bridgend West — English-medium (2FE) - capital grant

Cabinet also gave approval to undertake options appraisal work during the Band B
period in order to prepare for Band C.

In addition, in order to promote the Welsh language and support their Cymraeg
2050 commitment, Welsh Government made available £30m capital grant across
Wales which Councils were asked to bid against. Officers identified the need for the
creation of Welsh-medium child care facilities which would deliver Welsh language
opportunities to areas of the county borough where there is currently insufficient
provision (ie Ogmore and Garw Valleys, Bridgend and Porthcawl). Welsh
Government approval in principle has now been received for Bridgend’s £2.6m bid.

On 6 December 2017, Welsh Government’'s Department for Education gave
‘approval in principle’ for Bridgend’s second wave of investment, which at this stage
has an estimated programme envelope cost of £68.2m. Further costs, which are
yet to be determined, may be required and these would be associated with
additional infrastructure capacity.

Page 87



3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19

4.1

4.2

At its meeting on 31 January 2018, Council approved in principle the financial
commitment required for Band B of the School Modernisation Programme. The
approval would be subject to sufficient resources being identified and allocated to
meet the match funding commitment. The overall programme was estimated to be
in the region of £68.2m, of which approximately £43.2m was anticipated to be
capital funded (circa £23m funded by Bridgend County Borough Council (BCBC)),
the balance proposed to be funded through the Welsh Government Mutual
Investment Model (MIM).

Welsh Government had advised local authorities that MIM was a new approach to
investment in public infrastructure in Wales, whereby private partners will build and
maintain schools, in return for a fee, will cover the cost of construction, maintenance
and financing the project.

The Welsh Government intervention rate is 75%, which will be paid to the local
authority in the form of a revenue grant. The remaining 25% is to be met from the
local authority revenue budgets over a 25-year contract period. The local authority
is also required to meet 50% of the up-front capital costs for furniture, equipment
and IT. At the end of a specified period of time, the asset will be transferred to the
local authority. Welsh Government had advised that it will present packages of
schemes to the market as design and build projects made up of a number of
schemes within a geographical area (including across local authority areas) and be
of sufficient monetary size overall in order to attract large companies (eg £100m).

In November 2018, Cabinet was advised of Welsh Government’s review of the MIM
strategy, schools would now be procured via a single Private Sector Delivery
Partner (PSDP). The PSDP will become the majority shareholder in a Welsh
Education Partnership (WEP), with local authorities and further education
institutions (together the participants) and Welsh Government holding the remaining
shares. The WEP would be capable of delivering capital schemes, with the
exception of Band B projects.

Cabinet was also advised that the Welsh Government review had identified that
special schools were now considered unsuitable for delivery under the MIM.
Consequently Cabinet reconsidered the funding options for the programme,
determining that, having compared the likely cost to the local authority over a 30-
year period, delivering Band B via a combined capital and MIM route would make
best use of Council’s financial resources.

Current situation

On 21 November, prior to the capital report in relation to Band B being considered
by Council, Welsh Government announced a change to the capital grant
intervention rate. Welsh Government contributions for Band B increased to 75% for
special school and pupil referral unit schemes, and 65% for all other schemes; the
MIM intervention rate would remain set at 75%.

As the change in intervention rate would have a positive impact for the Council on
the cost of delivering Band B, it was determined to defer the Council report, as the
detail was no longer factually correct and the change in intervention rate could
impact the proposed delivery method; this would allow Cabinet an opportunity to
review their decision in this regard.

Page 88



4.3

5.1

6.1

8.1

Officers have now had an opportunity to work through the financial implications in
terms of the options, which are detailed within the finance section of this report.

Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules
There is no effect upon the policy framework or procedure rules.
Equality Impact Assessment

Although an Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has been carried out for the overall
programme, it has been considered timely to review and refresh the EIA. An
initial screening has therefore been undertaken for Band B. Once schemes have
been sufficiently developed, they will be subject to a separate EIA, as the detail will
vary between projects. Equality reports on all proposals will be referred to as part of
the individual Cabinet reports on each individual scheme.

Wellbeing and Future Generations Act (2015)

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Assessment provides a
comprehensive summary of the outcomes expected from the implementation of the
service.

Long-term Supports the statutory duty to provide sufficient pupil places and
promote the Welsh language.

Prevention Councils have a statutory duty to ensure there are a sufficient
supply of school places, and these schemes will safeguards the
Council’s position in terms of any potential legal challenge in this
regard.

Integration Providing sufficient places ensures that the curriculum can be
delivered and meets social, environmental and cultural objectives.

Collaboration ~ The local authority works effectively with schools, Estyn and with
the Central South Consortium (CSC), health, community councils
and many internal and external partners to ensure that the building
meets the short-term and future needs of the users and the
community which it will serve.

Involvement This area of work involves the engagement of all potential
stakeholders including Cabinet, members, governors, staff, pupils,
community, internal and external partners which will include third
sector organisations.

Financial implications

Capital match funding requested was around £23m to meet the four primary school
schemes identified at that time to be funded from capital grant. It was proposed that
this be met from general capital funding in the first instance (subject to local
government settlements from Welsh Government), with the balance to be met from

Page 89



8.2

section 106 (s106) funding, receipts from the sale of school and other sites,
earmarked reserves and unsupported borrowing. The figures cannot be firmed up at
this point in time, but unsupported borrowing will not be drawn upon until such time
as general capital funding, s106 funding and available capital receipts and
earmarked capital reserves have been exhausted, as this will require a recurrent
revenue budget to meet the borrowing costs. Additional costs have not been
included in terms of provision for highways works, which are to be met in full by the
Council. Based on current funding availability in terms of general capital funding
and capital receipts, it is estimated that the Council would need to borrow around
£15m to meet the full match funding requirement, which would cost around £730k
per annum over a 30-year borrowing period.

Bridgend Special School scheme, which was going to be progressed via the MIM
and would require revenue match funding from the local authority of around £750k
per annum over a 25-year period, is not currently built into the Medium-Term
Financial Strategy (MTFS). However, since Welsh Government has notified the
Council that the special school is not now a suitable scheme for funding via the MIM
route, due to the complexity and uniqueness of scheme design and build, officers
have considered alternative funding combinations of MIM and capital grant, and
costed the financial implications of each one. It is useful to outline the differences
between the two funding options before a decision is made. This is set out in detail
in the following table.

Page 90



Table 1 Comparison of MIM and capital grant schemes

MIM Funded

| Capital Grant

Funding

WG Intervention Rate 75%

WG Intervention Rate 75% special school and
65% all other projects

BCBC recurrent contribution must be funded
from revenue.

BCBC contribution can be funded from capital
receipts, borrowing (revenue implications) or
revenue contribution to capital.

Furniture and equipment funded on 75:25 —
specials and 65:35 all other schemes from
capital.

Furniture and equipment funded on 75:25 —
specials and 65:35 all other schemes from
capital.

BCBC responsible for 100% of any
“abnormals” or additional design features

BCBC responsible for 100% of any
“abnormals” or additional design features.

Design

The private sector need to take design risk
and to respond to an output specification
therefore we cannot present a fully designed
scheme to the strategic partner.

The Council can design the school in
whichever manner it wishes, using whichever
architects it wishes, either stand alone or
through a design and build.

The approach to design is a standardised
one in terms of standard room sizes. We
will be able to choose the number and type
of spaces you need to deliver a school
provided that we adhere to the maximum
size and funding criteria.

We can request a particular architect but the
strategic partner does not have to use them.

Contract

BCBC tied into a contract for 25 years -
business needs change over time so there
is the risk that the contract may become
unsuitable for these changing needs during
the contract life.

Contract period ends when building complete.

Scheme would be delivered via strategic
partner procurement. Welsh Government
would run a process to procure the private
sector delivery partners and local authorities
would enter into a project agreement with
the ‘Special Purpose Vehicle’.

Scheme either designed by the Major Projects
Team in Corporate Landlord and a
construction contractor appointed via the
South and Mid Wales Collaborative
Construction Framework (SEWSCAP), or
procured as a ‘design and build’ scheme via
the same framework.

A long-term contract encourages the
contractor and the Council to consider costs
over the whole life of the contract, rather
than considering the construction and
operational periods separately

This can lead to efficiencies through
synergies between design and construction
and its later operation and maintenance.
The contractor takes the risk of getting the
design and construction wrong.

The Council bears the risk of getting the
design wrong, which could create additional
costs further down the road.

The Council will also bear additional lifecycle
costs following construction which are not
built into the original cost.

The contract includes provision of Hard

These costs will all be the responsibility of the

Page 91




MIM Funded

Capital Grant

Facilities Management services including
building maintenance, including all systems
(eg mechanical and electrical and statutory
testing, in addition to energy and utilities
supply and management service including
energy and water efficiency

Council/governing body.

Variations may be needed as the public
sector body's business needs change.
Management of these may require
renegotiation of contract terms and prices

Any variations to the build once constructed
will also come at a cost.

Payment

The unitary payment will include charges

for the contractor's acceptance of risks, such
as construction and service delivery risks,
which may not materialise. This is a hidden
overhead.

Any on-going charges required for borrowing
to meet capital grant match funding will only
include interest charges.

The unitary payment will not start until the
building is operational, so the contractor has
incentives to encourage timely delivery of
quality service.

BCBC will start paying for the building as
soon as the works commence - design
through to construction.

The contract provides greater incentives to
manage risks over the life of the contract
than under traditional procurement. A
reduced level or quality of service would
lead to compensation paid to the public
sector body.

Once the building is handed over, the Council
does not have the same opportunities for
compensation for poor performance of the
facility.

The unitary charge is payable over the life of
the contract (25 years).

There is no opportunity to repay this early.
This creates a revenue budget pressure on

the Council which is committed for a 25-year
period.

If the capital contribution is funded from
capital, there is no ongoing pressure on the
revenue budget.

If it is funded from borrowing, there will be an
on-going revenue pressure, but the Council
has more flexibility to repay any loans early,
borrow at reduced rates, as the opportunity
arises.

Impact on capital and revenue programme

The MIM does not impact upon the capital
programme in any great way, other than the
funding required for furniture and
equipment. This could be met from either
capital funding or revenue contributions.

In contrast, the MIM places a fixed
commitment on the revenue budget for a
period of 25 years.

If funded via capital grant, the Council can
choose to meet its match funding in the
capital programme from capital receipts /
S106 / revenue contributions or borrowing, so
there is much more flexibility in both capital
and revenue. If Council wants to fund other
capital then there is always the option to
borrow or use earmarked reserves to fund.

8.3 Officers have spoken to Welsh Government officials about potential options
available following the removal of special school builds from the MIM procurement
route. Welsh Government has indicated that capital funding would be available as
an alternative to fund these schemes, but that local authorities should consider

Page 92




8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

other schemes, currently to be funded from capital grant, which could alternatively
be funded from MIM.

Officers have considered the following funding options:

Option Consideration Capital Grant MIM

Option 1 | Original funding scenario 4 primary schools Special school

Option 2 | All funded from capital grant | 4 primary schools No MIM schemes

plus special school

Option 3 | Swap 2 primary schools with | 2 primary schools 2 primary schools
1 special school plus special school

Option 4 | Swap 4 primary schools with | Special school 4 primary schools
1 special school

Option 1 is the original funding scenario which is no longer available to the Council,
but is included for comparative purposes.

Based upon the current funding availability identified in paragraph 8.1 the following
table summarises the revised full revenue and capital implications of each of the
funding options (note: Option 1 is based on the original funding options).

Option 1 Option 2 Option 3 | Option 4
£ £ £ £

Capital:

Welsh Government grant 20,427,995 44,784,000| 30,648,000( 18,000,000
Total BCBC capital contribution 26,122,005 26,516,000| 18,938,242|12,133,110
Total capital cost 46,550,000 71,300,000/ 49,586,242(30,133,110
Revenue:

BCBC revenue for borrowing 762,100 781,800 402,912 62,656
BCBC revenue for MIM 650,000 0 523,088| 1,015,566
Annual revenue funding required 1,412,100 781,800 926,000 1,078,222

It is important to note these costs are estimates based on information available at
the current time, and MIM information received from Welsh Government, and will
change in line with inflationary and interest rates rises

Option 2, where all schemes are funded by capital grant, draws down the greatest
amount of Welsh Government match funding, but also requires the greatest amount
of Council capital contribution. The annual revenue implications of borrowing for this
option is higher than the annual revenue implications of mixed capital/MIM options,
but this is more than offset by the annual revenue requirements for the MIM
schemes.

The annual revenue implications of all options could reduce if additional capital
funding were secured from s106 contributions, additional capital receipts, capital

Page 93



8.9

earmarked reserves. Revenue commitments for MIM schemes, however, cannot be
reduced and are fixed over the life of the contract, so there would be less flexibility
with Option 4 and, to a lesser extent, Option 3, compared to Option 2. Option 4
would also present less flexibility in terms of future adaptations to buildings which
are located within the areas of growth ie north east and south east of Bridgend.

Therefore further analysis of Option 2 and Option 3 has been undertaken. The
following table sets out the direct advantages and disadvantages between both
options.

Option 2 Option 3

All capital grant — no MIM, Two primary MIMs, two

four primary and one special | primary and one special capital
capital grant grant

e Two buildings which are
fully maintained for the 25-
year term

o Greater flexibility in terms
of funding sources and

repayment _ . . .
. Toptal)/flexibility relatingto | ° Slightly Dlgher intervention
Advantages configuration and use of ratoe (75% compared to
buildings 65%) for the two MIM

builds
e Lesser ongoing facilities
management commitment

e Can be completed within
our own timeframes
¢ Full control over design

(marginal)
¢ Reliant on individual e Still requires capital
school to maintain the contribution for furniture
building and equipment (which is
e Commitment on Council still only funded at 65%)
- budgets for any capital e Fixed revenue commitment
LELIAEIL UL works during the lifecycle over the 25-year period (ie
of the building no opportunity for early
e Lower intervention rate repayment)
(65%) for the primary e Less control over design of
builds school

8.10 It is important to note that both options currently require borrowing to meet the capital

commitment.
Option 2
Annual revenue cost for Option 2 = £781,800 (based on borrowing over 30 years)

Plus additional annual revenue funding commitment for buildings maintenance
(which we estimate around £250k per annum for the five new schools)

Option 3
Annual revenue cost for Option 3 = £926,000 (borrowing over 30 years, MIM over 25)

Plus additional annual revenue funding commitment for buildings maintenance
(which we estimate around £150k per annum for the three non-MIM schools plus

Page 94



8.11

£100k per annum for the two MIM schools for 5 years once the buildings are handed
back).

Annual Total cost

Buildings
revenue . 9 over 30-year
maintenance -
cost period

Option 2 | £781,800 £250,000 £30,954,000

Option 3 | £926,000 £150,000 £30,164,563

Therefore, the difference over a 30-year period is estimated at £789,437 with Option
3 being potentially slightly less expensive. However, pursuing Option 2 presents the
Council with more flexibility and greater control as detailed in paragraph 8.9.

Whichever option is pursued will create significant pressures on the Council’s
capital and revenue budgets. The Council currently has very few uncommitted
capital receipts, with any potential new receipts not likely to be significant enough to
meet the capital funding required for these schemes, resulting in a need to borrow.
In addition, the council is facing revenue budget cuts of around £36m over the next
four years, so any additional revenue pressures from either borrowing, or following
the MIM route, will only add to the level of savings required to be made.

Recommendations
Cabinet is recommended to:

e discontinue with the Cabinet decision made on 21 November 2018 in respect of
pursuing Option 3 for the financial delivery of Band B of the School Modernisation
Programme;

¢ note the change to the Band B capital grant intervention rate;

e give approval to pursue Option 2 for the financial delivery of Band B, subject to

sufficient resources being identified and allocated to meet the match-funding
commitment; and

e give approval for a report to be submitted to Council to amend the capital
programme to reflect the above.

Lindsay Harvey
Corporate Director - Education and Family Support

Gill Lewis
Interim Head of Finance and Section 151 Officer

Page 95



Contact Officer: Nicola Echanis
Head of Education and Early Help

Telephone: (01656) 642611
E-mail: nicola.echanis@bridgend.gov.uk

Contact Officer: Deborah Exton
Group Manager — Financial Planning and Budget Management

Telephone: (01656) 643604
E-mail: deborah.exton@bridgend.gov.uk
Background documents

Council Report (13 September 2006): “LEARNING COMMUNITIES — SCHOOLS OF THE
FUTURE — STRATEGY, PRINCIPLES, POLICY AND PLANNING FRAMEWORK"

Cabinet Report (2 November 2010): “THE SCHOOL MODERNISATION
PROGRAMMEOVERVIEW AND BRIDGEND’S 21ST CENTURY SCHOOLS’ STRATEGIC
OUTLINE PROGRAMME SUBMISSION TO WELSH ASSEMBLY *

Cabinet Report (1 September 2015): “STRATEGIC REVIEW INTO THE DEVELOPMENT
AND RATIONALISATION OF THE CURRICULUM AND ESTATE PROVISION OF
PRIMARY, SECONDARY AND POST-16 EDUCATION”

Cabinet Report (3 October 2017): “SCHOOL MODERNISATION PROGRAMME — BAND
B (2019-2024)"

Cabinet Report (30 January 2018): “SCHOOL MODERNISATION PROGRAMME — BAND
Bl!

Council Report (31 January 2018): “SCHOOL MODERNISATION PROGRAMME — BAND
B”

Cabinet Report (20 November 2018): “SCHOOL MODERNISATION PROGRAMME -
BAND B”

Page 96



Agenda Item 9

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
REPORT TO CABINET
18 DECEMBER 2018
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR — EDUCATION AND FAMILY SUPPORT
WELSH-MEDIUM CAPITAL GRANT
1. Purpose of report
1.1 The purpose of this report is to:

e update Cabinet with regards to the outcome of the bid submitted to Welsh
Government in respect of the Welsh-medium capital grant; and

e advise on the way forward in respect of the scheme development.
2. Connection to corporate improvement objectives/other corporate priorities
2.1 This report relates to the following Corporate Improvement Plan priorities:

e Supporting a successful economy - we will take steps to make the county
a good place to do business, for people to live, work, study and visit, and to
ensure that our schools are focused on raising the skills, qualifications and
ambitions of all people in the county.

¢ Helping people to be more self-reliant — we will take early steps to reduce
or prevent people from becoming vulnerable or dependent on the Council
and its services.

e Smarter use of resources — ensuring that all its resources (financial,
physical, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as
possible and support the development of resources throughout the
community that can help deliver the Council’s priorities.

3. Background

3.1 In March 2018, the Cabinet Secretary for Finance made available £30m across
Wales for projects dedicated to supporting and growing the use of the Welsh
language in education. This funding would assist the delivery of Welsh
Government’s ongoing commitment to achieve a million Welsh speakers by 2050.

3.2  Welsh Government advised that this funding was in addition to the existing
allocation announced for Band B of the 21st Century Schools and Education
Programme. With this in mind, consideration was given to how best increase the
number of Welsh speakers within the borough.

3.3 A childcare sufficiency audit of settings within Bridgend had identified gaps in this
vital provision. These gaps, together with a lack of Welsh-medium childcare,

Page 97



3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

resulted in a decision being taken to centre Bridgend’s proposals on Welsh-medium
sessional, child and wraparound care.

In determining the locations that would benefit from such provision, consideration
was given to developing centres to support transition from Welsh-medium childcare
provision to Welsh-medium primary education, thereby encouraging transition, and
in turn, promoting and supporting Welsh-medium schools in key areas of the county
borough.

The Garw Valley South scheme, which is being delivered through Band A of the
School Modernisaton Programme, will culminate with the opening of Ysgol Gynradd
Gymraeg Calon Y Cymoedd at Bettws, in January 2019. Bettws and Ogmore Valley
areas were identified as key locations that would benefit from Welsh-medium
childcare provision which would help support transition into the school at its new
location.

In addition, the geographical areas of Bridgend Town and Porthcawl! were also
identified as requiring Welsh-medium childcare settings, which in turn would support
transition into Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Ogwr and Ysgol Y Ferch o’r Sgér respectively.

Therefore, a £2.6m bid was submitted to create Welsh-medium childcare provision
in Bettws, Ogmore Valley, Bridgend Town and Porthcawl.

Current situation

In September, the Minister for Welsh Language and Lifelong Learning announced
the outcome of the bidding process, and Bridgend County Borough Council was
awarded a £2.6m capital grant.

Preliminary work has started on developing each of the projects. Two teams have
been established (ie a project team and a steering group). The projects will be
managed by project managers within the School Modernisation Team. The School
Modernisation Programme Board will support the projects offering advice and
guidance.

The project team will deliver the construction element of the scheme and work has
commenced on the initial stages of the project focusing on options appraisal in
respect of developable land.

The Welsh Language Steering Group includes key stakeholders including officer
representation, headteachers from Welsh-medium schools within the county
borough and representation from Mudiad Meithrin, Bridgend College, Menter Bro
Ogwr, Bridgend Association of Voluntary Organisations, Urdd and the National Day
Nurseries Association.

The purpose of this steering group will be to support the development and delivery
of the Welsh-medium capital programme. The group will, through consultation and
collaboration, offer a cohesive approach to the provision of effective community
buildings, with a focus on increasing opportunities for children and the wider
community. As there is no revenue element to the grant, this group will work
together to support the programme, contributing to ensure that the end product is
sustainable from a financial perspective.

Page 98



4.6

5.1

6.1

8.1

The steering group’s work has commenced, terms of reference have been agreed
and meetings have been scheduled. The group will actively contribute information
to help inform the work of the project team.

Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules
There is no effect upon the policy framework or procedure rules.
Equality Impact Assessment

Although an Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) initial screening has been carried
out for the programme, once schemes have been sufficiently developed, they will be
subject to separate EIAs, as the detail may vary between projects.

Wellbeing and Future Generations Act (2015)

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Assessment (appendix A)
provides a comprehensive summary of the outcomes expected from the
implementation of the service.

Long-term This project will meet both short and long-term planning with regard
to both the number of childcare places available in the borough,
alongside increasing Welsh-medium provision and focussed Welsh
language benefits for the communities identified.

Prevention It will reduce the impact of long term demands on the level of
childcare in relation to information on the Bridgend local authority
Childcare Sufficiency Assessment (CSA).

The project also has at its aim the ability to increase Welsh speakers
and the number of children entering Welsh language education.

Integration The areas have been considered in the application for the funding
and found to meet expectations set. The project will deliver social,
economic and cultural outcomes as it will be a community asset.

Collaboration The project development and planning phase is being supported by
a steering group where stakeholders with vested interests both
internal to Bridgend County Borough Council and external, form the
group are members.

Involvement The stakeholders involved in the steering group reflect both childcare
and Welsh language organisations. The schemes will deliver beyond
the key focus of childcare and education with other services planned,
focused on sustainability, community benefit and wellbeing of
citizens.

Financial implications

The £2.6m capital allocation equates to £650k per project which covers costs
associated with the design and construction of the building. No capital

Page 99



contribution is required from the Council as the build cost is 100% funded by
Welsh Government.

8.2  Welsh Government has not made revenue funding available for the ongoing
running cost of the buildings, as such, all associated costs (eg energy and
cleaning) for the settings will have to be borne by the end user. It is therefore
critical for the steering group to work together to ensure the future sustainability
of the building.

8.3 Loose furniture, equipment and IT will have to be provided by the end user.

9. Recommendations

Cabinet is recommended to:

¢ note the outcome of the bid submitted to Welsh Government in respect of the
Welsh-medium capital grant; and

e approve the approach to the scheme development.

Lindsay Harvey
Corporate Director - Education and Family Support

Contact Officer:  Nicola Echanis
Head of Education and Early Help
Telephone: (01656) 642611

E-mail: nicola.echanis@bridgend.gov.uk

Background documents

WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS (WALES) ACT 2015 ASSESSMENT
Appendix A

Approve Equalities Impact Assessment

Page 100



TOT abed

Appendix A

WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS (WALES) ACT 2015 ASSESSMENT

Project Description (key aims):

Section 1

Long-term

(The importance of
balancing short
term needs with
the need to
safeguard the
ability to also meet
long term needs)

Complete the table below to assess how well you have applied the 5 ways of working.

1. How does your project / activity balance short-term need with the long-term and planning for the future?

This project will meet both short and long-term planning with regard to both the number of childcare places
available in the borough, alongside increasing Welsh-medium provision and focussed Welsh language
benefits for the communities identified.

Prevention

(How acting to
prevent problems
occurring or
getting worse may
help public bodies
meet their
objectives)

2. How does your project / activity put resources into preventing problems occurring or getting worse?

The development of this project will reduce the impact of long term demands on the level of childcare in
relation to information on the Bridgend local authority Childcare Sufficiency Assessment (CSA).

The project also has at its aim the ability to increase Welsh speakers and the number of children entering
Welsh language education.

Integration

(Considering how
the public body’s
well-being
objectives may

3. How does your project / activity deliver economic, social, environmental & cultural outcomes together?

With the funding sourced from both the Welsh Government (WG) childcare and Welsh language Capital
funding grants, these areas have been considered in the application for the funding and found to meet
expectations set. The project will deliver social, economic and cultural outcomes as it will be a community
asset.




20T abed

impact upon each
of the wellbeing
goals, on their
objectives, or on
the objectives of
other public
bodies)

The programme buildings will be project managed by the School Modernisation Team, with environmental
standards and approaches a strong focus.

Collaboration

(Acting in
collaboration with
any other person
(or different parts
of the body itself)
that could help the
body meet its well-
being objectives)

4. How does your project / activity involve working together with partners (internal and external) to deliver well-
being objectives?

The project development and planning phase is being supported by a steering group where stakeholders with
vested interests both internal to Bridgend County Borough Council (BCBC) and external, form the group are
members.

Involvement

(The importance of
involving people
with an interest in
achieving the well-
being goals, and
ensuring that those
people reflect the
diversity of the
area which the
body serves)

5. How does your project / activity involve stakeholders with an interest in achieving the well-being goals? How
do those stakeholders reflect the diversity of the area?

The stakeholders involved in the steering group reflect both childcare and Welsh language organisations.
Wellbeing of the target audience/users is a strong focus.

The proposed accommodation will be able to deliver beyond the key focus of childcare and education with
other services planned, focused on sustainability, community benefit and wellbeing of citizens.




€0T abed

Section 2

to the national well-being goals (use Appendix 1 to help you).

Description of the Well-being goals

How will your project / activity deliver
benefits to our communities under the
national well-being goals?

Assess how well your project / activity will result in multiple benefits for our communities and contribute

Is there any way to maximise the
benefits or minimise any negative
impacts to our communities (and the
contribution to the national well-being
goals)?

A prosperous Wales

An innovative, productive and low carbon
society which recognises the limits of the
global environment and therefore uses
resources efficiently and proportionately
(including acting on climate change); and
which develops a skilled and well-
educated population in an economy
which generates wealth and provides
employment opportunities, allowing
people to take advantage of the wealth
generated through securing decent work.

Each of the communities involved will
benefit from a range of community
services.

These include further childcare, increased,
workforce opportunities and learning and
development opportunities. It is intended
the venues will offer a wide range of
community services such as wellbeing (eg
yoga) and adult education alongside the
prime focus of childcare and in increasing
opportunities to return to work.

The accommodation and services
planned will need to be sustainable and
will offer each community a range of
wellbeing benefits.

A resilient Wales

A nation which maintains and enhances
a biodiverse natural environment with
healthy functioning ecosystems that
support social, economic and ecological
resilience and the capacity to adapt to
change (for example climate change).

The building will be environmentally and
economically focused on effective global
approaches. The local authority is a key
player in diligence around these factors
when developing new services and
accommodation.

A healthier Wales

A society in which people’s physical and
mental well-being is maximised and in
which choices and behaviours that

It is intended the venue will offer a wide
range of community services. This will
include services with a strong focus on
wellbeing of citizens children, young




0T abed

benefit future health are understood.

people and adults.

A more equal Wales

A society that enables people to fulfil
their potential no matter what their
background or circumstances (including
their socio economic background and
circumstances).

As with many community services, a focus
on fair opportunities will be clear in the
development and operational approaches
used to develop this proposed community
facility.

A Wales of cohesive communities
Attractive, viable, safe and well-
connected communities.

The multi-use buildings proposed will be
community hubs with opportunities for wide
ranging uses.

A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving
Welsh language

A society that promotes and protects
culture, heritage and the Welsh
language, and which encourages people
to participate in the arts, and sports and
recreation.

The primary focus of the planned project is
the goal of increasing the number of Welsh
speakers by 2050.

A globally responsible Wales

A nation which, when doing anything to
improve the economic, social,
environmental and cultural well-being of
Wales, takes account of whether doing
such a thing may make a positive
contribution to global well-being.

The building will be environmentally and
economically focused on effective global
approaches.




GOT abed

Section 3

Will your project / activity affect people or groups of people with protected characteristics? Explain what

will be done to maximise any positive impacts or minimise any negative impacts

Protected characteristics

Will your project / activity have
any positive impacts on those
with a protected characteristic?

Will your project / activity have
any negative impacts on those
with a protected characteristic?

Is there any way to maximise
any positive impacts or
minimise any negative

impacts?

Age: Yes Yes

Gender reassignment: Not known No

Marriage or civil partnership: Yes No

Pregnancy or maternity: Yes No

Race: Yes No

Religion or Belief: Not known No

Race: Yes No

Sex: Yes No

Welsh Language: Yes No The main focus of the

proposed accommodation is to
increase the number of Welsh-
medium childcare places in the
identified areas of the borough.




90T 9bed

Section 4 Identify decision meeting for Project/activity e.g. Cabinet, Council or delegated decision taken by

Executive Members and/or Chief Officers

Cabinet

Compiling Officers Name:

Tina Haddon

Compiling Officers Job Title:

Early Years and Childcare Team Manager

Date completed:

20/11/18




1.1

2.1

3.1

4.1

4.2

5.1

Agenda Item 10

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
REPORT TO CABINET
18 DECEMBER 2018

REPORT BY THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR - EDUCATION AND
FAMILY SUPPORT

APPOINTMENT OF LOCAL AUTHORITY GOVERNORS
Purpose of report

The purpose of this report is to seek approval from Cabinet for the appointment of
local authority governors to the school governing bodies listed at paragraph 4.1.

Connection to corporate improvement objectives/other corporate priorities
This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate priority/priorities:

o Supporting a successful economy — taking steps to make the county a good
place to do business, for people to live, work, study and visit, and to ensure
that our schools are focused on raising the skills, qualifications and ambitions
of all people in the county.

Background

In accordance with the Council’s ‘Guidance on the appointment of local education
authority governors’ approved by Cabinet on 14 October 2008, officers have
considered applications received for current and forthcoming vacancies for local
authority governor positions on school governing bodies (see paragraph 4.1 and
Appendix A).

Current situation/proposal
For the five schools below, all five applicants met the approved criteria for

appointment as local authority governors and there was no competition for any of
the vacancies. Therefore, the recommended appointments are:

Mr Kevin Pascoe Archbishop McGrath Catholic High School
Miss Laura Sampson Caerau Primary School

Mrs Michele Harding Cynffig Comprehensive School

Mr Gerald Jarvis Ffaldau Primary School

Mrs Karen Jones Llangewydd Junior School

Subject to the above appointments being approved, there are still 22 vacancies that
need to be filled in 18 schools (see Appendix A).

Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules

There is no effect upon the policy framework or procedure rules.

Page 107



6.1

7.1

Equality Impact Assessment

An assessment of the appointment of local authority governors identifies that there
are no equalities issues related to this report.

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 assessment has been
completed and is detailed at Appendix B. A summary of the implications from the
assessment relating to the five ways of working is as follows:

Long term

While it is desirable for local authority governors to have previous or relevant
experience of the role, in the short-term, the local authority may support any person
for such an appointment who is interested in supporting schools, is not disqualified
from being a school governor and is willing and able to dedicate the necessary time
to the role.

Prevention

The local authority assesses the suitability of applicants for the local authority
governor vacancy/vacancies applied for. The local authority, in conjunction with
Central South Consortium, supports governors with a comprehensive programme of
both mandatory and voluntary training and access to resources, to enable them to
develop and maintain their knowledge and skills, and be successful in fulfilling the
role.

Integration

School governing bodies have a strategic role in running schools and ensuring that
all pupils are supported to learn and achieve so that they can access opportunities

for further learning and employment, know how to maintain their wellbeing, can play
active roles in their communities and can contribute positively to society as a whole.

Collaboration

School governing bodies have a strategic role in ensuring that schools safeguard
the health and wellbeing of pupils and staff. The local authority, in conjunction with
the Central South Consortium, provides training to governors to enable them to
develop and maintain their relevant knowledge, skills and effectiveness in this
respect.

Involvement

The local authority treats all applications for local authority governor vacancies
fairly, to ensure equality of opportunity. School governing bodies have a strategic
role in ensuring that schools safeguard the health and wellbeing of pupils and staff.
The local authority, in conjunction with Central South Consortium, provides training
to governors to enable them to develop and maintain their relevant knowledge, skills
and effectiveness in this respect.

Page 108



8. Financial implications

8.1  There are no financial implications regarding this report.

9. Recommendation

9.1  Cabinet is recommended to approve the appointments listed at paragraph 4.1.

Mr Lindsay Harvey
Corporate Director, Education and Family Support

Contact Officer: Mandy Jones

Learner Support Officer
Telephone: (01656) 642629
E-mail: Amanda.Jones@bridgend.gov.uk

Postal Address: Education and Family Support Directorate
Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices
Angel Street
Bridgend
CF31 4WB

Background documents

= Bridgend County Borough Council’s ‘Guidance on the appointment of local
education authority governors’, approved by Cabinet on 14 October 2008

= The Government of Maintained Schools (Wales) Regulations 2005

Page 109



Appendix A

Local authority governor vacancies, current and forthcoming, up to the end of

January 2019

Name of school

Number of current and
forthcoming vacancies

Bryntirion Comprehensive School

-_—

Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd

Abercerdin Primary School

Afon y Felin Primary School

Archdeacon John Lewis Church in Wales Primary School

Betws Primary School

Cefn Glas Infants School

Llangewydd Junior School

Llangynwyd Primary School

Newton Primary School

Nottage Primary School

Ogmore Vale Primary School

Porthcawl Primary School

Plasnewydd Primary School

St Mary’s Catholic Primary School

St Robert’s Catholic Primary School

Tynyrheol Primary School

Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Ogwr

NINDIND(RR RN R

TOTAL VACANCIES

N
N

Page 110




TTT 9bed

Appendix B

WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS (WALES) ACT 2015 ASSESSMENT

Long-term

(The importance of
balancing short
term needs with
the need to
safeguard the
ability to also meet
long term needs)

Project Description (key aims):

Appointment of local authority governors to the governing bodies of maintained schools in Bridgend

Section 1 Complete the table below to assess how well you have applied the 5 ways of working.

1. How does your project / activity balance short-term need with the long-term and planning for the
future?

The governing body of a maintained school is responsible for the conduct of a school. It takes a strategic role
in the running of the school, meaning that is must decide what it wants the school to achieve and must set out
a framework for getting there. That framework will include a number of short, medium and long-term aims,
objectives and targets.

Each governing body of a maintained school must be constituted in accordance with the Education Act 2002.
All governing bodies have a combination of appointed or elected governors of various types. The four
compulsory, common stakeholder groups are parents, teacher, staff and local authority representatives.
(Others groups vary according to the category of school and may include foundation, community,
representative and partnerships governors). Local authority governors are appointed by the local authority. All
school governors are volunteers.

Optimal performance in discharging the governance functions occurs when all roles on the governing body
are filled by individuals who have previous experience working as a governor and/or working with schools or
in educational settings and/or any experience, at home, at work or elsewhere, that may be relevant to the
school governor role. However, the local authority approach to recruitment of local authority governors has to
take account of the fact that local authority representatives are one of the compulsory stakeholder groups and,
in the short term, the local authority may support any person for such an appointment who is interested in
supporting schools, is not disqualified from being a school governor and is willing and able to dedicate the
necessary time to the role. The local authority, in conjunction with the Central South Consortium, supports
new governor appointments with a comprehensive programme of both mandatory and voluntary training and
access to resources, to enable them to develop their knowledge and skills and be successful in fulfilling the
role.




ZTT abed

Prevention

(How acting to
prevent problems
occurring or
getting worse may
help public bodies
meet their
objectives)

2. How does your project / activity put resources into preventing problems occurring or getting
worse?

The local authority acts to fill governor vacancies as soon as possible. Vacancies are advertised to elected
members and all existing members of governing bodies. Information about the role of governors and how to
become a local authority governor is published on the local authority’s website.

The local authority seeks information from each applicant for a local authority governor appointment relating to
relevant past and present experience and skills, the reasons why the applicant wishes to become a governor
and the areas in which the applicant feels able to contribute to the function and work of the governing body.
The local authority also seeks information on the reasons for the choice/s of school including the applicant’s
knowledge of the school and any past or present associations with the school. The local authority uses this
information as part of considering the suitability of the applicant for the vacancy/vacancies applied for.

The local authority, in conjunction with Central South Consortium, supports both new governor appointments
and existing governors with a comprehensive programme of both mandatory and voluntary training and
access to resources, to enable them to develop and maintain their knowledge and skills, and be successful in
fulfilling the role.

Integration

(Considering how
the public body’s
well-being
objectives may
impact upon each
of the wellbeing
goals, on their
objectives, or on
the objectives of
other public
bodies)

3. How does your project / activity deliver economic, social, environmental & cultural outcomes
together?

Local authority governors are a key stakeholder group on school governing bodies. School governing bodies
take a strategic role in running schools ensuring that all pupils are supported to learn and achieve such that
they are able to access opportunities for further learning and employment, know how to maintain their
wellbeing, can play active roles in their communities and contribute positively to society as a whole.

Collaboration

4. How does your project / activity involve working together with partners (internal and external) to
deliver well-being objectives?




cTT abed

(Acting in
collaboration with
any other person
(or different parts
of the body itself)
that could help the
body meet its well-
being objectives)

The governing body of a school oversees the achievement of aims, objectives and targets for ensuring that
the school safeguards the health and wellbeing of its pupils and staff. The local authority, in conjunction with
Central South Consortium, provides a training programme for both new governor appointments and existing
governors to enable them to develop and maintain their relevant knowledge, skills and effectiveness in this
respect.

Involvement

(The importance of
involving people
with an interest in
achieving the well-
being goals, and
ensuring that those
people reflect the
diversity of the
area which the
body serves)

5. How does your project / activity involve stakeholders with an interest in achieving the well-being
goals? How do those stakeholders reflect the diversity of the area?

The governing body of a school oversees the achievement of aims, objectives and targets for ensuring that
the school safeguards the health and wellbeing of its pupils and staff. The local authority, in conjunction with
Central South Consortium, provides a training programme for both new governor appointments and existing
governors to enable them to develop and maintain their relevant knowledge, skills and effectiveness in this
respect.

The local authority treats all applications for local authority governor vacancies fairly to ensure equality of
opportunity.




v TT abed

Section 2

to the national well-being goals (use Appendix 1 to help you).

Description of the Well-being goals

How will your project / activity deliver
benefits to our communities under the
national well-being goals?

Assess how well your project / activity will result in multiple benefits for our communities and contribute

Is there any way to maximise the
benefits or minimise any negative
impacts to our communities (and the
contribution to the national well-being
goals)?

A prosperous Wales

An innovative, productive and low carbon
society which recognises the limits of the
global environment and therefore uses
resources efficiently and proportionately
(including acting on climate change); and
which develops a skilled and well-
educated population in an economy
which generates wealth and provides
employment opportunities, allowing
people to take advantage of the wealth
generated through securing decent work.

Local authority governors are a key
stakeholder group on school governing
bodies. School governing bodies take a
strategic role in running schools ensuring
that all pupils are supported to learn and
achieve such that they are able to access
opportunities for further learning and
employment.

In particular, school governing bodies take
a strategic role in both ensuring the school
acts to improve learner outcomes for
vulnerable groups of children and ensuring
that strategies are progressed to assist
more-able young people reach their full
potential.

The local authority, in conjunction with
Central South Consortium and partners
such as Estyn, closely monitors the
performance of schools/governing bodies
in discharging their responsibilities.

A resilient Wales

A nation which maintains and enhances
a biodiverse natural environment with
healthy functioning ecosystems that
support social, economic and ecological
resilience and the capacity to adapt to
change (for example climate change).

Local authority governors are a key
stakeholder group on school governing
bodies. School governing bodies take a
strategic role in running schools, ensuring
delivery of the national curriculum.

The national curriculum includes personal
and social education with the specific aims

The local authority, in conjunction with
Central South Consortium and partners
such as Estyn, closely monitors the
performance of schools/governing bodies
in delivering the national curriculum.




GTT abed

being to:

* develop learners’ self-esteem and a
sense of personal responsibility;

» promote self-respect, respect for others
and celebrate diversity;

* equip learners to live safe, healthy lives;
* prepare learners for the choices and
opportunities of lifelong learning;

* empower learners to participate in their
schools and communities as

active responsible citizens locally,
nationally and globally;

« foster positive attitudes and behaviour
towards the principles of

sustainable development and global
citizenship; and

* prepare learners for the challenges,
choices and responsibilities of work.

A healthier Wales

A society in which people’s physical and
mental well-being is maximised and in
which choices and behaviours that
benefit future health are understood.

Local authority governors are a key
stakeholder group on school governing
bodies. School governing bodies take a
strategic role in running schools, ensuring
delivery of the national curriculum.

The national curriculum includes personal
and social education with the specific aims
being to:

» develop learners’ self-esteem and a
sense of personal responsibility;

» promote self-respect, respect for others
and celebrate diversity;

* equip learners to live safe, healthy lives;
* prepare learners for the choices and

The local authority, in conjunction with
Central South Consortium and partners
such as Estyn, closely monitors the
performance of schools/governing bodies
in delivering the national curriculum and
discharging all responsibilities.




9TT abed

opportunities of lifelong learning;

* empower learners to participate in their
schools and communities as

active responsible citizens locally,
nationally and globally;

« foster positive attitudes and behaviour
towards the principles of

sustainable development and global
citizenship; and

* prepare learners for the challenges,
choices and responsibilities of work.

A more equal Wales

A society that enables people to fulfil
their potential no matter what their
background or circumstances (including
their socio economic background and
circumstances).

School governing bodies take a strategic
role in ensuring the school acts to improve
learner outcomes for vulnerable groups of
children and ensure equality of
opportunity.

The local authority treats all applications
for local authority governor vacancies fairly
to ensure equality of opportunity.

The local authority, in conjunction with
Central South Consortium and partners
such as Estyn, closely monitors the
performance of schools/governing bodies
in discharging their responsibilities.

A Wales of cohesive communities
Attractive, viable, safe and well-
connected communities.

Schools/governing bodies play a pivotal
role in the community and contributing to
community cohesion, not only through
education provision but also through a
focus on relationship between pupils and
the school, their community and wider
society. They provide opportunities for
people to interact, work together, develop
positive relationships and make a
contribution to their community. Further,
they emphasise the importance of a

The local authority, in conjunction with
Central South Consortium and partners
such as Estyn, evaluates how
schools/governing bodies support and
enable children and young people to
contribute to their communities. Also
how well decisions are made and
priorities are set for improvement that
balance immediate, short-term needs
with the long-term needs of learners, the
local community and Wales.




/TT abed

common vision, shared values based on
democracy, equality, diversity, tolerance,
fairness and justice and creating a sense
of belonging.

A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving
Welsh language

A society that promotes and protects
culture, heritage and the Welsh
language, and which encourages people
to participate in the arts, and sports and
recreation.

The Welsh language, art and design,
design and technology, music, history and
physical education all forms part of the
national curriculum in Wales.

Local authority governors are a key
stakeholder group on school governing
bodies. School governing bodies take a
strategic role in running schools, ensuring
delivery of the national curriculum.

The local authority, in conjunction with
Central South Consortium and partners
such as Estyn, closely monitors the
performance of schools/governing bodies
in delivering the national curriculum.

A globally responsible Wales

A nation which, when doing anything to
improve the economic, social,
environmental and cultural well-being of
Wales, takes account of whether doing
such a thing may make a positive
contribution to global well-being.

Local authority governors are a key
stakeholder group on school governing
bodies. School governing bodies take a
strategic role in running schools ensuring
that all pupils are supported to learn and
achieve such that they are able to access
opportunities for further learning and
employment, know how to maintain their
wellbeing, can play active roles in their
communities and contribute positively to
society as a whole.

The local authority, in conjunction with
Central South Consortium and partners
such as Estyn, closely monitors the
performance of schools/governing bodies
in discharging their responsibilities.




8TT abed

Section 3

Will your project / activity affect people or groups of people with protected characteristics? Explain what

will be done to maximise any positive impacts or minimise any negative impacts

Protected characteristics

Will your project / activity have
any positive impacts on those
with a protected characteristic?

Will your project / activity have
any negative impacts on those
with a protected characteristic?

Is there any way to maximise
any positive impacts or
minimise any negative

impacts?

Age: Yes No Performance monitoring and
evaluation.

Gender reassignment: Yes No Performance monitoring and
evaluation.

Marriage or civil partnership: Yes No Performance monitoring and
evaluation.

Pregnancy or maternity: Yes No Performance monitoring and
evaluation.

Race: Yes No Performance monitoring and
evaluation.

Religion or Belief: Yes No Performance monitoring and
evaluation.

Race: Yes No Performance monitoring and
evaluation.

Sex: Yes No Performance monitoring and
evaluation.

Welsh Language: Yes No Performance monitoring and

evaluation.




6TT 26ed

Section 4 Identify decision meeting for Project/activity e.g. Cabinet, Council or delegated decision taken by

Executive Members and/or Chief Officers

Cabinet

Compiling Officers Name:

Dawn Davies

Compiling Officers Job Title:

Principal Officer, Knowledge and Learner Support

Date completed:

05/12/18




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 11

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
REPORT TO CABINET
18 DECEMBER 2018
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR - SOCIAL SERVICES & WELLBEING
ADVOCACY - CHILDREN’S SERVICES
1.0 Purpose of Report

1.1 Approval is sought to enter into an Inter-Authority Agreement (IAA) with Rhondda
Cynon Taff County Borough Council (RCT) and Merthyr Tydfil County Borough
Council (Merthyr) to manage and oversee the commission of a Cwm Taf regional
service for an Independent Professional Advocacy (IPA) and Independent Visiting
(IV) service for eligible Children and Young People (CYP).

2.0 Connection to Corporate Plan
2.1  This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate priorities:-

e Helping people to be more self-reliant — taking early steps to reduce or
prevent people from becoming vulnerable or dependent on the Council and its
services.

e Smarter use of resources — ensuring that all its resources (financial, physical,
human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as possible and
support the development of resources throughout the community that can help
deliver the Council’s priorities.

3.0 Background

3.1 BCBC holds a statutory duty to provide an IPA service for eligible CYP, notably
Looked After Children, Children in Need and those in Child Protection. The Welsh
Government has established a ‘National Approach’ to Children’s Advocacy based
on regional commissioning, the provision of an Active Offer of advocacy for eligible
CYP, and an option to include a complimentary IV service.

3.2  The ‘National Approach’ for advocacy for CYP is prescribed by Welsh Government,
including a contributory grant towards its delivery in each region. The current
Bridgend service was commissioned as a Western Bay regional service from 1st
August 2017 with the procurement being led by Swansea Council, who remain the
lead contracting Authority. The existing provider in Bridgend (Tros Gynnal Plant)
secured the Western Bay contract which has been extended to 31st March 2019.

3.3 The Western Bay contract was supported by an IAA between BCBC, Neath Port
Talbot and Swansea Councils.

4.0 Current Situation

4.1 To remain compliant with the Welsh Government's National Approach, the CYP
Advocacy service requires regional commissioning.

Page 121



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

7.2

On 14% June 2018 the Welsh Government announced that the health board
boundary for Bridgend would change from Abertawe Bro Morgannwg University
Health Board to Cwm Taf University Health Board. As a result of this Bridgend will
be required to position itself within the Cwm Taf region from April 2019.

Cwm Taf, as a region that includes RCT and Merthyr councils, is currently receiving
a service from National Youth Advocacy Service (NYAS) as their provider. They are
re-tendering for this service to start from April 2019.

Discussions are underway with commissioning colleagues in both Western Bay and
Cwm Taf regions to manage the current service and to ensure that Bridgend
continues to receive an effective advocacy service for young people.

The change to regional partnership working from Western Bay to Cwm Taf requires
a change of the regional areas prescribed by Welsh Government within the
guidance for the National Approach. The Welsh Government has confirmed that this
will take place and that the current grant provision for Bridgend will be available via
Cwm Taf from April 2019.

The proposal is for a regional IAA and joint procurement of services starting from
1st April 2019. RCT will act as Lead Authority for the regional procurement
exercise, with BCBC officers participating in the tender process and evaluation
panel. A two year contract is proposed, with an option to extend for up to two more
years.

BCBC Legal and Procurement Officers have advised on the need for an IAA which
outlines the roles and responsibilities of all three commissioning Authorities entering
into a regional contract. BCBC Legal Officers have contributed to the drafting of the
proposed IAA.

Effect upon Policy Framework and Procedure Rules

There is no impact on the policy framework and procedure rules.

Equality Impact Assessment

The Children and Young People Advocacy service is prescribed by Welsh
Government through a National Approach targeted at specific client groups.

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Implications

The commissioned advocacy service aims to assist eligible children and young
people to have greater voice, choice and control in their lives. The wellbeing goals
of a healthier Wales, a more equal Wales, and a Wales of cohesive communities
are therefore supported through these services.

The commissioning of the advocacy service supports the five ways of working
under the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015, as follows:

Page 122



8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

10.

11.

Long Term — statutory IPA ensures that young people are better supported to have
voice, choice and control in maintaining their independence and wellbeing in the
longer-term.

Prevention — the IPA service aims for early-intervention to prevent unnecessary
escalation of needs. By identifying and addressing issues via advocacy, earlier
resolution can be achieved.

Integration — the service works across sectors taking in referrals from statutory
services, health and social care agencies, and the advocacy itself is delivered by
third sector providers within the advocacy sector in Bridgend.

Collaboration — The National Approach service model is predicated on close
collaboration between the service provider and with social services teams in each of
the three commissioning Authorities.

Involvement — Young People (via Voices from Care) are proposed to be involved in
the procurement exercise. The IPA service itself responds directly to the issues and
concerns of the young people who use the service.

Financial Implications

The budget for this service is calculated based on the National Approach guidance
from Welsh Government and on service data submitted over the past 18 months,
and indicatively will be in the order of £75,000 per annum for Bridgend which is in
line with current and historic costs. The contributory funding of £24,984 from Welsh
Government has been confirmed to continue, delivered via RCT CBC as the lead
contracting authority for this service in Cwm Taf.

Recommendation

Cabinet is asked to approve the proposal to enter into an Inter-Authority Agreement
with RCT and Merthyr, and to note that approval to award the regional Independent
Professional Advocacy and Independent Visiting service contract will be sought via
Delegated Powers (under BCBC’s Scheme of Delegation) once the procurement
and evaluation process has been undertaken.

Susan Cooper
Corporate Director — Social Services and Wellbeing
December 2018

Contact Officer

Laura Kinsey, Head of Service, Children and Young People
01656 642314
Laura.Kinsey@bridgend.gov.uk

Background documents
None

Page 123


mailto:Laura.Kinsey@bridgend.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
REPORT TO CABINET
18 DECEMBER 2018
REPORT OF THE HEAD OF LEGAL AND REGULATORY SERVICES

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT SECTION 65
POWER TO FIX FARES FOR HACKNEY CARRIAGES

OBJECTIONS TO THE PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE HACKNEY CARRIAGE FARES
TARIFF

1. Purpose of report

1.1 To consider objections to the proposal approved by Cabinet on 23 October 2018 to
vary the current Bridgend County Borough Council’s rate of hackney carriage fares.

2. Connection to corporate improvement objectives/other corporate priorities
2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate priority/priorities:

e Supporting a successful economy — taking steps to make the county a good
place to do business, for people to live, work, study and visit, and to ensure
that our schools are focused on raising the skills, qualifications and ambitions
of all people in the county.

3. Background

3.1 Bridgend County Borough Council regulates the maximum fares that can be
charged to passengers in hackney carriages within the county borough. This is in
accordance with Section 65(1) of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions)
Act 1976. The Section requires that any variation of the fare must be advertised in a
local paper and that a period of notice of at least 14 days be given to enable any
person to make objections.

3.2  The current Bridgend County Borough Council table of fares includes a pickup rate
(commonly referred to as the flag) when the journey commences, this includes the
first half mile of the journey. After this distance, the fare increases by a set amount
(commonly referred to as the click) every eighth of a mile.

3.3 At the Cabinet meeting of the 5 September 2017, The Head of Shared Regulatory
Services reported on three proposals, to vary the current hackney carriage table of
fares, received from:

1. Mr James Boland and Mr Richard Parrot
2. Mr Tom Burke
3. Mr Dario Nelson

Cabinet decided to reject the three proposals and recommended the legality and

practicalities of consulting on hackney carriage fees with the taxi trade and public
be explored.

Page 125



3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

41

4.2

In light of Cabinet’s decision, officers asked each of the applicants to consider the
other proposals with a view to presenting a further single application with support
from all parties. However, no consensus could be reached between the applicants.
During this period an additional application was received from Mr Peter Renwick of
Premier Cars (Cardiff) Ltd.

A letter and response questionnaire was sent out to each of the licensed hackney
carriage/private hire vehicle drivers in Bridgend, seeking their views and whether
they have a preferred option on the 3 proposals previously considered by Cabinet,
and the subsequent proposal received from Mr Peter Renwick of Premier Cars
(Cardiff) Ltd.

Letters were sent out to hackney carriage/private hire vehicle drivers in Bridgend, of
which the Licensing Department received 67 responses. The responses showed
that Proposal 1 was the preferred option, chosen by 34.3% of respondents. 85.1%
of respondents indicated that they are in support of at least one of the proposed
increases. The table below details the preferred proposal from the responses:

Proposal No. of Respondents — Percentage of
chosen preferred option Respondents

Proposal 1 23 34.3%

Proposal 2 7 10.4%

Proposal 3 18 26.9%

Proposal 4 9 13.4%

No Change 10 14.9%

A subsequent report was taken to Cabinet on 23 October 2018 which gave details
of the proposals and the results of the consultation. Cabinet approved Proposal 1,
submitted by Mr James Borland and Richard Parrott, subject to the issuing of a
public notice in a local newspaper inviting objections. A copy of the report and
relevant considerations are referenced in Appendix A.

In accordance with the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, a
public notice was published in a local newspaper on 1 November 2018, inviting
objections to proposed fare increase until midday on 16 November 2018. A copy of
the notice was also available at the Bridgend Civic Offices during office hours.

Current situation/proposal

The tables set out in paragraph 4.15 of the report to Cabinet on 23 October 2018
contained incorrect figures for the cost of a 5 mile and 15 mile journeys for Proposal
1. Cabinet therefore made their decision when selecting Option 1 on incorrect
figures produced in the report.

The table below contains the information as previously provided to Members, with
the figures as they should have been in bold. The information contained within the
Appendix to the October report and the information that was provided to licensed
drivers during the consultation, for which they were asked to provide a preferred
option, was correct and as such the results of the consultation are based on the
correct figures.

Page 126



: Tariff 1 Tariff 2 Tariff 3 Tariff 4
5 mile fare cost (1-4 passengers) (1-4 passengers) (5+ passengers) (5+ passengers)
Current Bridgend | o9 7 £12.30 £13.50 £16.30
Tariff
Mr Borland / Mr £10.80 £13.40 £14.50 £17.40
_llzf::i;?t(tpljgop;zs;ci ) (Correct: (Correct: (Correct: (Correct:
P £11.80) £13.50) £15.60) £18.40)
Mr Burke
Proposed Tariff £11.50 £14.55 £15.75 £19.00
(Proposal 2)
Mr Renwick
Proposed Tariff £11.10 £13.70 £16.40 £18.30
(Proposal 3)
£14.90* 10pm £17.30**
Mr Nelson Tariff —3am 10pm — 3am
£12.20 £14.20**
(Proposal 4) £17.40* £19.80**
3am — 6am 3am — 6am
15 mile fare cost | + 21| Tariff 2 Tariff 3 Tariff 4
Sa-gsengers) (1-4 passengers) (5+ passengers) (5+ passengers)
Current Bridgend £25.70 £32.30 £33.50 £40.30
Tariff
Mr Borland / Mr £32.80
Parrott Proposed (Correct: £35.50 £39.60 £46.40
Tariff (Proposal 1) £31.80) |
Mr Burke Proposed
Tariff £31.50 £39.55 £40.75 £49.00
(Proposal 2)
Mr Renwick
Proposed Tariff £29.10 £35.70 £41.40 £45.30
(Proposal 3)
£39.90* £42.30**
Mr Nelson Tariff 10pm — 3am . 10pm — 3am
(Proposal 4) £32.20 £47.40* £34.20 £49.80*
3am — 6am 3am — 6am

*Mr Nelson’s proposal includes an additional tariff that operates from 3am — 6am.
**Due to the additional proposed tariffs, the current tariff 3 and 4 would be the
equivalent of Mr Nelson’s proposed tariff's 4 and 5/6.

Page 127



4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

5.1

Three objections were received to the public notice, detailed in redacted form in
Appendix B.

Response 1 is from a member of the trade and objects to the proposed increase on
the grounds that the table contained within the report to Cabinet on 23 October
2018 contained incorrect figures for the 5 mile fare cost for Mr Borland and Mr
Parrott’'s’ Proposal (Proposal 1).

Response 1 also objects to the proposed increase on the grounds that the chosen
proposal includes a varying amount per ‘click’ depending on the tariff in operation,
but there is a set waiting time of 20 pence per minute. Due to the way that pulse
taximeters operate, they must be calibrated so that the amounts charged for the
waiting time and the click match. In order to calibrate a pulse taximeter to
accommodate different amounts for the click and the waiting time, the waiting time
must be adjusted accordingly.

For example, Tariff 2 of the proposed variation has a click of 22 pence for every
tenth of a mile travelled, but the waiting time is 20 pence per minute. Therefore, to
accommodate this tariff the waiting time must be set to increase at intervals of 22
pence every 66 seconds (to maintain the waiting time of 20 pence per minute).

The current Bridgend County Borough Council table of fares includes differing rates
for the click, depending on the tariff in operation, but a flat rate waiting time. As a
result, pulse taximeters are currently calibrated using the above method and if the
proposed tariff were to be implemented, this is the calibration method that would be
used for the waiting time.

Response 2 to the public notice is from a member of the trade and contains an
email objecting to the proposed increase for hackney carriage fares. A follow up
email was sent to the responder asking if they wish to expand on their objection;
however, no further email was received.

Response 3 to the public notice is from a member of the trade and objects to the
proposed increase. The responder states that the proposed increase will result in
customers having to walk or face further hardship to afford a taxi at a time when
people are losing their jobs and taxi drivers want extra money when they earn more
than the living wage. The responder also states that an increase in the fares would
result in the public taking fewer journeys by taxi.

On 23 October 2018, Cabinet resolved that Proposal 1 go forward based on the
information contained within that report which was incorrect. Cabinet is now
required to consider the objections and determine whether they remain content with
the decision to ratify Proposal 1 as the preferred option based on the correct
figures, or having reviewed the information regarding the updated figures, to now
select a different proposal.

Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules
None

Equality Impact Assessment

Page 128



6.1  The proposal has been screened for the potential impact on protected groups within
the community and human rights. We do not consider on the basis of the above
that a detailed Equality Impact Assessment is required for this proposal at this
stage, but the position will be reviewed at the end of the consultation process.

7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications

7.1 A summary of the implications from the assessment:

e Integration — Taxis form part of the public transport network with
environmental and economic benefits for the wellbeing goal of A Prosperous
Wales

e Collaboration - Stakeholders within the taxi trade as well as the general
public will have the opportunity to consider the application and respond to the
consultation

¢ Involvement - Applications to increase taxi fares involve consultation with the
public and any representations will be reported back to Cabinet before a final
decision is taken.

8. Financial implications

8.1  This report does not result directly in any additional financial implications.
9. Recommendation

9.1 Members are recommended to:

a. Note the representations received in Appendix B in consideration of the
decision taken by Cabinet on the 23 October 2018 to amend the tariff of
fares.

b. Determine whether to continue with Proposal 1 and introduce a new hackney

carriage tariff based on the amended figures set out in this report with an
implementation date no later than 2 February 2019.

c. Select an alternative proposal to go to public notice (and set a date for
implementation).

d. Retain the existing fare regime.

Kelly Watson
Head of Legal and Regulatory Services

Contact officer: Daniel Cook
Licensing Policy Officer

Telephone: (01656) 643105
Email: licensing@bridgend.gov.uk
Postal address: Licensing
Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street

Page 129



Bridgend. CF31 4WB
Background documents:

Consultation responses

Page 130



Appendix A

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO CABINET

23 OCTOBER 2018

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF LEGAL AND REGULATORY SERVICES

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT SECTION 65
POWER TO FIX FARES FOR HACKNEY CARRIAGES

APPLICATIONS TO VARY THE HACKNEY CARRIAGE FARES TARIFF

1.

1.1

1.2

2.1

3.1

3.2

3.3

Purpose of report

To report back on the trade consultation carried out in respect of the Bridgend
County Borough hackney carriage table of fares. This was following proposals
received by the Licensing Department to amend the table of fares.

To consider the proposals and the consultation responses, and to determine
whether one of the proposals should go forward to the public notice process.

Connection to corporate improvement objectives/other corporate priorities
This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate priority/priorities:

e Supporting a successful economy — taking steps to make the county a good
place to do business, for people to live, work, study and visit, and to ensure
that our schools are focused on raising the skills, qualifications and ambitions
of all people in the county.

Background

Bridgend County Borough Council regulates the maximum fares that can be
charged to passengers in hackney carriages within the county borough. This is in
accordance with Section 65(1) of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions)
Act 1976. The Section requires that any variation of the fare must be advertised in a
local paper and that a period of notice of at least 14 days be given to enable any
person to make objections.

The Bridgend County Borough Council table of fares includes a pickup rate
(commonly referred to as the flag) when the journey commences, this currently
includes the first half mile of the journey. After this distance, the fare increases by a
set amount (commonly referred to as the click) every eighth of a mile.

At the Cabinet meeting of the 5 September 2017, The Head of Shared Regulatory
Services reported on three proposals, to vary the current hackney carriage table of
fares, received from:

1. Mr James Boland and Mr Richard Parrot

2. Mr Tom Burke

3. Mr Dario Nelson

Page 131


cookd2
Text Box
Appendix A


3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

4.1

Cabinet decided to reject the three proposals and recommended the legality and
practicalities of consulting on hackney carriage fees with the taxi trade and public
be explored.

In light of Cabinet’s decision, officers asked each of the applicants to consider the
other proposals with a view to presenting a further single application with support
from all parties. During this period, an additional application was received from Mr
Peter Renwick of Premier Cars (Cardiff) Ltd.

The current table of fares has been in place in Bridgend County Borough since 15th
August 2011. A copy of the current table of fares is attached at Appendix A.

The cost of renewing a 1 year hackney carriage/private hire driver’s licence has
increased from £44 in 2011 to £63 in 2018 (an increase of 43.2%). However, it
should be noted that a year 3 year licence was introduced in 2015, following
changes in legislation. The cost of a 3 year licence in 2018 is £122, therefore if
drivers choose a 3 year licence, the annual cost is £40.67 (a decrease of 7.6%).
The annual cost of a hackney carriage vehicle licence (including 2 vehicle tests) has
increased from £247 in 2011 to £267 in 2018 (an increase of 8.1%). A list of the
current taxi licensing fees and the fees that were charged when the table of fares
were last amended is attached at Appendix B.

The table below shows the year on year percentage change of the Consumer Price
Index (CPI) in the UK from 2011 to 2017. During this period, inflation as measured
by the CPI has increased by 14.8%.

Year CPI Percentage Change
2011 4.5%

2012 2.8%

2013 2.6%

2014 1.5%

2015 0%

2016 0.7%

2017 2.7%

The Licensing Section is a regulatory body and therefore does not hold data on taxi
usage within the county borough.

Current situation/proposal

Following the comments made at the previous Cabinet meeting, the applicants were
asked to review the other proposals received to date by the Licensing Department.
However, no consensus could be reached. Comments received regarding the other
proposals included:

e “Tariff 2 should kick in later around 10pm”

e “In general the tariffs are too expensive and would potentially put off the public
using taxis”

e “No different rate for Sunday's, also there should be no £1 premium added
either”

Page 132



4.2

4.3

4.4

e “There is a proposal for waiting time to be increased for tariff 2 to 6. We feel that
the waiting time should remain at 20p per minute and part thereof”

e “If the general feeling is that there is a need for the waiting time to be increased,
we feel the maximum it should be increased to is 25p per minute or part thereof”

e “Rate per click should match the tariff amount, as it currently does not match the
way the meter works”

e “Sticking to the current Bridgend style of tariffs would be simpler for the public to
understand”

As no consensus could be reached between the applicants, a letter and response
questionnaire was sent out to each of the -currently licensed hackney
carriage/private hire vehicle drivers in Bridgend, seeking their views and whether
they have a preferred option on the 3 proposals previously considered by Cabinet,
and the subsequent proposal received from Mr Peter Renwick of Premier Cars
(Cardiff) Ltd. A copy of the proposals and questionnaire are detailed in Appendix C.

There were 653 letters sent out, of which the Licensing Department received 67
responses. The responses showed that Proposal 1 was the preferred option,
chosen by 34.3% of respondents. 85.1% of respondents indicated that they are in
support of at least one of the proposed increases. The table below details the
breakdown of the responses:

Proposal No. of Respondents — Percentage of
chosen preferred option Respondents

Proposal 1 23 34.3%

Proposal 2 7 10.4%

Proposal 3 18 26.9%

Proposal 4 9 13.4%

No Change 10 14.9%

Respondents were also given an opportunity to provide comments on the
proposals. Below is a cross-section of the comments received, the full list of
redacted responses are detailed at Appendix D for email submissions and Appendix
E for paper submissions:

e Proposal 2 is to complicated over Christmas Proposal 3 will kill the trade on a
Sunday Proposal 4 will cause problems for drivers working overnight where
tariffs change at 3am.

e A modest increase is well overdue, especially as running costs and council fees
are never reduced or frozen to help owners.

e Proposal 3 equates roughly to an increase in distance of about 13% which is
only minimal so wont effect trade. The other proposals want an increase in
distance on tariff 1 of 25% which is too much of an increase in one go and will
effect trade in a negative way.

e We in Bridgend are 329th of 366 currently in the county tariff ratings of the whole
of the UK. Tariff proposals 1, 2 & 3 would mean that we would be in the region
of 200th at best for the 2 mile fare comparison. Quite a few in that price region
haven’t had a price increase for some time and so may well be probably due.

Page 133




¢ Increasing tariffs for hackney carriage sooner will exert more pressure to the
families with low income who are mostly depended on using our service. You
may be aware that about more than 60% of our custom is from low and middle
income groups.

e Since last rate increase over 7 years ago fuel, insurance, maintenance,
medicals and council fees have increased significantly being fair to customers
have chosen cheapest increase but had one had increase every couple of years
we would be charging more

e The licensed taxi trade have shown restraint during these past few years of
austerity imposed on the country by government in not applying to increase the
tariffs, but now is the time for an increase to avoid the trade becoming insolvent
and putting a risk to public safety by cost cutting on maintenance and servicing.

e Having viewed the retail price index and consumer price index | can interpret an
average cost of living increase of between 23% to 27% for the essential living
whilst certain luxuries and house prices and rent have gone up in excess of this.

e When the fuel cost reaches an average of £1.45 per litre, only then tariff review
may be considered. Increasing Tariffs at this point or near future will not benefit
any.

e This should 100% increase, especially as fuel prices are going up. Also tariff 2
should be all day Saturday/Sunday as weekend (high demand).

e |If we look at Cardiff who had a tariff rate rise just a little over half a year ago and
compare the industry standard of the 2 mile trip on tariff 1 we can see that they
are very similar to the proposal number 4 recommendation. This is also the case
for the Vale of Glamorgan who has had a tariff change also in 2018.

e Due to the already high number of hackney/private hire cars in the borough,
work has significantly dropped over the last few years. A price increase would
further discourage people from using taxis, therefore decreasing income further.

e | do not agree to higher tariffs on non bank holidays or Sundays as per proposal
2

e Bridgend cab drivers are well overdue a tariff increase as costs are always rising
as well as competition from more drivers and the ongoing death of the town
centre.

e Cardiff Caerphilly Vale of Glamorgan have had an increase of 7% and 13% |
think it is time for a Bridgend to follow

e |t's important to realise that taxi fares have not increased since 08/2011. This
new tariff is a reasonable, but required, option.

e Considering everyone else has had a cost of living rise in the last few years.
Taxi drivers haven’t

¢ | like the idea that a different price from 3am to 6am and | think fair that the day
time finish at 22.00

e |If you just apply basic economics to the current fare tariff that was created in
2011 and apply only 3% year on year then you will get a figure that is very close
(only 3p out on a 2 mile journey) to option 4.

Page 134



4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

The application made by Mr James Borland and Mr Richard Parrot (Proposal 1), to
increase the rate of fares is detailed in Appendix F. It states that drivers are facing
increasing costs and the current Bridgend tariff is below the Welsh and national
averages. The application proposes to change the click from an eighth to a tenth of
a mile but does not amend the structure of the current tariffs or the times at which
they operate.

The application made by Mr Tom Burke (Proposal 2) to increase the rate of fares is
detailed in Appendix G. Mr Burke states that this proposal is fairer for drivers and
will bring driver’s incomes closer to the minimum wage. Mr Burke’s application also
seeks to change the times at which the different tariffs are applicable and to revise
the Christmas and New Year Tariff. The application proposes to amend the time at
which tariffs 2 and 4 commence from 8.00pm to 10.00pm, to amend the dates,
times and rate charged over the Christmas period, and to change the click on the
taximeter from an eighth to a tenth of a mile.

The application made by Mr Peter Renwick of Premier Cars (Proposal 3) to
increase the rate of fares is detailed in Appendix H. Mr Renwick states that the
proposal is based on research from drivers and information relating to the UK Retail
Price Index, as the last rate rise took place in 2011, this has left Bridgend way
behind in regards the true cost of operating and earning a living from a Hackney
Carriage Vehicle. Mr Renwick’s application amends Tariff 2 so that it is in operation
all day on a Sunday. The application proposes changes to the flag and the click,
dependent on the tariff in operation. It also proposes changes to extend the timings
that Tariff 2 and Tariff 4 are in effect to also include Sunday. Mr Renwick states that
this is to encourage drivers to offer an exceptional service at a rate that is workable.

The application made by Mr Dario Nelson (Proposal 4) to increase the rate of fares
is detailed in Appendix |. Mr Nelson’s proposal amends the hours that the tariffs will
be in operation and also includes additional tariffs for the hours between 3.00am —
6.00am. Mr Nelson states that due to the large amount of dead mileage (returning
from a job without paying passengers) experienced in a rural area such as
Bridgend, fares should generally be higher than in urban areas.

Consideration should be given to obtaining a balance between increasing the fares
payable by the travelling public and the costs incurred by taxi owners/drivers in
running costs. There is no statutory set of factors to be considered when approving
a table of fares within a local authority area, but typical running costs and
comparison of fares is the usual method used to assess applications.

The AA Fuel Price Report shows that the cost of diesel has decreased from a
Wales average of 139.9p per litre in August 2011 to 132.1p per litre in
August 2018, a decrease of 5.6%. Unleaded 95 Octane petrol has also decreased
in the same period from 135.6p to 129.1p per litre, a decrease of 4.8%.

The AA Motoring Costs report shows that for a vehicle costing £17,000 when new,
the running costs per mile (based on 30,000 miles per year) has decreased from
31.8p per mile in 2011 to 30.7p per mile in 2014 (the latest figures available). It
should be noted that this reduction is largely due to fuel costs which may rise going
forward.

Page 135



412

4.13

The AA British Insurance Premium Index shows that the average annual car
insurance premium has risen from £612.19 in 2011 to £660.64 in 2018, an increase
of 8%. The table below contains data from each year since the previous tariff
increase.

. Average Annual Percentage

Period \
Premium Increase/Decrease

2011 Q1 £612.19
2012 Q11 £627.56 3%
2013 Q11 £586.03 7%
2014 Q1 £490.81 -16%
2015 Q1 £457.78 7%
2016 Q1 £552.45 21%
2017 QA1 £640.82 16%
2018 Q1 £660.64 3%

It should be noted that this table contains data using risks representative of the
insurance buying public for private vehicles, as it was not possible to find definitive
information specific to vehicles used for hire and reward. The prices listed are not
representative of the cost of insuring a hackney carriage or private hire vehicle but
provide an indication of the price variation of car insurance over this period.
Anecdotally, drivers have informed the Licensing Department that their annual
insurance premiums range between £1,000 and £4,000.

For information the following table provides details of the daytime rate of the 2 mile
fare currently authorised by the Council together with a comparison with the
proposed fares and the fares authorised by a sample of other licensing authorities.
Also included is the position of the proposed tariffs within the 2 mile fare league
table out of 370 local authorities, as printed in the September 2018 edition of
Private Hire & Taxi Monthly.

Authority _Cost per 2 mile
journey

Watford £8.40
London £7.80

Bath £6.80
Swindon £6.70

Exeter £6.60
Hereford £6.30

Mr Nelson Proposed Tariff (Proposal 4) £6.20 (123r9)
Cardiff £6.10

Vale of Glamorgan £6.00
Tewkesbury £5.85

Mr Borland and Mr Parrott Proposed Tariff (Proposal 1) | £5.80 (198t")
Newcastle upon Tyne £5.80
Swansea £5.70

Mr Renwick Proposed Tariff (Proposal 3) £5.70 (215t)

Page 136



Newport £5.60
Gwynydd £5.50
Mr Burke Proposed Tariff (Proposal 2) £5.50 (2629)
Powys £5.40
Rhondda Cynon Taf £5.20
Blaenau Gwent £5.20
Current Bridgend Tariff £4.90 (331sY)
Caerphilly £4.80
Merthyr Tydfil £4.50
414 Bridgend is currently 331t in the 2 mile fare league table out of 370 local
authorities, as printed in the September 2018 edition of Private Hire & Taxi Monthly.
These statistics are recognised as a reliable indicator, although a local authority’s
place within a table will fluctuate as soon as a new application to vary taxi fares is
received in the UK.
4.15 For information the following tables provide details of the current maximum fares for

journeys of 5, 10 and 15 miles in Bridgend County Borough with a comparison to
the proposed tariffs.

Tariff (Proposal 1)

5 mille fare cost (Ta”ff 1 Tariff 2 Tariff 3 Tariff 4
passengers) (1-4 passengers) (5+ passengers) (5+ passengers)

$“r.re”t Bridgend | 09 79 £12.30 £13.50 16.30

ariff

Mr Borland / Mr

Parrott Proposed £10.80 £13.40 £14.50 £17.40

Tariff (Proposal 1)

Mr Burke Proposed

Tariff (Proposal 2) £11.50 £14.55 £15.75 £19.00

Mr Renwick

Proposed Tariff £11.10 £13.70 £16.40 £18.30

(Proposal 3)

£14.90* 10pm £17.30**

Mr Nelson Tariff —3am 10pm — 3am
£12.20 £14.20**

(Proposal 4) £17.40* £19.80**

3am — 6am 3am — 6am

10 mile fare cost (T13”ff 1 Tariff 2 Tariff 3 Tariff 4
passengers) (1-4 passengers) (5+ passengers) (5+ passengers)

Current Bridgend | 047 7 £22.30 £23.50 £28.30

Tariff

Mr Borland / Mr

Parrott Proposed £21.80 £24.50 £27.60 £32.40

Page 137




4.16

417

4.18

Mr Burke Proposed
Tariff (Proposal 2) £21.50 £27.05 £28.25 £34.00
Mr Renwick
Proposed Tariff £20.10 £24.70 £28.90 £31.80
(Proposal 3)
£27.40* £29.80*
Mr Nelson Tariff 10pm — 3am 10pm — 3am
£22.20 £24.20**
(Proposal 4) £32.40* £34.80**
3am — 6am 3am — 6am
15 mile fare cost | o1 | Tariff 2 Tariff 3 Tariff 4
passengers) (1-4 passengers) (5+ passengers) (5+ passengers)
Current Bridgend £25.70 £32.30 £33.50 £40.30
Tariff
Mr Borland / Mr
Parrott Proposed £32.80 £35.50 £39.60 £46.40
Tariff (Proposal 1)
Mr Burke Proposed
Tariff £31.50 £39.55 £40.75 £49.00
(Proposal 2)
Mr Renwick
Proposed Tariff £29.10 £35.70 £41.40 £45.30
(Proposal 3)
£39.90* £42.30*
Mr Nelson Tariff 10pm — 3am 10pm — 3am
£32.20 £34.20**
(Proposal 4) £47.40* £49.80**
3am — 6am 3am — 6am

*Mr Nelson’s proposal includes an additional tariff that operates from 3am — 6am.

**Due to the additional proposed tariffs, the current tariff 3 and 4 would be the
equivalent of Mr Nelson’s proposed tariff's 4 and 5/6.

This process sets the maximum fare that may charged for journeys that start and
end within the county borough. Drivers are permitted to charge less than the meter
fare, such as for regular customers.

Should Cabinet agree to vary the tariff, the variation would need to be advertised for
a period of at least 14 days to permit persons to make an objection. Should there
be no objections; the variation would then come into effect on the date of the expiry
of the period of notice. However, should an objection be received, the objection
would need to be re-considered by Cabinet before the variation is implemented.

Members are advised that there is no known formally constituted trade organisation
within the Borough at present and therefore consultation will follow the statutory
format laid down in the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 by
statutory notice in a locally circulated newspaper.

Page 138



5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules
5.1 None
6. Equality Impact Assessment
6.1  The proposal has been screened for the potential impact on protected groups within
the community and human rights. We do not consider on the basis of the above
that a detailed Equality Impact Assessment is required for this proposal at this
stage, but the position will be reviewed at the end of the consultation process.
7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications
7.1 A summary of the implications from the assessment:
e Integration — Taxis form part of the public transport network with
environmental and economic benefits for the wellbeing goal of A Prosperous
Wales
e Collaboration - Stakeholders within the taxi trade as well as the general
public will have the opportunity to consider the application and respond to the
consultation
¢ Involvement - Applications to increase taxi fares involve consultation with the
public and any representations will be reported back to Cabinet before a final
decision is taken.
8. Financial implications
8.1 The cost of public notices and consultation will be met from existing budget.
9. Recommendation
9.1  Members are recommended to either:
a. Retain the existing fare regime
b. Select one of the proposals to go forward to the public notice process with
an implementation date of 3 December 2018 (provided that there are no
objections).
Kelly Watson

Head of Legal and Regulatory Services

Contact officer: Daniel Cook

Licensing Policy Officer

Telephone: (01656) 643105

Email:

licensing@bridgend.gov.uk

Postal address: Licensing

Bridgend County Borough Council

Page 139



Civic Offices
Angel Street
Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Background documents:
Private Hire and Taxi Monthly National Fares Tables

AA British Insurance Premium Index

AA Fuel Price Report
Office for National Statistics - Inflation and price indices

Page 140



Appendix B

Response 1

From: [

Sent: 05 November 2018 14:52
To: Cook, Daniel <Daniel.Cook2 @cardiff.gov.uk>
Subject: RE: Hackney Carriage Fares

Daniel

First problem | see is waiting time, the council want to use pulse meters so the clicks must be the same for
waiting time and the charge per click rate.

If you have a £0.22p / £0.24p / £0.28p per mile click then how can you have waiting time @ £0.20p /
minute

The time will have to increase or decrease so its not whats agreed in proposal.
In my proposal the waiting is increased to match the rate per click of the tariff

From: |

Sent: 05 November 2018 15:03

To: Cook, Daniel <Daniel.Cook2 @cardiff.gov.uk>

Subject: RE: Hackney Carriage Fares

Daniel

There is also a mistake in the 5 mile price for tariff 1, you have jum Borland in at £10.80 and its £11.80 in
fact based on his proposal you have all his fares for 5 miles wrong and showing lower in the minutes you
have from the council meeting

So | think | have to appeal and reject this decision

From: |

Sent: 05 November 2018 15:31
To: Cook, Daniel <Daniel.Cook2 @cardiff.gov.uk>
Subject: RE: Hackney Carriage Fares

Daniel

Really concerned that the mistakes are all in Mr Borlands advantage and are not a true reflection on his
proposal and makes the other proposals very expensive especially Tarriff 1

Can this please be recitifed and another meeting arranged to discuss this proposal again.

Please find enclosed my comparison, Tarriff 1 is probably the most important part of the industry

Page 141



Response 2

From: [

Sent: 07 November 2018 09:33
To: licensing
Subject: Fares for Hackney Carriages

| would like to register my objection against the proposed increase of fares for hackney carriages.

Response 3

From: |

Sent: 12 November 2018 19:28
To: Cook, Daniel <Daniel.Cook2 @cardiff.gov.uk>
Subject: Re: Fares Increase

We as an owner of a Taxi firm in Bridgend ||} ] BBl want to put a refusal in against the rise
of the taxi fares please see some of our points and this will have a major effect on us and also the
town

1.brexit is coming and coming fast people loosing there jobs, if you set your self a budget of
example £50.00 a week for a £10.00 journey 5 days a week, taxi fares rise this will be rise to approx
£13.00 each day so then this is causing customers to either walk to work or struggle more, if
customers choose to work there more vulnerable, than before as some customers especially girls/
woman would have to walk early hours in the mornings etc..

2.there's more than enough people whose lost there jobs , living on the streets and also unable to
provide or even feed there children , this is very sad to see also | wouldn't want any adult or child
going without food just for the fact that certain taxi drivers want extra money when they earn more
than the living wage as we are, this will take a real big impact on how people live and how they eat
as most would go without just to keep a roof over there head etc..

3.with the way Bridgend town is and public transport being cut this would increase customers to use
taxis by upping the fares this would decrease this and people would stay in to save money, Bridgend
town is a ghost town as it is shops shutting people loosing jobs and this will make another large
impact as customers would choose to shop online..

4.by rising the fares this would make drivers able to finish early and then leave customers stranded

in areas they are not known due to the fact that they would hit the money they would want sooner
than now...

Page 142



5. This would take effect to the police force due to the fact that you wouldn't have enough money
especially from the valleys to Bridgend as it would cost approx £60 return just to get there and back
so this would allow them to stay local but if there's problems in 2 sides of the valley plus Bridgend
the police wouldn't be able to deal with everything adleast at the moment everyone uses Bridgend
and if anything does kick off then they are in one place not 2 or 4 different valleys

Ps there's loads of different opinions we have but we don't want to waste your time, | think instead
of greedy taxi drivers worrying about cab fares the council should fetch a dress code in as we have
taxi drivers dressed up as COWBOYS it's awful don't waste time putting cab fares up worry and
spend time on getting the COWBOY'S off

Thanks

Page 143



This page is intentionally left blank



|Appendix A |

—
F“: BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

‘% Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 Section 65
BRIDCEND Authorised Maximum fare Tariff from 15 August 2011
TARIFF 1 £2.50 If distance does not exceed '/2 mile.
6.00am to 8.00pm £1.60 for each subsequent mile.

£0.20 Per Vsth of a mile.
TARIFF 2 £3.30 If distance does not exceed '/ mile.
8.00pm to 6.00am £2.00 for each subsequent mile.
Bank Holidays & Boxing Day (Except Christmas Day)  £0.25 Per Yeth of a mile.
TARIFF 3 £4.50 If distance does not exceed 'z mile.
6.00am to 8.00pm £2.00 for each subsequent mile.
5 or more passengers £0.25 Per Yath of a mile.
TARIFF 4 £5.50 If distance does not exceed /2 mile,
8.00pm to 6.00am £2.40 for each subssquent mile.
5 or more passengers £0.30 Per Yath of a mile.
EXTRA CHARGES
Waiting Time £0.25 per minute or part thereof
Christmas Day Tariff 1 x 2 (over 5 persons - tariff 3 x 2)
Christmas Eve (from 6pm to midnight) Tariff 2 (over 5 persons - tariff 4)
New Years Eve (from 6pm to 6am Jan 2) Tariff 2 (over 5 persons - tariff 4)
Contamination Fee £100.00
For each article of luggage conveyed
outside the passenger compartment £0.25
Payment by Credit / Debit Card £1.00 per transaction

Passengers and drivers should note that the meter must be switched on
at the start of each journey and operate for the entire journey
D.S Mae' tarifi hwn ar gael yn Gymraeg.

Page 145


cookd2_1
Text Box
Appendix A


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B

2018 — 2019 Taxi Licensing Fees

Driver Fee
Grant of Driver Licence (inc Driver awareness Course with online £102 - 1 Year
DBS updating Service £171 - 3 years

. . . . £146.00 — 1 Year
Grant of Driver Licence (inc Driver Awareness Course and Cost of

DBS check)
£215.00 — 3 Years

£63.00 — 1 Year
Renewal of Driver Licence
£122.00 — 3 Years

Driver Awareness Course referral £35.00
Disclosure and Barring Service Check (Criminal Records Check) - Currently £44 (As set by
cost to be met by applicant DBS)
DVLA check — cost to be met by applicant As advised by DVLA
Vehicles Fee

£31.00

Deposit on Vehicle Licence Plate
*£25 if older plate

Vehicles Grant (includes £31.00 deposit on plate) £298.00

Vehicles Renewal £267.00

Vehicles Renewal (If vehicle over 5 years)

£313.00
(inclusive of additional test fee £51.00)
Fleet Services Test Fee £46.00
Re-test £20.00
Plus Plate £31.00
Additional Test £46.00
Cancellation of Vehicle ‘MOT’ test within one working day or non- £46.00

attendance at test

Page 147



Appendix B
2011 — 2012 Taxi Licensing Fees

Driver

Fee

Grant of Driver Licence (inc Driver Awareness Course and Cost of
CRB check)

£114.00 -1 Year

Renewal of Driver Licence

£44.00 — 1 Year

Driver Awareness Course referral

£30.00

Disclosure and Barring Service Check (Criminal Records Check) -
cost to be met by applicant

£36 (As set by DBS)

DVLA check — cost to be met by applicant

£5 (external fee)

attendance at test

Vehicles Fee
Deposit on Vehicle Licence Plate £28
Hackney Carriage or Private Hire Vehicle (including 2 Vehicle tests

: £247
at basic rate)
Hackney Carriage or Private Hire additional Vehicle tests £51
Re-test £20
Cancellation of Vehicle ‘MOT’ test within one working day or non- £51

Page 148




61T abed

Appendix C

Hackney Carriage Tariff - Proposal 1

Current Current Current
TARIFF 1 BCBC BCBC BCBC
1 - 4 Passengers 06.00 - 20.00 £4.90 £9.70 £17.70
Flag Click (1/10 mile)  Running Mile 1 mile 2 miles 3 miles 4 miles 5miles 6 miles 7miles 8 miles 9 miles 10 miles
£2.80 up to 5/10ths mile  £0.20 £2.00 £3.80 £5.80 £7.80 £9.80 £11.80 £13.80 £15.80 £17.80 £19.80 £21.80

Current Current Current
TARIFF 2 BCBC BCBC BCBC
1 - 4 Passengers 20.00 - 06.00 £6.30 £12.30 £22.30
Flag Click (1/10 mile)  Running Mile 1 mile 2 miles 3 miles 4 miles 5miles 6 miles 7 miles 8 miles 9 miles 10 miles
£3.60 up to 5/10ths mile  £0.22 £2.20 £4.70 £6.90 £9.10 £11.30 £13.50 £15.70 £17.90 £20.10 £22.30 £24.50

Current Current Current
TARIFF 3 BCBC BCBC BCBC
5+ Passengers 06.00 - 20.00 £7.50 £13.50 £23.50
Flag Click (1/10 mile}  Running Mile 1 mile 2 miles 3 miles 4 miles 5miles 6miles 7 miles 8 miles 9 miles 10 miles
£4.80 up to 5/10ths mile  £0.24 £2.40 £6.00 £8.40 £10.80 £13.20 £15.60 £18.00 £20.40 £22.80 £25.20 £27.60

Current Current Current
TARIFF 4 BCBC BCBC BCBC
5+ Passengers 20.00 - 06.00 £9.10 £16.30 £28.30
Flag Click (1/10 mile) ~ Running Mile 1 mile 2 miles 3 miles 4 miles 5 miles 6 miles 7 miles 8 miles 9 miles 10 miles
£5.80 up to 5/10ths mile  £0.28 £2.80 £7.20 £10.00 £12.80 £15.60 £18.40 £21,20 £24.00 £26.80 £29.60 £32.40

Additional changes to the current BCBC hackney carriage tariff

Soiling charge to increase to £125



cookd2_2
Text Box
Appendix C


0GT abed

Hackney Carriage Tariff - Proposal 2

Current Current Current
TARIFF 1 BCBC BCBC BCBC
1 - 4 Passengers 06.00 - 22.00 £4.90 £9.70 £17.70
Flag Click (1/20 mile)  Running Mile 1 mile 2 miles 3 miles 4 miles 5 miles 6 miles 7 miles 8 miles 9 miles 10 miles
£2.50 up to 5/10ths mile  £0.20 £2.00 £3.50 £5.50 £7.50 £9.50 £11.50 £13.50 £15.50 £17.50 £19.50 £21.50

Current Current Current
TARIFF 2 BCBC BCBC BCBC
1 -4 Passengers 22.00 - 06.00 £6.30 £12.30 £22.30
Flag Click (1/20 mile)  Running Mile 1 mile 2 miles 3 miles 4 miles 5 miles 6 miles 7 miles 8 miles 9 miles 10 miles
£3.30 up to 5/10ths mile  £0.25 £2.50 £4.55 £7.05 £9.55 £12.05 £14.55 £17.05 £19.55 £22.05 £24.55 £27.05

Current Current Current
TARIFF 3 BCBC BCBC BCBC
5+ Passengers 06.00 - 22.00 £7.50 £13.50 £23.50
Flag Click (1/10 mile)  Running Mile 1 mile 2 miles 3 miles 4 miles 5 miles 6 miles 7 miles 8 miles 9 miles 10 miles
£4.50 up to 5/10ths mile  £0.25 £2.50 £5.75 £8.25 £10.75 £13.25 £15.75 £18.25 £20.75 £23.25 £25.75 £28.25

Current Current Current
TARIFF 4 BCBC BCBC BCBC
5+ Passengers 22.00 - 06.00 £9.10 £16.30 £28.30
Flag Click {1/10 mile) Running Mile 1 mile 2 miles 3 miles 4 miles 5 miles 6 miles 7 miles 8 miles 9 miles 10 miles
£5.50 up to 5/10ths mile  £0.30 £3.00 £7.00 £10.00 £13.00 £16.00 £19.00 £22.00 £25.00 £28.00 £31.00 £34.00

Page 1




TGT abed

Hackney Carriage Tariff - Proposal 2
TARIFF 5
(1-4 Passengers. Christmas period, see dates below)
Flag Click (1/10 mile) Running Mile 1 mile 2miles 3 miles 4miles Smiles 6 miles 7miles 8miles 9 miles 10 miles
£4.50 up to 5/10ths mile  £0.35 £3.50 £6.25 £9.75 £13.25 £16.75 £20.25 £23.75 £27.25 £30.75 £34.25 £37.75
TARIFF 6
(5+ Passengers. Christmas period, see dates below)
Flag Click (1/10 mile) Running Mile 1 mile 2 miles 3 miles 4 miles 5 miles 6 miles 7 miles 8 miles 9 miles 10 miles
£7.00 up to 5/10ths mile  £0.40 £4.00 £9.00 £13.00 £17.00 £21.00 £25.00 £29.00 £33.00 £37.00 £41.00 £45.00

Additional changes to the current BCBC hackney carriage tariff

Tariff 5 (1-4 passengers) and Tariff 6 (5+ passengers) to be introduced on the following dates:

th

December 24 18:00 - midnight (6 hours)

" 00:00 - midnight (24 hours)

December 25

December 26"

December 27"

00:00 - 06:00 (6 hours)
December 31% 18:00 - midnight (6 hours)

January 1% 00:00 - 06:00 (6 hours)

The daytime tariff ends at 10pm instead of 8pm

00:00 - 06:00 & 18:00 - midnight (12 hours)

Page 2




ZGT abed

Hackney Carriage Tariff - Proposal 3

Current Current Current
TARIFF 1 BCBC BCBC BCBC
1-4 Passengers 06.00 - 20.00 £4.90 £9.70 £17.70
Flag Click (1/9 nRunning Mile 1 mile 2 miles 3 miles 4 miles 5 miles 6 miles 7 miles 8 miles 9 miles 10 miles
£2.50 up to388yards £0.20 £1.80 £3.90 £5.70 £7.50 £9.30 £11.10 £12.90 £14.70 £16.50 £18.30 £20.10
Current Current Current
TARIFF 2 BCBC BCBC BCBC
1 - 4 Passengers 20.00 - 06.00 (all day Sunday) £6.30 £12.30 £22.30
Flag Click (1/11 Running Mile 1 mile 2 miles 3 miles 4 miles 5 miles 6 miles 7 miles 8 miles 9 miles 10 miles
£3.30 up to 480 yards £0.20 £2.20 £4.90 £7.10 £9.30 £11.50 £13.70 £15.90 £18.10 £20.30 £22.50 £24.70
Current Current Current
TARIFF 3 BCBC BCBC BCBC
5+ Passengers 06.00 - 20.00 £7.50 £13.50 £23.50
Flag Click (211 y Running Mile 1 mile 2 miles 3 miles 4 miles 5 miles 6 miles 7 miles 8 miles 9 miles 10 miles
£4.50 (up to 424 yards) £0.30 £2.50 £6.40 £8.90 £11.40 £13.90 £16.40 £18.90 £21.40 £23.90 £26.40 £28.90
Current Current Current
TARIFF 4 BCBC BCBC BCBC
5+ Passengers 20.00 - 06.00 (all day Sunday) £9.10 £16.30 £28.30
Flag Click (1/9 tRunning Mile 1 mile 2 miles 3 miles 4 miles 5 miles 6 miles 7 miles 8 miles 9 miles 10 miles
£5.50 (up to 457 yards) £0.30 £2.70 £7.50 £10.20 £12.90 £15.60 £18.30 £21.00 £23.70 £26.40 £29.10 £31.80

Additional changes to the current BCBC hackney carriage tariff

Tariffs 2 & 4 in operation all day Sunday

Waiting time: Tariffs 1 & 2 = 25p minute. Tariffs 3 and 4 = 30p per minute




€GT abed

Hackney Carriage Tariff - Proposal 4

Current Current Current
TARIFF 1 BCBC BCBC BCBC
1 - 4 Passengers 06.00 - 22.00 £4.90 £9.70 £17.70
Flag Click (1/10 mile) Running Mile 1 mile 2 miles 3 miles 4 miles 5 miles 6 miles 7 miles 8 miles 9 miles 10 miles
£2.20 £0.20 £2.00 £4.20 £6.20 £820 £10.20 £12.20 £14.20 £16.20 £18.20 £20.20 £22.20
Current Current Current
TARIFF 2 BCBC BCBC BCBC
1- 4 Passengers 22.00 - 03.00 £6.30 £12.30 £22.30
Flag Click (1/10 mile) Running Mile 1 mile 2 miles 3 miles 4 miles 5 miles 6 miles 7 miles 8 miles 9 miles 10 miles
£2.40 £0.25 £2.50 £4.90 £7.40 £9.90 £12.40 £1490 £17.40 £19.90 £22.40 £24.90 £27.40
Current Current Current
TARIFF 3 BCBC BCBC BCBC
1 - 4 Passengers 03.00 - 06.00 £6.30 £12.30 £22.30
Flag Click {1/10 mile)} Running Mile 1 mile 2 miles 3 miles 4 miles 5 miles 6 miles 7 miles 8 miles 9 miles 10 miles
£2.40 £0.30 £3.00 £5.40 £8.40 £11.40 £14.40 £17.40 £20.40 £23.40 £26.40 £29.40 £32.40

Page 1




vGT abed

Hackney Carriage Tariff - Proposal 4

Current Current Current
TARIFF 4 BCBC BCBC BCBC
5+ Passengers 06.00 - 22.00 £7.50 £13.50 £23.50
Flag Click (1/10 mile} Running Mile 1 mile 2 miles 3 miles 4 miles 5 miles 6 miles 7 miles 8 miles 9 miles 10 miles
£4.20 £0.20 £2.00 £6.20 £8.20 £10.20 £12.20 £14.20 £16.20 £18.20 £20.20 £22.20 £24.20

Current Current Current
TARIFF 5 BCBC BCBC BCBC
5+ Passengers 22.00 - 03.00 £9.10 _ £16.30 £28.30
Flag Click (1/10 mile) Running Mile 1 mile 2 miles 3 miles 4 miles 5 miles 6 miles 7 miles 8 miles 9 miles 10 miles
£4.80 £0.25 £2.50 £7.30 £9.80 £12.30 £14.80 £17.30 £19.80 £22.30 £24.80 £27.30 £29.80

Current Current Current
TARIFF 6 BCBC BCBC BCBC
5+ Passengers 03.00 - 06.00 £9.10 £16.30 _ £28.30
Flag Click (1/10 mile) Running Mile 1 mile 2 miles 3 miles 4 miles 5 miles 6 miles 7 miles 8 miles 9 miles 10 miles
£4.80 £0.30 £3.00 £7.80 £10.80 £13.80 £16.80 £19.80 £22.80 £25.80 £28.80 £31.80 £34.80

Additional changes to the current BCBC hackney carriage tariff

The flag does not include an initial distance

The daytime tariff ends at 10pm instead of 8pm

This proposal introduces additional tariffs, in operation between 3am - 6am

Page 2




Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicate
your preferred option.

D Proposal 1
D Proposal 2
D Proposal 3
I:l Proposal 4

D No change/keep current tariff

(Please tick one box only)

Please provide any additional comments:

Please return this form to:

Licensing and Registration Section,
Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street

Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please email your views to licensing@bridgend.gov.uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae’r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form is also available in Welsh

Page 155




This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix D

rrom: NG

Sent: 29 August 2018 12:32

To: Cook, Daniel <Daniel.Cook2 @cardiff.gov.uk>
Subject: Re: FW: Maesteg Taxi Fares

Yer as we don't use meters anyway so no change for me

Sent from my Samsung device

rrom: NG
Sent: 22 August 2018 11:30

To: licensing

Subject: Proposed Tariff Increase

Good Morning Yvonne

| would like to vote for proposal 1 for obvious reasons.

Proposal 2 is to complicated over Christmas Proposal 3 will kill the trade on a Sunday Proposal 4 will cause
problems for drivers working overnight where tariffs change at 3am.

Kind Regards

Sent from my iPhone

rrom: NN
Sent: 24 August 2018 08:20

To: licensing

Subject: Tariff Proposal

Good Morning
Having read the proposed changes to the tariff charges i would be happy with proposal 3 to be used.

Best Regards

I ( c-oge No Hl)

Page 157



From: I | o iltolN N |
Sent: 26 August 2018 16:49
To: licensing

Subject: Re: Requests to increase the current hackney Carriage tariff (My Ref: [ | /Your Ref: YW
Dear Sir/Madam,

| acknowledge receipt of your letter dated as Postmark in regard to the above subject. However |
have concerns for objecting such request for the benefit of both hackney carriage operators and
service users during these economic upheavals. My objection is based on the following reasons =>
Increasing tariffs for hackney carriage sooner will exert more pressure to the families with low
income who are mostly depended on using our service. You may be aware that about more than
60% of our custom is from low and middle income groups.

=> Increasing tariffs will directly have a negative impact on our business as it will now create an
opportunity to our competitors and thus forcing our service users to use more affordable means
of transport as some have already started to use family, friends, uber and other means of
transport after night outs or even traveling to airports.

=> ltis clear that requesting for such increases during this times has a motive to kill the hackney
carriage business in order to boost private hire operators, who can keep their prices down until
the economy picks up, and by then the Hackney carriage operators would have lost business,
which will be hard to get back.

My views pertaining to tariff increase should be based on the current economy and other factors
such as drastic increases on operating cost such as car parts and fuel cost. For example when the
fuel cost reaches an average of £1.45 per litre, only then tariff review may be considered.
Increasing Tariffs at this point or near future will not benefit any.

Thank you for your communication and to be allowed to express my views and | hope my opinion
will be taken to consideration.

Yours sincerely,

]
Badge Number |l

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

From: N | oilto: I |
Sent: 30 August 2018 17:52

To: licensing

Subject: Hackney carriage tariff

| propose
Hackney carriage proposal 1

Thank you.

Page 158



From: NN [ :ilto: I G hotmail.co.uk]
Sent: 30 August 2018 17:55

To: licensing

Subject: Hackney carriage tariff

| propose the Hackney carriage proposal 1
Thankyou.

From: NN | it o ¢ mail.com]
Sent: 01 September 2018 14:58

To: licensing

Subject: Proposed tariff rate changes - my vote

Hello.

Firstly I would like to thank the council (specifically licensing) for being proactive and thinking of
drivers in Bridgend with the current state of play for making the change to make gaining a liveable
wage more possible.

| have taken the option to vote by email for the proposals for the taxi fare rise.

I would like to vote for proposal 4.

| base this opinion on both my current perspective of what is fair and through research, having spent
time viewing the current fares throughout the UK and what appears to be working well for drivers
and public alike.

County Position.

According to PHTM we in Bridgend are 329th of 366 currently in the county tariff ratings of the
whole of the UK. Tarriff proposals 1, 2 & 3 would mean that we would be in the region of 200th at
best for the 2 mile fare comparison. Quite a few in that price region haven’t had a price increase for
some time and so may well be probably due. Those in line with proposal 4 appear to have had a
recent tariff change and also list currently a high amount of 21 other counties in that group.
Charging this rate when compared to the rest of the UK would place us around the 100 position
currently. (August 2018 PHTM website) (more recent edition edited today 01/09/18 there are 24
other counties in that group and 93 counties or 25.5% of all the counties are within a 2% price
radius of this pricing showing it is currently the most popular price throughout the UK.

Fuel Price.

Whilst the price of fuel has dropped since its peaks of April 2012 and March 2013 when the average
price of diesel was £1.45 a litre (something which could not have been foreseen in 2011 when the
latest tariff fare was introduced). The fuel is now considerably higher at £1.33 a litre for diesel
compared to £119.5 as an average taken for the 12 months preceeding the tariff increase for 2011.

Page 159



That is 11.3% higher and | understand that the fuel forecast is set to continue to increase. If we look
at the price of fuel at its peak when diesel was nearly £1.50 a litre it was 25% higher than the
average price of diesel for the 12 months preceeding the last tariff rate rise and that was less than a
year after the rise.

Figures above quoted from the RAC fuel history price website:

https://www.racfoundation.org/data/uk-pump-prices-over-time

Vehicle price.

Having looked at the Skoda pricing for the Octavia which is a car that has been consistently a taxi
driver’s favourite since 2011 due to its durability and solid build and will allow for a like for like
comparison. In 2011 it was available at a retail price of £16,800 for the 2L model. In todays terms
the same model that has the same power but with a 1.6L engine is available for £25,000 and if you
wanted the 2L version to keep exactly the same it would cost another £2000. This means that a car
is roughly 50% more to purchase outright and the financing deals available according to cabs direct
and the taxi centre are roughly the same increase.

Insurance.

I have spoken to Swinton, Fensure and Insure taxi agents and brokers. They have all reported
significany increases for new taxi drivers over the last decade and more so since 2011. They have
also reported a rise in general for insurance on the taxi trade so those with fleet insurance and those
that have a very long no claims bonus have been affected in some cases to a 100% increase since
2011,

Cost of living.
Having viewed the retail price index and consumer price index | can interpret an average cost of

living increase of between 23% to 27% for the essential living whilst certain luxuries and house
prices and rent have gone up in excess of this.

Other wage increases and changes.

When | look at private companies who have a predetermined salary rise structure it can be seen that
there is a minimum rise increase of 3% per year or in line with inflation... whichever is the greatest.
Over the last 7 years on a compound scale of just normal inflationary rise of a maximum of 3% that
is a 22.9% increase. | can see that some public sector pay scales have had a pay freeze and even a
pay cut during this time and so those on the lower rungs of the ladder that have been frozen must
also be feeling the pinch also.

In conclusion.

Since 2011 the amount of taxi drivers on the road has increased meaning an average downturn of
work for each driver. The cost of living has increase by roughly 25% for the essentials. The cost of
insurance has in some cases doubled (100% increase) for those who have been in it a long time. The

Page 160



cost of running the car from a fuel perspective has at its peak gone up 25% and it is set to continue
to rise ahead of inflation according to the FT projections. The cost of buying a car like for like has
gone up 50%. In real terms a taxi driver’s costs have risen above the rate of inflation whilst the
amount of work per driver available has dropped. This has meant a significant drop in wages if we
look at it on an hourly basis or the equivalent pay cut in the region of 30% over that time period.

With the above in mind, if we looked to increase the current tariff so that is in line with at least the
compound inflationary rates whilst also considered the effect on the price of transport in terms of
fuel and the price of owning and running a vehicle. With the above minimum being in the region of
25% we need a taxi fare rate increase that is also in line with this. If we look at the prices on the
proposals the only one that comes close is the proposal number 4 at 26% for a 2 mile trip on tariff 1
and 25% for a 10 mile trip on the same tariff. On tariff 2 the increases are 17.4% and 22.9%
respectively.

All other proposals are significantly further away from this proposed rise.

Further to this, if we look at Cardiff who had a tariff rate rise just a little over half a year ago and
compare the industry standard of the 2 mile trip on tariff 1 we can see that they are very similar to
the proposal number 4 recommendation. This is also the case for the Vale of Glamorgan who have
had a tariff change also in 2018. (And since the first draft of this email | have just realised that
Swansea had an increase in the last couple of days that is again in line with the proposal 4 so please
ignore the information below which states Swansea’s name!) In numerical terms the difference
between these councils and ours a 2% difference and 3% respectively for the proposed tariff 4 rate
as opposed to the current difference of 20% and 18.5% again respectively. I haven’t shown the new
tariff vs the other local councils which include Swansea, RCT and NPT because their latest tariff
rate changes were around the time of our current tariff change and were in line with our current one.
| dare say as ripples in a pond they will soon follow suit and raise in line as other councils listed
here have. (Again for Swansea the numbers are a current difference of 15% and a proposed
difference of only 7%).

I look forwards to hearing back from licensing and sincerely hope that the above is taken into
consideration and is of help when trying to decide a way forwards following the voting period and
any period or time of reflection or consultation.

Regards

w
=
o
«Q
@
>
o

Mobile H
@gmail.com

Page 161



--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

From: [N | it ) otmail.co.uk]
Sent: 03 September 2018 20:26

To: licensing
Subject: Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to ammend the hackney carriage tariff

Dear Sir/Madam,

I would like to choose proposal 4 for the taxi fare rates/ hackney carriage tariff in Bridgend.
Thank you.

From: I [ ailto: I © g mail.com]
Sent: 04 September 2018 10:51

To: licensing

Subject: Tariff

@gmail.com

Driver No. il

I'd like too see proposal 3 in operation.
Thank you

From: I | railto: I |
Sent: 04 September 2018 12:43

To: licensing

Subject: Proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, | prefer PROPOSAL 4
option.

Thank you,
Red: Il

Page 162



From: NN [ ailto: G
Sent: 06 September 2018 22:54

To: licensing

Subject: Proposal

Hi,as a response to the letter that we received regarding the increase of the hackney carriage tariff |
personally vote for the proposal 3,considering that is the most appropriate.

Thank you,

From: [N | mailto: I ot mail.com]
Sent: 07 September 2018 05:08 To:

licensing

Subject: Consultation Proposal

Hello I would like to explain my views on the proposed tariff.Proposal 3 equates roughly to an
increase in distance of about 13% which is only minimal so wont effect trade. The other proposals
want an increase in distance on tariff 1 of 25% which is too much of an increase in one go and will
effect trade in a negative way.Also Proposal 1 wants an increase in distance of 25% tariff 1 but only
a 10% increase in tariff 2. I don’t think it’s fair for a driver who works unsociable hours on tariff
2,picking up drunk and sometimes abusive people to be on roughly the same as a driver who works
tariff 1 picking up shoppers and the elderly.So the 40p a mile difference should stay the same for
the headache.| think it would be a good idea to keep the tariff times and start off price the same so it
will cause less disruption for the public.

Also the Xmas tariff needs to be changed as shown in Proposal 2.The public are expecting it to be
tariff 5 on Xmas eve 6pm until the 27th December 6am.They are also expecting it on New Year’s
Eve 6pm- 6am New Year’s Day.So why isn’t it?? Any driver who gives up that time of year to
work should be getting tariff 5 not normal rate,come on guys!!

Sent from my iPhone

From: I | ailto: I |
Sent: 07 September 2018 12:51

To: licensing

Subject: Hackney Carriage Tariff Proposal

Proposal 3.

Ref. Il
Regards

Page 163



From: NN | ailto: IR |
Sent: 07 September 2018 13:33

To: licensing

Subject: Taxi Tariff option 4 submission

Good afternoon
It's sunny here in these here parts.
I \vas sent a letter recently and asked to choose from 4 tariffs
Bridgend taxi driver Il chooses number 4
Comments as to why:
1. Itis a tariff already used in Wales and Carmarthenshire for up to 4 passengers.
2. It moves the tariff 2 to 22:00 a later time more in keeping with the rest of the trade.
5. Between 20:00 and 22:00 passengers will see the half mile distance cheaper
4. If you just apply basic economics to the current fare tariff that was created in 2011 and apply only
3% year on year then you will get a figure that is very close (only 3p out on a 2 mile journey) to
option 4. Also it would bring us to within a 2% difference to over 25% of the rest of the uk with
another 10% being charged more and over 70% of the uk would have less than a 10% deviation. If
you compare it to the minimum wage then the increase is exactly the same. I’m sorry but I don’t
think it is fare for taxi drivers to have less pay compared to nearly 8 years ago and those on
minimum wage to have much more. Even if the wage of a driver went up so have fuel and cost of
car and insurance. Other options are not as good.
Option 4 is the right choice for Bridgend as a maximum fare.
5. We have stated previously that the calculations to run a cab fall at option 4 as the bare minimum.
Please confirm you would add this vote for number 4 as requested in your recent letter.
An email of acknowledged will | have?
Yours sincerely

Page 164



From: I | mailto: I ¢ hotmail.com]
Sent: 07 September 2018 13:24

To: licensing

Subject: Questionaire

No change/keep current tsriff

From: I [ mailto: I ©hotmail.com]
Sent: 07 September 2018 16:25

To: licensing

Subject: Proposal for tariffs.

I
Badge number il
HC Il

As the expenses increased sharply in last few years I think it's time to increase the tarriff |
would like to go ahead with proposal 4.
Thank you.

Sent from my Samsung Galaxy smartphone.

Page 165



This page is intentionally left blank



Bridgend County Borough Council

Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enciossed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please Indicate

your preferred option,
D Proposal 1
D Proposal 2
O Propossl 3

D Proposal 4
EB/ No change/keep current tariff

(Please tick one box only)

If you wish to provide a comment an the reason for your preferred option, please include this

below.
taves Incesase e ML RadG
Aoy I
/B
lrcn NO Incosnsss

Please return this form to:

Licensing

Bridgend County Barough Council

Civic Offices

Angel Street

Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please emall your views to licensing@bndaend gov uk

Closing date for responses Is 7 September 2018

Mae'r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form is also avallable in Welsh

Page 167


cookd2_3
Text Box
Appendix E


e I
o
Eé
£
b
%
o
—

E BRIDGEND

Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicate
your preferred option.

g Proposal 1
|:I Proposal 2
D Proposal 3
I:l Proposal 4

D No change/keep current tariff
(Please tick one box only)

If you wish to provide a comment on the reason for your preferred option, please include this
below.

Please return this form to:

Licensing

Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street

Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please email your views to licensing@bridgend gov.uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae’r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form is also available in Welsh

Page 168



Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackne
carriage tariff y

Considerin
g the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carria i indi
your preferred option. y ge tariff, please indicate

D Proposal 1
D Proposal 2
D Proposal 3

ﬁ Proposal 4

D No change/keep current tariff

(Please tick one box only)

If you wish to provide a comment on the reason for your preferred option, please include this

below.

e M/f&wd&y*mf‘nmﬂ'zzw

P{o poSCv( Lf‘

Please return this form to:

Licensing i
Bridgend County Borough Council —:
Civic Offices 3

Angel Street
Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please email your views to licensing@bridgend.qov.uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae'r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form is also available in Welsh

Page 169



RI1C .l-.le?

Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicate
your preferred option.

D Proposal 1
D/ Proposal 2
D Proposal 3
D Proposal 4

D No change/keep current tariff
(Please tick one box only)

If you wish to provide a comment on the reason for your preferred option, please include this
below.

TG e SceReN. e~ ol Lo LK ey
\w.%....%‘.?r?%...;.f)...\%ﬁ.:@..’.f‘:?‘f/rA....ﬁ!s”.\&:....ﬁm...ﬁ?@.....\ﬁi?:\toé.ipm...:\.ﬂ!?.«.c.w

Wi, mxzuc&’(a(’v%"iwﬁxMﬁ\%w\%m W

T TNo WA TN Oawes (W wze vl e W Qol
f ~
&< . {)oc)z__, (‘ZW&\,\\Q,\'\; o Pow0o \D"L\}-‘\”Q" T\ ViR oweD
Please return this form to: S\l VO o~ vbeen %\\xc\\ A
Licensing AWRIVERTY IR \
Bridgend County Borough Council —_ . ,
Civic Offices \oo  vaa, B \~ o
Angel Street \ -
Bridgend. CF31 4WB ﬂo w.}\ A A .,«.a%&\ m\d& Cawed 'fw
Alternatively, please emall your views to licensing@bridgend.gov.uk e \ @ch oL m
/ L_ @9 g Closmg date for responses is 7 September 2018 <o o \“
Sinesd T My R Cont, ‘/ \QA
Lew \ \ \\-L \\Asu \%o%\ npAC N % k?ect\l \
3 Wi g\ T L \\-L \OU\IQ vb A ’(\A\S \\\
Mae'r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form is also available in Welsh s

/(L“ﬁ G \w&l,,, o G|

-
VoL m Ol o Mf' WHY  Owel M éw.,fs ,5\6 wv(,: M(TM/(
M

VA o AaY “Tlege S\ A U‘ Wep V2 $¢<<"’5\ﬂd&\\\ |/ \(')'
Page 170



1/‘4 Lr/gc Voo OA GO / [
Oin W Yok \r’r/’\vw/lue (7?/%0& G
C’M <o '\-\m ,\ C (’\}:)(’/L €78 ("Al\\\.l\mé ’> w
N~
Coow b *rg\._,@»b S - "’“"D e

WS Vou’S\N.V) e Q\egium_k&\{ G ‘()Cw.i Was VA (MA
\€¢°‘(K \V2 "% g}‘ \N‘cs QVQ-%( \J}\m& ‘/\o %\c‘p \Auo (m(\;w\

. - ~ \
e W e Aoy 5 D5

\ahf) Lﬂ'?) i ()OA\O d\MMK, 2 \ﬂouﬂo\'”L‘

-

WS T e (vn, < \vw(/&\ \)M‘:B&(w““ ViSene.

\"s%ME \o NIVEN 4{\ NDul Ve (223 /(\" \QQ\A':L \

\O \r‘\uL,\ \ \/Luv.l\/ \OQ_\AJ\.\O\AL kﬁ \30”3 (79':!’\6

"/’\/W-‘(- L @(Z,\ \JC’II’&

e MX(. Ouned \:-}T&weu W

/—— ¥ \\ '—l/é”\(: /LA/\
W R e A e o) eastab ) \(C( e
_\\ "tr/\]@,,s ' R ;,L' ?/, A N — T
—_— ~) .
. &
/ ‘ : A .
i {; L/ R‘:J WD \) (Y \”k (2 "\ :
N --:r—\

OF) T3 Lwm FHLQ\, Q\o ﬁl"f,i RJ“("{\AC«@\&,:
& a0 '\[}’( ‘/\..AL-’(:L.(D WAL uu:S \\,‘;M L %%&‘2\3
O | ‘

"\/{L\ @(Z_U'&?L
e (VIRY ’E\M\\&%em ® _ ! -
Owee T 1o uge Kot Vo

!- et O i

Page 171



I cﬁ‘ﬁ‘)

BRIDGEND &

Bridgend County Borough Council

Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicate

your ppéferred option. .
PI'O al 1 5 "'U“l'l'!...(”ﬂ .“!“‘—-_'.I 8
POS I 9 RECElVED w\
Y,

N\

79 AUG 2018 /‘

4
J/-,S/\

I:I Proposal 2
D Proposal 3

D Proposal 4
D No change/keep current tariff

(Please tick one box only)

if you wish to provide a comment on the reason for your preferred option, please include this
below.

ot ish. o CaSTOmS Yo @ s Showds YT
TS Aniidbe] O Mk O T STot]. 7 e

Please return this form to:

Licensing

Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street

Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please email your views to licensing@bridgend.gov.uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae’r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form is also available in Welsh

Page 172



: |

BRIDGEND

Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicate
your preferred option.

D Proposal 1

T
RECEIVED

D Proposal 2
[1  Proposal 3 27 AUG 2018 |
D Proposal 4

Iy‘ No change/keep current tariff R TN
(Please tick one box only)

If you wish to provide a comment on the reason for your preferred option, please include this
below.

Please return this form to:

Licensing

Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street

Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please email your views to licensing@bridgend.gov.uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae’r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form is also available in Welsh

Page 173



BRIDGEND

Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicate
your preferred option.

BRIDGE iy

I:I Proposal 1

O Proposal 2 N
<2
D Proposal 3 ‘45/5‘ 2
It
D Proposal 4 %/c;\ |
‘l";‘; .
M/ No change/keep current tariff M

ION B
(Please tick one box only)

If you wish to provide a comment oh the reason for your preferred option, please include this
below,

FoeL Prces nmve geenfonavenies \Tue some coe Twe wasT
10 RS, WAGES COR oS T ws A< B2 IR STACNANT. TNTRAEST

RATES For SUVERS ARE Sicctts THE counNcal- LS HAV/NG TO

csPE W TH cUTS TO LTS $Udeed €72 . erc, WE wie ALl

Please return this formto: FEEULING TwWE BFFCTS OF TORY WUSTELL T,

Bridgend County Borough Council
Civig Offices Y ? INCREASE T TAXI FARES b

Angel Street
Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please email your views to licensing@bridgend.gov.uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae’r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form Is also available in Welsh

Page 174



N

IRIDGEND

Bridgend County Borough Council

Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicéte
your preferred option.

D Proposal 1

m Proposal 2

\,‘mngﬂﬂl:'_*éf_!ﬂb_ o
D Proposal 3 _ P atd RECE.‘;;_'E-QQF_.‘;T”
[J  Proposal 4 " Y
roposa A 2 2 AU[,‘ : (\
EI No change/keep current tariff \ 0 1
. / y
(Please tick one box only) R

If you wish to provide a comment on the reason for your preferred option, please include this
below.

Please return this form to:.

Licensing

Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street

Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please email your views to licensing@bridgend.qov.uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae’r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form Is also available in Welsh

Page 175



. BRIDGEND

Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicate

your preferred option.

D Proposal 1

ﬁ Proposal 2

D c.,(':N” ‘_‘jl—.mm‘ﬂr:u o~
Proposal 3 P RECEIVED i,
D Proposal 4
27 AUG 2018

D No change/keep current tariff
(Please tick one box only)

if you wish to provide a comment on the reason for your preferred option, please include this
below.

Please return this form to:
Licensing

Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street
Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please email your views to licensing@bridgend.gov.uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae'r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form is also available in Welsh

Page 176



Bridgend County Borough Council

S
| 0%*2
+

£

2

%

o

WRIDGEND

Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicate
your preferred option.

[ Proposal 1 ey
Proposal 2 %
[J  Proposal 3 72 AUG 201

I:l Proposal 4

D No change/keep current tariff
(Please tick one box only)

If you wish to provide-a comment on the reason for your preferred option, please include this
below.

Please return this form to:

Licensing

Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street

Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please email your views to licensing@bridgend.gov.uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae’r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form is also available in Welsh

Page 177



Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicate
your preferred option.

D Proposal 1 QOSENRCOUNTY ¢
\:"/r Wf"

At
D Proposal 2 / "y

B/Proposal 3 \ 23 Al 20 )
D Proposal 4

D No change/keep current tariff

o
(Please tick one box only)

If you wish to provide a comment on the reason for your preferred option; please include this
below.

Please return this form to:

Licensing

Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street.

Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please email your views to licensing@bridgend.gov.uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae’r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form is also available in Welsh

Page 178



Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney

carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicate
your preferred option.

D Proposal 1

,e‘*“ COUNTY BOROy G e
&
A\ RECEIVED

&
4 AUG 2018

Proposal 2

IE/ Proposal 3

I:I Proposal 4

5
Y,
2)

<

A g,l,‘ ?fmc <G

D No change/keep current tariff L& REGISTRATION

(Please tick one box only)

If you wish to provide a comment on the reason for your preferred option, please include this
below.

"l’htsSMMM‘OO/\“Cfe"*Sé,eS(’w'/'/v\S%é
'@uﬂiwwgaﬂejo ”jM(’A\SOTﬂNFD\

....§..\4.9.%.'..°.l.....‘?.9....9\..\.!.....s)s.q%...ﬁ.@.’.rﬁ..c«r\.fy) Sunday a3 Weewead
LH h AeMo.AJ)

Please return this form to:

Licensing

Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street

Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please email your views to licensing@bridgend.gov.uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae’'r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form is also available in Welsh

Page 179



Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicate
your preferred option.

Proposal 1

D Proposal 2

D Proposal 3

] Proposal 4 c"rifn R

U!,p( »\\u
3 A 7}
SREGISTRATION 3£

D No change/keep current tariff
(Please tick one box only)

If you wish te provide a comment on the reason for your preferred option, please include this
below.

luplerne Ao, Bovts ME ML ovaloyZ
A TRBPL et SE RS coSTS. ME Al

f"l'gh\){- ‘ﬁ‘? L/L/LC /\’é C,();-'(ﬂ/_ |||omq /\’}’(J-rv[ "‘/‘Oﬂ“ O[Z)Uéﬂ}
oo HE ouwbo, b ch\—rH of THE Tolrs car e,

Please return this form to: ‘

Licensing

Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street

Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please email your views to licensing@bridgend.gov.uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae’r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form is also available in Welsh

Page 180



Bridgend County Borough Council

Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please-indi
youp preferred option. W0 COUNTY
I_J{ Proposal 1

D Proposal 2

D Proposal 3

D Proposal 4

D No change/keep current tariff
(Please tick one box only)

if you wish to provide a comment on the reason for your preferred option, please include this
below.

Please return this form to:

Licensing

Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street

Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please email your views to licensing@bridgend.qgov.uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae’r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form is also available in Welsh

Page 181



Bridgend County Borough Council

Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicate
your preferred option.

E Proposal 1
D Proposal 2
D Proposal 3

D Proposal 4
D No change/keep current tariff

(Please tick one box only)

If you wish to provide a comment on the reason for your preferred option, please include this
below.

THEABSCE (S BETTER  FOR kL bl

AS. L ol L TRETAX O A L0002

Please return this form to:

Licensing

Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street

Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please email your views to licensing@bridgend.gov.uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae'r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form is also available in Welsh

Page 182



Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicate

your preferred option.
Proposal 1

COUNTY BORey G

G Wi oy

0 Proposal 2 ’ !
p A RECEVED {O“’f@
D Proposal 3 28 AUG 2018
[J  Proposal 4 5 %
e g_(':\\o

s [ 44
S REGISTRATIONS

D No change/keep current tariff
(Please tick one box only)

If you wish to provide a comment on the reason for your preferred option, please include this
below.

Please return this form to:

Licensing

Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street

Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please email your views to licensing@bridgend.gov.uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae’r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form is also available in Welsh

Page 183



Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicate
your preferred option.

D Proposal 1

o COUNTY BOROy; o
O] Proposal 2 -.,;'-9‘"\“ RECEIVEDG
H Proposal 3 30 AUG 2018
m Proposal 4 ‘f"‘

D ' Sfﬂ}g 8 REGISTRATION ,_3..:,-._.'
No change/keep current tariff

(Please tick one box only)

if you wish to provide a comment on the reason for your preferred option, please include this
below.

THY  DABEE | Pudve B e

on AT FUBLie g Pradn QU L eing g
LN TIE) AL eV Be OV e ey
s

Please return this form to:

Licensing

Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street

Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please email your views to licensing@bridgend.gov.uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae’r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form is also available in Welsh

Page 184



Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicate
your preferred option.

O

Proposal 1 T DUNTY BOROUGE
o ) g
&7 RECEIVED (2

Proposal 2 o
Proposal 3 k 30 AUG 2018

Proposal 4 N o &

Ol
[
[ "
; 26 ¢ regigTRANS

No change/keep current tariff

(Please tick one box only)

If you wish to provide a comment on the reason for your preferred option, please include this
below.

Please return this form to:

Licensing

Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street

Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please email your views to licensing@bridgend.gov.uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae’'r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form is also available in Welsh

Page 185



Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
' carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicate
your preferred option.

D Proposal 1 - mm;ﬂ; .
O Proposal 2 /,‘,_g/b"“"" RECEIVED '4\
D Proposal 3 30 AUG 2018 /
| Proposal 4 (%'3?« ~/z
Sips el
%G 8 ey STRATION "=

M No change/keep current tariff
(Please tick one box only)

If you wish to provide a comment ofi the reason for your preferred option, please include this
below. '

"b\AENW@P\;ammH\cfHﬂm&eeO@HAQmW /Pewme
e aes (il ...Td‘sf....&Q.@W.(...va.::&y;. A SR EICANTGA

VE2COSD VSR, THE LSl ¥8 AenesS.: A 08\l njceertE
VIALD AULZTHEZ. DI\Stmw Rl PEVALE ARy Wl iNg
TARNS | Thee s ~aes DECLER N, NG FPUe THER

Please return this form to:

Licensing

Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street

Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please email your views to licensing@bridgend.gov.uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae’r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form is also available in Welsh

Page 186



L BRIDGEND

Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicate
your preferred option.

D Proposal 1 4 ,—“mmv BOROUG™
0  proposal2 {Q\“" RECEIVED
E/ Proposal 3 31AUG 2018

D Proposal 4 S, %
4G & pegisTRANONS

D No change/keep current tariff
(Please tick one box only)

If you wish to provide a comment on the reason for your preferred option, piease include this
below.

ch«ﬂcﬁbﬁf@/&ﬁmwﬁ@@e’_%Z@

Please return this form to:

Licensing

Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street

Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please email your views to licensing@bridgend.gov.uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae’r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form is also available in Welsh

Page 187



Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicate
your preferred option.

M Proposal 1 RECEIVED /)

D Proposal 2 31 AUG 2018

O Proposal 3 s, o
\"ﬂ:ﬁﬁ_lm-‘.is1ﬁqs\1p\*pe

D Proposal 4 =

D No change/keep current tariff

(Please tick one box only)

If you wish to provide a comment on the reason for your preferred option, please include this

Please return this form to:

Licensing

Bridgend County Borough Council

Civic Offices

Angel Street

Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, pleése email your views to licensing@bridgend.gov.uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae’'r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form is also available in Welsh

Page 188



carriage tariff

Considering th
e 4 encl i
your preferred option, osed proposals to amend the hackney carriage 1ariff, please irdicate

O Proposal 1
E] Proposal 2

m/ Proposal 3

D Proposal 4

D No change/keep currant tariff
(Please tick one box only)

1 i I L = = e i ! f *
If you wish to provide a comment on the reason far your preferred option, piesse include this

Lelow,

Please return this form to:

Licensing
Bridgend County Borough Council

Civic Offices
Angel Street
Bfidgend CF31 4WB-

 fo "espomes is 7 September 2018

r ,(J[-,— N

oy a r{gael ynf Gymraeg | This form is also avallable in Weish

_-_, .""'




o

Consultati
. on ques . : 2
Questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackn oy

carriage tariff

Cansjdering the 4 caclosed Gropassals i
your preferred oplion. PHEBRIS 10 armerd e hacknsy Caroage EI, Diease indbiate

[Z Proposal 1
D Proposal 2
0

D Progazal 4

D MG zf'agcﬂ"!-c-,e-.ﬁj-;g;. Current andf

Progosal 3

(Please ok ore box Doy

Please returrt this form e

Licensing and Registration Section,
Bridgend County Borough Council

- Civig Offices '

Angel Street

. Bridgend. CF31 4WB

I. i W i
W A
4-‘.“.- b T

Alternatively, please email your views to licensing@bridgend.ov.uk

AIYT_!'-‘G‘Ym'raeq { This form is also available in Welsh




Cons ultation questionnaire on the p

08als tg .
P I'aga'-trac:llnf? S 0 amend the hackney

Considering the 4 enclosed proposais o amend 1
o © 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carsia: (AT D
Your preferred option. : M8y Cariage tarft, plaase indicate

D Froposal 1

E/Propoear 2
Proposal 3

D Proposal 4

Mo chan’ge.i’keep current tariff

{Please tick ane box ol

If you wish to provide a comment on the reasen for your preferred option, please include 1his
below.

se email your views to lizensing@bndgend aov.uk




Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicate
your preferred option.

‘E\Aroposal 1
aﬁ Proposal 2

I:I Proposal 3

<o COUNTY BOROUGE

RECEIVED

03 SEP 2018

D Proposal 4

I:I No change/keep current tariff

(Please tick one box only)

If you wish to provide a comment on the reason for your preferred option, please include this
below.

MXQXCW{,’D\\&L\»/UﬂLoﬁgm;}an
Ecwenfmdw ..... c}mc»hea.ma/\fﬂ'm;jt%/”//fiwk

Please return this form to:

Licensing

Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street

Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please email your views to licensing@bridgend.gov.uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae'r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form is also available in Welsh

Page 192



3 #c\%\.;:. '
] :

-
%

L
—

; I!Rll'tu.Nl.’f

Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicate
your preferred option.

IE/ Proposal 1

Proposal 2

_ =T COUNTY BORo: S
& kg G

SIC, St
7 RECEVED )

03 SEP 2018

I:l Proposal 3 .
(‘t}‘\

o

Y ('\\ﬁék
A, Pod *
%6 ¢ ReisTRAION S

D Proposal 4

D No change/keep current tariff
(Please tick one box only)

If you wish to provide a comment on the reason for your preferred option, please include this
below.

ConME fofoSe. . ToleS). Caerfhily. \3%4. The \ale 274
olth ) n.::n%.e....(.r_\.....Eue.(;...@ng.e.,..mh.kemgncgl....l.m.&)mﬂce :

l’\v‘"&»%'50&)4&"0}&)9.;6(\!&56’/\:;‘15C\Jr*’\?n{‘bg;(c’l CL\Q;FbSl‘
Wcence authonty cut o~ 3370

Please return this form to:

Licensing

Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street

Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please email your views to licensing@bridgend.gov.uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae’r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form is also available in Welsh

Page 193



A

BRIDGEND

Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicate
your preferred option.

M Proposal 1 © 5‘;’;;;3;0[{;5” fv'o(,%
I:I Proposal 2 03 SEP 2018

D Proposal 3

D Proposal 4

D No change/keep current tariff

(Please tick one box only)

If you wish to provide a comment on the reason for your preferred option, please include this
below.

Please return this form to:

Licensing

Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street

Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please email your views to licensing@bridgend.gov.uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae’r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form is also available in Welsh

Page 194



Wi .
%
=

_ BRIDGEND

Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicate
your preferred option.

IE Proposal 1 < GUNTY BOROUG >
B\ &)
[J  Proposal2 RECEIVED )
D Proposal 3 03 SEP 2018
] Proposal 4 " o %
_ G & peisTRANOS
D No change/keep current tariff

(Please tick one box only)

If you wish to provide a comment on the reason for your preferred option, please include this
below.

Please return this form to:

Licensing

Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street

Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please email your views to licensing@bridgend.qov.uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae’'r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form is also available in Welsh

Page 195



y 0%@!.
£ ‘:

R
&

%
-V

BRIDGEND

Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicate
your preferred option.

Proposal 1

Proposal 2 5 COUNTY BORGUG >~

e 0y
{g}ﬁ RECEIVED £

03 SEP 2018

Proposal 3

(i\‘\
4{5\; 7 C‘.\'
cels

NG & ."“’EU'STR(\"\IK‘-‘;

KOOODO

No change/keep current tariff

(Please tick one box only)

If you wish to provide a comment on the reason for your preferred option, please include this
below.

Please return this form to:

Licensing

Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street .

Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please email your views to licensing@bridgend.gov.uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae’r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form is also available in Welsh

Page 196



Bridgend County Borough Council

r ™
%
&

. BRIDGEND

Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicate
your preferred option.

E Proposal 1
D Proposal 2
D Proposal 3
D Proposal 4

D No change/keep current tariff
(Please tick one box only)

If you wish to provide a comment on the reason for your preferred option, please include this
below.

Please return this form to:

Licensing

Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street

Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please email your views to licensing@bridgend.gov.uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae’r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form is also available in Welsh

Page 197



RIDGEND

Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicate
your preferred option.

S COUNTY BOROUG =

5 Q
" RECEVED )

03 SEP 2018

q

D Proposal 1

D Proposal 2

£y

A
W6 § REGISTRALS

E Proposal 3
D Proposal 4

D No change/keep current tariff
(Please tick one box only)

If you wish to provide a comment on the reason for your preferred option, please include this
below.

Qe N e N

Please return this form to:

Licensing

Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street

Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please email your views to licensing@bridgend.gov.uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae’r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form is also available in Welsh

Page 198



Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicate
your preferred option.

I:l Proposal 1
D Proposal 2
E Proposal 3
D Proposal 4

D No change/keep current tariff
(Please tick one box only)

If you wish to provide a comment on the reason for your preferred option, please include this
below.

.domb Gk the chame.of ke for bacok. bwo

Should becéqngca/»éuﬁéw/c/oﬂj/oeﬂq//sefz//
e S ALIOC

Please return this form to:

Licensing

Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street

Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please email your views to licensing@bridgend.qov.uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae’r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form Is also available in Welsh

Page 199



Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicate
your preferred option.

X
O
O
O

O

Proposal 1
Proposal 2
Proposal 3
Proposal 4

No change/keep current tariff

(Please tick one box only)

o
&§

G{"‘\‘:} COUNTY BO””{_;(;{.
> Y A

RECEIVED

04 SEP 2018

<
/Q\"Iz
SM{ G

&

REGISTRATION 35

If you wish to provide a comment on the reason for your preferred option, please include this

below.

Please return this form to:

Licensing

Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street

Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please email your views to licensing@bridgend.gov.uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae'r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form is also available in Welsh

Page 200



Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicate
your preferred option.

@ Proposal 1 /<
@ Proposal 2 X
E/Proposal 3 \/
ﬁ Proposal 4 )&

E No change/keep current tariff

0 COUNTY BE}?}E}}}}:; "
o e
# RECEIVED %,
2\

04 SEP 1213

R ayie

‘s
N
CI"-\‘M',{‘_ . .
28 REGISTRANIOMN 2

(Please tick one box only)

If you wish to provide a comment on the reason for your preferred option, please include this
below.

Please return this form to:

Licensing

Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street

Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please email your views to licensing@bridgend.gov.uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae’r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form is also available in Welsh

Page 201



Bridgend County Borough Council

RIDGEND

Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicate
your preferred option.

E Proposal 1

D Proposal 2
— 0 COUNTY BORgS

RECEIVED

D Proposal 3

D Proposal 4

D No change/keep current tariff
(Please tick one box only)

If you wish to provide a comment on the reason for your preferred option, please include this
below.

Coot> S| O@e‘(:‘dms \'{Qu_\e.xl-ef RCB¢ Youdd aloo ressesd

\I“:: OL-J'—D../“\' C«\ML.{‘&% "fv\ f\\.c_p__,\.a...,\t_,)M oﬁ’oﬂ-u_n;x:\ﬁ/—’ o wﬂt .
\,v\._\a(sur:.\oa_b\.ﬁ.. coldeskc 'flrr_'»,..... ()A,gaeﬂ S

d ¥ %Y:'EBML o Eﬁ‘ﬁe_&-’:) \‘::u—z @C B¢ Y(:a‘bt\

Please return this form to:
i i \a.e. Fauw%)

Licensing Q’«»G-Mam'\x—
Bridgend County Borough Council ‘P;{ 5D \ro c_;,a_,,_@“rc ?uaczn B Rc

Civic Offices LMM
Angel Street
Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please email your views to licensing@bridgend.qov.uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae’r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form is also available in Welsh

Page 202



Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicate
your preferred option.

e —
-6‘6 COUNTY BORG; T
RECEIVED )

05 SEP 2018

(.)\'&.
” Wy
EGISTRATION 25

O

Proposal 1

D Proposal 2
D Proposal 3
D Proposal 4

No change/keep current tariff
(Please tick one box only)

If you wish to provide a comment on the reason for your preferred option, please include this
below.

Please return this form to:

Licensing

Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street

Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please email your views to licensing@bridgend.gov.uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae’'r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form is also available in Welsh

Page 203



Bridgend County Borough Council

Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicate
your preferred option.

D Proposal 1
EZI/ Proposal 2

D Proposal 3

<D COUNTY BGRg o
o
RECEIVED

D Proposal 4

I:I No change/keep current tariff
(Please tick one box only)

If you wish to provide a comment on the reason for your preferred option, please include this
below.

fﬂ/m/,ﬂ//ﬂéfwwwwdfm é.’/‘@

4*/fffé’t’a/fﬂf&mwcjc&*%ﬁm%cawaé

7

/MMA@VUMC//HCQJWK[%jwﬂu/lt(/!owrwﬂz .

Please return this form to:

Licensing

Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street

Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please email your views to licensing@bridgend.gov.uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae’r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form is also available in Welsh

Page 204



Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicate
your preferred option. COUNTY BOROG G

20
RECEIVED %
x Proposal 1 %

05 SEP 2018

e
\0(:1\;_\\1\

(Please tick one box only)

If you wish to provide a comment on the reason for your preferred option, please include this
below.

Sot¥ing. Cloadog. Poc@se. . 3. REVMIESS .85 NANE (S

_ (o
S NOWDE e Meposan. Ao lapns 2+ b
W 20 ofRond 35S B 7 Dadlds Yo Bie .
Please return this form to:
Licensing
Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices
Angel Street
Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please email your views to licensing@bridgend.gov. uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae’r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form Is also available in Welsh

Page 205



Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicate
your preferred option.

D Proposal 1
D Proposal 2
D Proposal 3

E"" Proposal 4

D No change/keep current tariff

(Please tick one box only)

If you wish to provide a comment on the reason for your preferred option, please include this
below.

Please return this form to:

Licensing

Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street

Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please email your views to |licensing@bridgend.gov. uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae’r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form is also available In Welsh

Page 206



r i

1|<||1(‘1-ng

Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicate
your preferred option. yn (L BAROUGH o

(.I r —— "t 4
i = It

ke
(S o
AN

D Proposal 1
D Proposal 2
I:I Proposal 3
E Proposal 4

D No change/keep current tariff
(Please tick one box only)

If you wish to provide a comment on the reason for your preferred option, please include this
below.

Please return this form to:

Licensing

Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street

Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please email your views to licensing@bridgend.gov.uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae’r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form Is also available in Welsh

Page 207



ridgend County Borough Council

ultation questionnaire on the proy
g : carriage tarlﬁsals to amend the hackney

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals 10 amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicate
your preferred option.

D Proposal 1
D Proposal 2
[9/ Proposal 3
D Proposal 4

D No change/keep current tariff

(Pleése tick one box only)

If you wish to provide a comment on the reason for your preferred option, please include this
below. '

£ el sl acreake Sois T

I = LI AT E Lheaion: I el AT et Pt b ki S S S et 0 Befive s wsarppsanpavipaninipsinrbirasaysasy i82

. j;o( Lo‘é\ AW . and (@GN ﬁ-i’ﬁ"’; A\sp k\\t X imad ‘%ﬂ‘»"“

...... L T L S PP N S TR AP TPISC e S LT
................................

needs ‘o be claged s in proposal 2.

------------------------------------------------------




Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicate
your preferred option.

[0 Proposal 1 oo ‘“"W

s A Recevep R

al Proposal 2 06 SEP 4
2018

I:I Proposal 3

L_..l Proposal 4

D No chénge/keep current tariff
(Please tick one box only)

If you wish to provide a comment on the reason for your preferred option, please include this
helow.

SiNeE (AST QATE WILLsASE ovEr T1TEAD Abs  Fuer, s o(urdec,

AR TENANE | rEblem S A Coulca FEES WAvE  (JUEASES SienF

&,é"\l& Fﬁl“ By OJS‘mMc‘U PAWE CAUBEN CpAFES: NCABASE BJT BAD No HAD

.Nmm el Cogdis of NEam g Wogen 88 ARG s

Please return this form to:

Licensing

Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street

Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please email your views to licensing@bridgend.gov.uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae’r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form is also available in Welsh

Ghpds



Bridgend County Borough Council

BRIDGEND _'

Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicate
your preferred option.

<L COUNTY Buxeﬁffp
RECEIVED

06 SEP 2018

E Proposal 1'

D Proposal 2

[:l Proposal 3
' 2y,

D Proposal 4 \\M\ 8 REGISTRANONS o

D No change/keep current tariff
(Please tick one box only)

If you wish to provide a comment on the reason for your preferred option, please include this
below.

Please return this form to:

Licensing

Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street

Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please email your views to licensing@bridgend.gov.uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae’r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form is also available in Welsh

Page 210



Pre- =N
-3'0% 5
&
£
%
1

, _Bl(ll)(il{N[_)_ .

Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicate
your preferred option.

X Proposal 1

T COUNTY B0 ‘)U”Gif P

D Proposal 2 ; /pu RECEIVED 'f%%
D Proposal 3 ( - 06 SEP 2018

I:l Proposal 4 L,

] No change/keep current tariff "'1(“.@;;&5;‘_(@{@}5&%

(Please tick one box only)

If you wish to provide a comment on the reason for your preferred option, please include this
below.

Please return this form to:

Licensing

Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street

Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please email your views to licensing@bridgend.gov.uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae’r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form is also available in Welsh

Page 211



Briba |\l) .

Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicate
your preferred option.

T UNTY RO
o C COUNTY BC }an\\
Z Proposal 1 Qﬁ\) e %VM
D Proposal 2 06 SEP K2
2018
I:l Proposal 3 S _
W, o 4 \(_‘.\:_‘/
I:I Proposal 4 S8 oo

D No change/keep current tariff
(Please tick one box only)

If you wish to provide a comment on the reason for your preferred option, please include this
below.

/7J /f'f/mcr o /”ﬁf?e' % LT f@%
14?»6 _/\fd‘“ | /fvéé’c,f;c—;) o(,vc( Oy, ,__-_3_ /\/@7\/

Please return this form té:

Licensing

Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street

Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please email your views to licensing@bridgend.gov.uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae’r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form is also available in Welsh

Page 212



. i
~°$ :

BRIDCEND

Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicate
your preferred option.

B Proposal 1

[J  Proposal 2 /q’fﬂ?ﬁm?ﬁ;r@?_
/8 )
I:I Proposal 3 s RECEIVED (2

D Proposal 4 C6 SEP it

x /
[ change/keep current tariff Mo W

&_____‘_*:'1-_(:4 ) _;4,».:1}@"‘_
(Please tick one box only)

If you wish to provide a comment on the reason for your preferred option, please include this
below.

Please return this form to:

Licensing

Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street

Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please email your views to licensing@bridgend.gov.uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae’r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form is also available in Welsh

Page 213



o "
-
ot"

K

=
£

%

v

—

: llzm(_;l-‘.Nl'_)_ -

Bridgend County Borough Council

Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicate
your preferred option.

D Proposal 1
RECEIVED 06 SEP 2018
L—_| Proposal 2

B/ Proposal 3 COUNTY BOROUGH >

p®
O Proposal 4 &Qﬁ RECEIVED

10 SEP 2018

D No change/keep current tariff

0.‘:'.
AN
)

s
@3

(Please tick one box only) SING & e srRN“““":

If you wish to provide a comment on the reason for your preferred option, please include this
below.

Please return this form to:

Licensing

Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street

Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please email your views to licensing@bridgend.gov.uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae’r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form Is also avallable in Welsh

Page 214



1.
ot
i~
L
i ¢

BRIDGEND

Bridgend County Borough Council

Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
carriage tariff
RECEIVED 06 SEP 2018

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicate
your preferred option.

D Proposal 1
p(_‘.“

D Proposal 2

U Proposal 3
RErie c'k-"ﬁ\
YEGIS TRATION.

L__I Proposal 4

D No change/keep current tariff
(Please tick one box only)

if you wish to provide a comment on the reason for your preferred option, please include this
below.

Please return this form to:

Licensing

Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street

Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please email your views to licensing@bridgend.gov.uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae’r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form is also available in Welsh

Page 215



oy
Ob X
.;.
£
%
e
—

BRIDGEND

Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicate
your preferred option.

D Proposai 1 Y B0 -
3 CounTY BOROUGH &3

\H]
RECEIVED

10 SEP 2018

D Proposal 2
|Z/ Proposal 3
D Proposal 4

D No change/keep current tariff
(Please tick one box only)

if you wish to provide a comment on the reason for your preferred option, please include this
below.

Please return this form to:

Licensing

Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street

Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please email your views to licensing@bridgend.gov.uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae’r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form is also available in Welsh

Page 216



e *I'- .
fi~
I

$

%
&

—_

BRIDGEND

' Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicate
your preferred option.

D Proposal 1
M Proposal 2

I:I Proposal 3

r,(JUNW BOROY
W Gy ("G;r »
RECEIVED ‘)

10 SEP 2018

D Proposal 4

EI No change/keep current tariff S o
46 & ReisTRATIONES
(Please tick one box only)

If you wish to provide a comment on the reason for your preferred option, please include this
below.

besT  fom Tyulats X CoSiomest

Please return this form to:

Licensing

Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street

Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please email your views to licensing@bridgend.gov.uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae’r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form is also available in Welsh

Page 217



e

01"“.: L

Bridgend County Borough Council

IRIDGEND

Consultation questionnaire on the proposals to amend the hackney
carriage tariff

Considering the 4 enclosed proposals to amend the hackney carriage tariff, please indicate
your preferred option.

Proposal 1

X1 _ Proposal 2 < UGs
g Ca RECEIVED )
Proposal 3 10 SEP 2018
Proposal 4 &
4 &Yy Y "‘IC z ‘\0\}'
E No change/keep current tariff $ REGISTRATION S5

(Please tick one box only)

If you wish to provide a comment on the reason for your preferred option, please include this
below.

~The Feva. frade.  has bad  only . osnt stk
ki s YR ARE S im g, opuen. refleds e,

Please return this form to:

Licensing

Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street

Bridgend. CF31 4WB

Alternatively, please email your views to licensing@bridgend.gov.uk

Closing date for responses is 7 September 2018

Mae’'r ffurflen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This form Is also avallable in Welsh

Page 218



il

Bridgend

03/09/2018

| am a licensed Hackney Carriage Vehicle owner and driver in Bridgend and have been now for nearly
30 years. | am writing in response to the consultation being carried out by the licensing department
in conjunction with the report for the council on the applications to increase the maxirmum tariff set
by council in accordance with the local government (Miscellaneous Provisions) act 1976 section 65.

| support a rise in the maximum tariffs set and | support option 3 of the given options in this
consultation, as an owner of a licensed Hackney Carriage | have the financial responsibility and
commitment of purchasing and maintaining this vehicle to the high standards set by the council.

The last increase of theses tariffs was back on 15th August 2011. The licensed taxi trade in the
county borough of Bridgend have shown restraint during these past years of austerity imposed on
the country by government in not applying to increase the tariffs, but now is the time for an increase . ~
to avoid the trade becoming insolvent and putting a risk to public safety by cost cutting on
maintenance and servicing.

I have a few issues and concerns with this consultation conducted by the licensing department and
with the level of support from this department and the council being offered to the licensed taxi
trade.

The first application submitted to the council was back at the beginning of 2016, why has it taken
until now late 2018 for a report to be prepared for council? Had that application been processed at
the time of receipt, the financial burden on the trade would have been eased and at this time
council may have been considering a smaller increase for the financial year 2018-19. This shows the
poor support for the licensed taxi trade from this department.

| have issues with the covering letter from the licensing department and concerns with the level of
information this consultation may provide to the council members and how misleading this may be.

The licensing department in their covering letter indicate that a significant increase in the fares
might impact on the use of taxis as means of public transport, have the licensing department any
evidence to support this statement? | as someone who has been in the licensed taxi trade for nearly
30yrs | can state that, | have witnessed many increases in the maximum tariffs set by the council and
| have never experienced any long term impact to the trade from an increase. The first weeks of an
increase may attract a few moans and groans as an increase in any costs would, but never an
“impact on the use of taxis as a means of public transport” are the licensing department trying to
influence this consultation?

Page 219



The information provided by this consultation for the council members will not tell them who has
voted in this consultation.

Are they owners of a licensed vehicle

Do they lease a vehicle

Are they a driver of a vehicle

Are they a full-time driver of a vehicle

Are they a part-time driver of a vehicle and have separate income from another source.

This consultation falls short in providing accurate information to the members about the opinions of
the licensed taxi trade on an increase to the tariffs.

I would like to state that the council set the maximum tariff that a Hackney Carriage Vehicle may
charge and keeping the maximum tariff low will only stifle competition in the taxi trade as it forces
all patrons to be on theses tariffs and will not allow a financial leeway to offer discounts and other
incentives to the public.

Yours sincerely

Page 220



Appendix F

Tz abed

BRIDGEND COUNTY
BOROUGH COUNCIL

TARIFF
REVIEW
AUGUST 2017


cookd2_4
Text Box
Appendix F


2ee abed

PROPOSED TARIFF INCREASE

« LAST INCREASE IMPLEMENTED ON AUGUST 15™ 2011

* B.C.B.C. TARIFFS ARE BELOW BOTH THE NATIONAL AND
WELSH AVERAGE TARIFFS.

* BRIDGEND IS POSITIONED 322 IN A TABLE OF 366 COUNCILS.

* WITH THE PRESENT EXCEPTION OF FUEL COSTS, DRIVERS ARE
EXPERIENCING RISING COSTS IN ALL OTHER AREAS, ROAD TAX,
INSURANCE, TAXI LICENCES, PLATING CHARGES, MEDICALS
ETC.

* DRIVERS HAVE A HUGE OUTLAY BEFORE THEY CAN START TO
EARN A LIVING.



cze abed

TARIFF 1

* RAISE THE FLAG FROM £2.50 TO £2.80

* FLAG TO REMAIN WITH THE FIRST %2 MILE INCLUDED

e DISTANCE CALCULATED IN 10ths OF A MILE i.e. 20p PER 10th

TARIFF 2

* RAISE FLAG FROM £3.30 TO £3.60

* FLAG TO REMAIN WITH THE FIRST %2 MILE INCLUDED

* DISTANCE CALCULATED IN 10ths OF A MILE i.e. 22p PER 10th

TARIFF 3

* RAISE FLAG FROM £4.40 TO £4.80

* FLAG TO REMAIN WITH THE FIRST %2 MILE INCLUDED

* DISTANCE CALCULATED IN 10ths OF A MILE i.e. 24p PER 10th

TARIFF 4

* RAISE FLAG FROM £5.50 TO £5.80

* FLAG TO REMAIN WITH THE FIRST %2 MILE INCLUDED

* DISTANCE CALCULATED IN 10ths OF A MILE i.e. 28p PER 10th



vz abed

PROPOSED TARIFF INCREASE.

TARIFF FLAG 15T MILE 5 MILES RUQ:\II_IENG

£2.80 £3.80 £11.80 £2.00
£3.60 £4.70 £13.50 £2.20
£4.80 £6.00 £15.60 £2.40
£5.80 £7.20 £18.40 £2.80




SUMMARY

%OVER FOUR YEARS SINCE LAST INCREASE.

N

‘r}')A RISE IS NEEDED TO COMPENSATE FOR INCREASED COSTS.

= NEED TO INCREASE B.C.B.C. TARIFFS IN LINE WITH THE INDUSTRY AVERAGES.

= WAITING TIMES TO REMAIN THE SAME @.20p PER MINUTE OR PART THEREOQOF.
= CHRISTMAS AND BANK HOLIDAYS TO REMAIN THE SAME.

=BANK HOLIDAYS RATE 2.

=THE 24 HOURS OF CHRISTMAS DAY DOUBLE RATE 1.

= SOILING CHARGE TO INCREASE TO £125



This page is intentionally left blank



Fropanal_tetian

Appendix G Mr Tom Burke Proposal

My proposal is based on changing the current number of clicks/mile from 8 clicks to 10 clicks.
My Pick up rates remain the same but the rate/mile is increased, depending on the Tarriff.
| also propose to change the Rates and Time Period over the Christmas and New Year Period.

We currently charge Double Tarriff1 / Tarriff 3 for a 24 hour period on December 25" and a
change in Tarriff for 2 hours on Dec 24" and Dec 31%. My proposal is to intoduce New Tarriffs

over an agreed Date and Time between December 24" and January 1%, This will have no effect
on standard UK Bank Holidays and the current system. Waiting Time is same rate as the Tarriff used / click.
| would also like to change the Time that Tarriff 2 and 4 are introduced from 8pm to 10pm .

My Proposal is as follows

Tarriff Rates Tl T1 T2 T3 T4 T5 T6

Pick up (5/10 of a Mile) £2.50 £3.30 £4.50 £5.50 £4.50 £7.00
Charge/Click £0.20 £0.25 £0.25 £0.30 £0.35 £0.40
Running Mile £2.00 £2.50 £2.50 £3.00 £3.50 £4.00

T5 and T6 charges are used on the following dates

December 24" 18:00 upto Midnight 6 Hours
December 25" 00:00 upto Midnight 24 Hours
December 26" 00.00 upto 06:00 & 18:00 upto Midnight 12 Hours
December 27" 00:00 upto 06:00 6 Hours
December 31 18:00 upto Midnight 6 Hours
January 1% 00:00 upto 06:00 6 Hours

| feel the above Proposals will offer a new clear system for our customers and also bring us as self employed Taxi
Drivers closer to the Minimuim Wage. It will also provide a fair sytem over the Christmas and New Year Period for
Taxi Drivers working the night period, they currently get little increase unlike the day drivers on Bank Holidays

The National avearge and Welsh Rates are outlined below along with our current Rates and my Proposed Rates
| have also included where we {B.C.B.C.) are positioned in the UK Taxi league and also a comparison of some other Councils

Tarriff 1 Averages
. Flag 1 Mile 2 Miles 5 Miles 10 Miles Running Mile
Bridgend £2.50 £3.30 £4.90 £9.70 £17.70 £1.60
Wales £2.82 £3.32 £5.16 £10.65 £19.79 £1.83
UK £2.76 £3.82 £5.68 £11.27 £20.71 £1.87
2016TB £2.50 £3.50 £5.50 £11.50 £21.50 £2.00
Tarriff 2 Averages
Flag 1 Mile 2 Miles 5 Miles 10 Miles Running Mile
Bridgend £3.30 £4.30 £6.30 £12.30 £22.30 £2.00
Wales £3.57 £4.20 £6.58 £13.66 £25.46 £2.36
UK £3.63 £5.02 £7.45 £14.73 £27.06 £2.45
20167TB £3.30 £4.55 £7.05 £14.55 £27.05 £2.50

League Position with 365 councils based on Tarriff 1 for 2 miles, also shows Year of Last change

Position Amount Year

Vale of Glamorgan 180 £5.65 2011
Cardiff 204 £5.59 2016
Newport 208 £5.51 2015
Rhondda Cynon Taff 279 £5.20 2012
Swansea 297 £5.05 2008
Neath Port Talbot 305 £5.00 2011
Bridgend 313 £4.90 2011
Welsh Average £5.16

UK Average £5.68

20167TB £5.50

All of the above is correct based on March 2016 UK Private Hire Monthly Trade Magazine

Page 1

Page 227


cookd2_5
Text Box
Appendix G


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix H

Premier Cars (Cardiff) Ltd
Bridgend Meter Review November 2017

Our proposal is based on research for both driver and information relating to the UK Retail Price
Index.

The last rate rise took place in 2011, this has left Bridgend way behind in regards the true cost of
operating and earning a living from a Hackney Carriage Vehicle.

The Structure of the current tariff that is in place should be used for a guideline, as in many ways
when it was produced it catered for Saloon and MPV type vehicles. We feel the tariff would be
improved with changes to Sunday operating prices — this should be tariff 2 all day to encourage
drivers to offer an exceptional service at a rate that is workable.

The increases in RPI over the last 5 years are:

2012 3.1%
2013 2.7%
2014 1.6%
20151.2%
2016 2.5%

Total over 5 years 11.1%

The proposed tariff shown below takes the above additional costs into account.

Tariff 1 (Saloon type vehicles)

Flag £2.50 for 388 yards
1t Mile £3.90
Per Mile £1.80

Waiting time  £15.00 per hour (25p minute)
Increments of 20p for mileage and waiting

Tariff 2 (Saloon type vehicles)

Flag £3.30 for 480 yards
1°t Mile £4.90
Per Mile £2.20

Waiting time  £15.00 per hour (25p minute)
Increments of 20p for mileage and waiting

Tariff 3 (MPV type vehicles)

Flag £4.50 for 424 yards
1t Mile £6.40
Per Mile £2.50

Waiting time  £18.00 per hour (30p minute)
Increments of 30p for mileage and waiting

Page 229


cookd2_6
Text Box
Appendix H


Appendix H

Tariff 4 (MPV type vehicles)

Flag £5.50 for 457 yards
15t Mile £7.50
Per Mile £2.70

Waiting time  £18.00 per hour (30p minute)
Increments of 30p for mileage and waiting

Tariff 1 (saloon type vehicle) = 06.00hrs to 20.00hrs Monday to Saturday

Tariff 2 (saloon type vehicle) = 20.00hrs to 06.00hrs Monday to Saturday and all day Sunday
Tariff 3 (MPV type vehicle) = 06.00hrs to 20.00hrs Monday to Saturday

Tariff 4 (MPV type vehicle) = 20.00hrs to 06.00hrs Monday to Saturday and all day Sunday
Bank Holidays (except Christmas day) = Tariff 2 Saloon, Tariff 4 MPV

Christmas Day = Tariff 1 x 2 (Saloon) Tariff 3x2 (MPV)

Contamination Charge £100.00

Regards
Peter Renwick

Director
Premier Cars (Cardiff) Ltd

Page 230


cookd2_7
Text Box
Appendix H


Appendix | Mr Dario Nelson - Bridgend CBC Tariff Proposal
Q
(c% Current Current
N BCBC BCBC
'&'iff 1 Dario Nelson £4.90 £17.70
1 - 4 Passengers
06.00 - 22.00
Flag Click (1/10 mile) Running Mile Upto 1 mile 2 miles 3 miles 4 miles 10 miles
£2.20 £0.20 £2.00 £4.20 £6.20 £22.20
(2.20 + 2.00)
Current Current
BCBC BCBC
Tariff 2 Dario Nelson £6.30 £22.30
1- 4 Passengers
22.00-03.00
Flag Click (1/10 mile) Running Mile Upto 1 mile 2 miles 3 miles 4 miles 10 miles
£2.40 £0.25 £2.50 £4.90 £7.40 £27.40
(2.40 + 2.50)
Current Current
BCBC BCBC
Tariff 3 Dario Nelson £6.30 £22.30
1 - 4 Passengers
03.00 - 06.00
Flag Click (1/10 mile) Running Mile Upto 1 mile 2 miles 3 miles 4 miles 6 miles 7 miles 8 miles 9 miles 10 miles
£2.40 £0.30 £3.00 £5.40 £8.40 £11.40 £14.40 £17.40 £20.40 £23.40 £26.40 £29.40 £32.40
(2.40 + 3.00)

Page 1



cookd2_8
Text Box
Appendix I


Current Current Current
Y BCBC BCBC BCBC
ariff 4 Dario Nelson £7.50 £13.50 £23.50
gR Passengers
@300 - 22.00
Mg Click (1/10 mile) Running Mile Upto 1 mile 2 miles 3 miles 4 miles 5 miles 6 miles 7 miles 8 miles 9 miles 10 miles
£4.20 £0.20 £2.00 £6.20 £8.20 £10.20 £12.20 £14.20 £16.20 £18.20 £20.20 £22.20 £24.20
(4.20 + 2.00)
Current Current Current
BCBC BCBC BCBC
Tariff 5 Dario Nelson £9.10 £16.30 £28.30
5+ Passengers
22.00 - 03.00
Flag Click (1/10 mile) Running Mile Upto 1 mile 2 miles 3 miles 4 miles 5 miles 6 miles 7 miles 8 miles 9 miles 10 miles
£4.80 £0.25 £2.50 £7.30 £9.80 £12.30 £14.80 £17.30 £19.80 £22.30 £24.80 £27.30 £29.80
(4.80 + 2.50)
Current Current Current
BCBC BCBC BCBC
Tariff 6 Dario Nelson £9.10 £16.30 £28.30
5+ Passengers
03.00 - 06.00
Flag Click (1/10 mile) Running Mile Upto 1 mile 2 miles 3 miles 4 miles 5 miles 6 miles 7 miles 8 miles 9 miles 10 miles
£4.80 £0.30 £3.00 £7.80 £10.80 £13.80 £16.80 £19.80 £22.80 £25.80 £28.80 £31.80 £34.80
(4.80 + 3.00)

Extra Charges

No change to the current Bridgend County Borough Tariff

Page 2




Agenda Iltem 13

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
REPORT TO CABINET
18 DECEMBER 2018
REPORT OF THE HEAD OF LEGAL AND REGULATORY SERVICES
GAMBLING ACT 2005 STATEMENT OF PRINCIPLES
1. Purpose of report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to report the outcome of the three year review of the
Gambling Statement of Principles, the framework which governs the way this
authority undertakes its duties as the licensing authority for gambling. Approval of
the Statement of Principles for the next three year period from 2019 is a Council
function.

2. Connection to corporate improvement objectives/other corporate priorities
2.1  There is no direct link to the Corporate Improvement Plan / Other Corporate Priority.
3. Background

3.1 The Gambling Act 2005 provides for a regulatory system to govern the provision of
all gambling in Great Britain, other than the National Lottery and spread betting.
The Gambling Commission was set up under the Gambling Act 2005 to regulate
commercial gambling in Great Britain in partnership with licensing authorities as
local regulators. The Act places a legal duty on both the Commission and licensing
authorities to aim to permit gambling, in so far as it is considered to be reasonably
consistent with the licensing objectives, and the full regulatory framework is set out
at paragraph 4.2 below.

3.2  This licensing authority is responsible for:

e |ssuing premises licences;

e Issuing permits which allow low stakes gambling in venues which are not
primarily for gambling, for example, pubs;

e enabling societies to hold small lotteries;

e ensuring compliance and enforcement of the Gambling Act 2005 locally.

3.3 The Council, as licensing authority, is not responsible for the authorisation or
enforcement of remote gambling e.g. online gambling.

3.4 The Council is required to publish a policy statement, known as the Statement of
Principles every three years. The current document has been reviewed and a draft
consultation undertaken. A copy of the draft Statement of Principles is attached at
Appendix A. The reviewed elements are highlighted in red.

Page 233



4,

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

441

442

Current situation/proposal

The Act places a duty on the Council to develop a Statement of Principles that
promotes the three licensing objectives:

o Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being
associated with crime or disorder, or being used to support crime

o Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way, and

o Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or
exploited by gambling.

The Council’'s Statement of Principles forms part of the framework outlined in
Section 153 of the Gambling Act 2005 for how the licensing authority exercises its
functions. Section 153 of the Act provides that a licensing authority shall aim to
permit the use of premises for gambling in so far as it thinks it is:

in accordance with any relevant code of practice under s.24 (A Gambling
Commission function).

in accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Commission under s.25
(The statutory guidance issued to the authority by the Gambling Commission).
reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives (subject to a and b above),
which are prescribed in the Gambling Act 2005 (applicable to both bodies)

in accordance with the licensing authority’s statement of licensing policy (subject to
a to ¢ above) the Statement of Principles now under consideration in this report.

Analysis of complaints and intelligence received by the Council, since the last
revision of the Statement suggested that no new trends or concerns had emerged
during the last three years, either by sector or location. One of the enforcement
concerns which had arisen is the siting of machines in takeaways and other shops,
which is illegal and this resulted in a prosecution and cannot therefore be dealt with
as a policy issue.

Therefore, no significant changes were made to the Statement of Principles.
However, it follows the approach set out in the 5th Edition of the statutory Guidance
issued by the Gambling Commission to licensing authorities referred to in
paragraph 4.2.

This means that in the absence of any local factor or risk, this authority will follow
the Gambling Commission’s approach to regulating gambling as set out in the
Guidance. It is important to recognise that whilst the authority must have regard to
the Guidance in its decision making, the Guidance does not seek to fetter the
discretion of the authority in dealing with applications or compliance.

Information relating to The Wellbeing and Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015
was included in the update as well as reference to the Chief Medical Officer for
Wales whose annual reports highlight areas of emerging or underestimated public
health importance. The latest report highlighted the relationship between gambling

Page 234



4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.8.1

4.8.2

4.9

4.9.1

and health. Whilst there is no specific policy impact at present, there may be
developments which need to be addressed during the next three year period.

The consultation process is prescribed by regulations and includes the Chief Officer
of Police, the Gambling Commission, one or more persons who appear to the
authority to represent the interests of persons carrying on gambling businesses and
one or more persons who are likely to be affected by the exercise of the authority's
functions under the Act. This comprises elected Members, Town and Community
Councils, Trade representatives, machine suppliers, safeguarding organisations
(including problem gambling), the Public Service Board and Community Safety
Partnership.

The consultation process involved placing the draft Statement of Principles on the
Council's website and issuing notices of consultation on the statutory consultees
and other parties referred to above. Consultation took place between 31 August
2018 and 9 November 2018.

The responses to the consultation are set out in Appendix B. The table comprises
the body or person responding, the nature of the response and officer comments on
the response.

There were three valid responses to the consultation which are set out at Appendix
B to this report. The officer response at Appendix B explains where:

e issues have already been included in the draft Statement of Principles

e where the licensing authority does not have the power to address the issue
raised

e where a proposed amendment is being put forward for consideration

Gamcare is the provider of information, advice, support and free counselling for the
prevention and treatment of problem gambling. The response did not relate
specifically to the Bridgend Statement of Principles and the reasons for not
amending the document are included in Appendix B. However, there was a
relevant issue which was not included in the original draft Statement of Principles:

Proposed amendment 1

Add the following to the risk assessment guidelines at paragraph 3.1

The risk assessment should include an assessment of the impact of any
promotional material likely to encourage the use of the premises by children

who are not allowed to access the premises.

Reason: to protect children and vulnerable persons from harm or being exploited by
gambling

The Gambling Commission is the overall regulator of gambling in the UK. The
response received relates to how the premises risk assessment is kept, and to the
role of the local authority in issuing gaming machine permits in licensed premises.

The Gambling Commission has asked the licensing authority to consider
recommending that best practice will be to retain a copy of the local risk

Page 235



49.2

493

5.1

6.1

assessment on the premises. The local risk assessment is a document prepared
by a premises licence holder which addresses how local risk factors will be
mitigated. For example, how the location of the premises impacts on the licensing
objectives, particular if it is near a school or other premises where young people
attend. This is accepted as a valid amendment:

Proposed amendment 2

Paragraph 3.1 to include that the licensing authority considers it best practice
for a copy of the local risk assessment to be retained on the premises.

Reason: to comply with the licensing objectives by enabling officers to inspect the
document during compliance visits and to ensure local staff are aware of the
document.

Paragraph 5.2 of the Statement of Principles outlines the approach to gaming
machines on alcohol licensed premises. The current statement does not make it
clear that the provisions set out at paragraphs 5.2.1 to 5.2.6 are the standards set
out in the Gambling Commission statutory guidance.

Proposed amendment 3
At paragraphs 5.2.add the following:

The licensing authority will adopt the Gambling Commission statutory
guidance in relation to notifications and permits in alcohol licensed premises.

Reason: to provide applicants and the existing trade with clear guidelines on the
authorities approach to licensing.

Whilst not impacting on this policy review, Cabinet is advised that, the Government
has announced a changed to the stakes involved in gaming machines known as
“Fixed Odds Betting Terminals” (FOBTs). FOBTs are electronic machines, sited in
betting shops, which contain a variety of games, including roulette. The maximum
stake on a single bet is £100, the maximum prize is £500. These machines have
proved controversial, with concerns being raised that the machines have a causal
link to problem gambling because of the large amount of money that can be lost in a
short time. From April 2019, the maximum stake will be reduced to £2.00. (Source:
UK Parliament Library Briefing paper 16 November 2018).

Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules

None.

Equality Impact Assessment

A full Equality Impact Assessment has not been undertaken as there are no

implications in relation to age; disability; gender and transgender; race; religion or
belief and non-belief; sexual orientation since the last revision of this document.

Page 236



7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications

7.1 The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of this
report. It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable impacts
upon the achievement of well-being goals/objectives as a result of this report.

8. Financial implications

8.1 The cost of consultation and publication is met from existing budget.

9. Recommendation

9.1  Cabinet is recommended to endorse that the Statement of Gambling Principles,
incorporating with the proposed amendments 1-3 referred to in paragraphs 4.8.1, to
4.9.2 above, is forwarded to Council for approval and publication in accordance with
the regulations.

Kelly Watson

Head of Legal and Regulatory Services
11 December 2018

Contact officer: Yvonne Witchell

Team Manager Licensing

Telephone: (01656) 643643

Email:

Yvonne.Witchell@bridgend.gov.uk

Postal address: Civic Offices, Angel St, Bridgend, CF31 4WB

Background documents: Consultation responses

Gambling Commission Guidance to local authorities available
at:https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/PDF/GLA5.pdf

Chief Medical Officer for Wales report
https://gov.wales/docs/phhs/publications/cmo-report2017en.pdf

Page 237


mailto:Yvonne.Witchell@bridgend.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

GAMBLING ACT 2005:
BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol

BRIDGEND

County Borough Council

STATEMENT OF PRINCIPLES

This document is also available in Welsh
Other formats available on request.

Version 4.0
Date comes into effect:

Page 239



PREFACE

Gambling and betting are regulated by the Gambling Commission, whose duties
include the licensing of operators and individuals involved in providing gambling
and betting facilities. Bridgend County Borough Council, in its role as a
licensing authority has a duty under the Act, to licence premises where
gambling takes place and to licence certain other activities, including the
registration of small society lotteries.

This document sets out how the licensing authority intends to approach this
task. It should be noted that this policy statement will not override the right of
any person to make an application, to make representations about an
application, or to apply for a review of a licence. Every matter will be considered
on its merits and according to the statutory requirements of the Gambling Act
2005.

CONTACT DETAILS

Licensing

Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street, Bridgend, CF31 4WB

licensing@bridgend.gov.uk

Telephone: 01656 643643
Website: www.bridgend.gov.uk

The licensing authority has made every effort to ensure accuracy of this
document and any typographic errors should be drawn to our attention. Any
information contained within is not intended to be a substitute for independent
legal advice. Should you have any comments or feedback once this Statement
is published please send them to the above address.

Other websites of interest:

www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk
www.gamecare.orqg.uk

Page 240


mailto:licensing@bridgend.gov.uk
http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/
http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/

Index

Subject Page
INTRODUCTORY SECTION 4
CONSIDERATION OF APPLICATIONS 14
PRINCIPLES GOVERNING THE CONSIDERATION OF 19
SPECIFIC CLASSES OF PREMISES OR PERMIT

PERMITS / TEMPORARY & OCCASIONAL USE NOTICES | 25
DECISION MAKING AND DELEGATION OF FUNCTIONS | 31
RIGHTS OF APPEAL AND JUDICIAL REVIEW 33

Page 241




1.0

1.1

1.2

INTRODUCTORY SECTION

The Licensing Objectives

A fundamental principle of this Statement is that in carrying out its functions the
Bridgend County Borough Council licensing authority (“the licensing authority”)
will perform its functions in accordance with the three licensing objectives set
out in the Gambling Act 2005 (“the Act”).

Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being
associated with crime or disorder or being used to support crime.

Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way; and

Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or
exploited by gambling.

This licensing authority will aim to permit the use of premises for gambling so
far as it is satisfied that the application is:

a. in accordance with any relevant code of practice issued by the Gambling
Commission under Section 24 of the Act;

b. in accordance with any relevant Guidance issued by the Gambling
Commission under Section 25 of the Act (referred to within this document
as “the Guidance”);

c. reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives subject to a. and b.
above ; and

d. in accordance with the authority’s Statement of Licensing Policy published
under Section 349 of the Act subject to a. to c. above.

This Statement will not override the right of any person to make an application,
make representations about an application or apply for a review of a licence, as
each will be considered on its own merits and according to the statutory
requirements of the Gambling Act 2005.

Summary of matters dealt with in this Statement

The regulatory functions for which the licensing authority is responsible are:

Licensing of premises for gambling activities

Consideration of notices given for the temporary use of premises for gambling
Granting of permits for gaming and gaming machines in clubs and miners’
welfare institutes

Granting of permits to family entertainment centres (FEC) for the use of certain
lower stake gaming machines

Granting of permits for prize gaming

Consideration of occasional use notices for betting at tracks

Page 242



Registration of small societies’ lotteries.

Premises Licence Reviews

Information provision to the Gambling Commission
Maintenance of statutory registers

1.3 This Statement relates to all those licensable premises, notices, permits and
registrations identified as falling within the provisions of the Act, which include:-

Casinos;

Bingo Premises;

Betting Premises;

Tracks;

Adult Gaming Centres;

Family Entertainment Centres (FEC’s);
Unlicensed FEC gaming machine permits
Club Gaming and Club Machine Permits;
Prize Gaming and Prize Gaming Permits;
Temporary and Occasional Use Notices;
Registration of small society lotteries;
Notifications from alcohol licensed premises for the use of two or less gaming
machines;

e Provisional Statements.

It should be noted that local licensing authorities are not involved in licensing
remote gambling, and this activity is regulated by the Gambling Commission
through Operator Licences.

1.4 Geographical area under which the Bridgend County Borough Council licensing
authority will exercise functions under the Gambling Act 2005

With its Bristol Channel coastline and mix of urban and rural communities, the
County Borough lies at the geographical heart of South Wales and has a
population of about 139,178*. Its land area of 28,500 hectares stretches
20km from east to west and occupies the Llynfi, Garw and Ogmore valleys. The
largest town is Bridgend (pop: 58380****), followed by Maesteg (pop:
20,612 ** )and the seaside resort of Porthcawl (pop: 15672***).
*https://statswales.gov.wales

**http://lwww.maestegcouncil.org/about-maesteg/

***http://citypopulation.info

****http://citypopulation.info

Page 243



The Council’s corporate and strategic themes will vary during the course of the
validity of this Statement. Details of the current corporate themes and

strategies can be accessed here:

https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/my-council/council-priorities-and-performance/

The geographical area to which this policy applies is:

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH

-36
Pencoed M

M4

pAI06
Porthcawl

Cowbridge

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CIVIC OFFICES, ANGEL STREET, BRIDGEND, CF31 4WB.
TEL: 01656 643643 FAX: 01656 668126
“Crown copyright. All rights reserved (Bridgend County Borough Council
Licence Number 100023405, 2006).

858DYBRZ

Page 244



The authority has undertaken a local analysis of the gambling profile of
Bridgend County Borough Council.

Premises/Permit 2016 Number of Comments

Type premises 2018

Betting 18 17 18+

Bingo 2 2 18+

Adult Gaming Centre | 6 6 18+

Family Entertainment | 4 4 Mixed access with

Centre 18+ segregated
area

Registered Members | 27 26

Club

Licensed Premises 8 9 Licensed premises
with more than 2
machines

Licensed Premises 82 83 Automatic
entitlement for two
machines

Family Entertainment | 10 12 Typically Seaside

centre (permit) venues —all age
access
Porthcawl is a
seaside location
and a number of
the arcades
referred to are
located in this
area. All ages can
access these
venues

Total Number of 157 159

premises where

gambling available

There were 153 local groups and societies registered to conduct lotteries for
fundraising purposes, which has decreased to @120.

Page 245



1.6

1.7

The authority does not maintain statistics on the impact of gambling on the
locality. Attention is drawn however, to the Annual Report of the Chief Medical
Officer for Wales which has highlighted the call for further research on the
impact of gambling on health. Whilst there is no specific detail or policy impact
on the 2018 -consultation, stakeholders should be aware of this local
development in Wales. The report is available at:

http://gov.wales/docs/phhs/publications/cmo-report2017en.pdf
Subject to the statutory consultation which will follow the 2018 review of this
Statement of Gambling Policy there are no significant trends emerging to

warrant any significant policy changes for the period 2019-2022.

Designation of the body competent to advise on protecting children and other
vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling (Section 157)

The licensing authority will consider the following principles when designating
the body competent to advise on protecting children and other vulnerable
persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling:

e The need for the body to be responsible for an area covering the whole
of the licensing authority’s area,

e The need for the body to be answerable to democratically elected
persons, rather than any particular vested interest group.

Having regard to the Commission’s Guidance, the authority designates the
Bridgend Children’s Directorate, Safeguarding and Family Support as the most
appropriate body to carry out this function.

How the Council will determine who qualifies as an Interested Party

Interested Parties can make representations to the licensing authority about
licensing applications, or apply for a review of an existing licence. An interested
party is someone who:

Lives sufficiently close to the premises and is likely to be affected by the
authorised activities or

Has business interests that might be affected by the authorised activities or
Represents persons in either category above

When exercising the powers under section 158 of the Act to determine whether
a person is an interested party in relation to a premises licence, or an
application for a premises licence, the licensing authority will follow the
Guidance to Licensing Authorities issued by the Gambling Commission
(hereafter referred to in this document as “the Guidance” and comprising all
subsequent amendments). It will consider whether a person is an

Page 246



interested party with regard to a particular premises on a case by case
basis, judging each on its merits and no rigid rule will be applied in the decision
making process.

The principles which may be applied in each case are:

e The size and nature of the premises

e The distance of the premises from the person making the representations

e The potential impact of the premises (number of customers, routes likely to be
taken by those visiting the establishment)

e The circumstances of the person(s) making the representations. (These are
not the personal circumstances of the complainant but the interests of the
complainant which may be relevant to the distance from the premises).

In determining whether a person has a business interest that could be affected,
the licensing authority may take into account, amongst other things,

e The size of the premises

e The “catchment area” of the premises (how far people travel to visit the
premises)

o Whether the person making the representation has business interests in this
“catchment area” that might be affected

The authority considers that the following groups come within the category of
those who could represent persons living close to the premises, or have
business interests that may be affected by it as:

Trade associations

Residents’ and Tenants’ associations
Charities

Faith Groups

Medical Practices

School Head or Governor
Community Group

The licensing authority will consider persons who are democratically elected as
interested parties for example Councillors, AM’'s and MP’s or Town,
Community or Parish Councillors.

Other than these however, this authority will generally require written evidence
that a person/body (e.g. an advocate / relative) ‘represents’ someone who either
lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by the
authorised activities and/or has business interests that might be affected by the
authorised activities.

If individuals wish to approach Councillors to ask them to represent their
views, care should be taken that the Councillors are not part of the Licensing
Committee dealing with the licence application. If there are any doubts then the
party should contact Licensing and Registration Section for information.

Page 247



1.8

All parties are reminded that representations must relate to the licensing
objectives. If an interested party has difficulty in making representations, they
should contact the Licensing Section for advice.

Due consideration will be given to all relevant representations unless they are
considered to be frivolous, vexatious or repetitious. The principles which will
be applied in the decision making process are likely to be:

Who is making the representation and whether there is a history of making
representations that are not relevant
Whether the representation relates to the licensing objectives
Whether the representation is specific to the premises that are subject to the
application
Any such decision will be made objectively and not on the basis of any political
judgement. Where a representation is rejected a written statement of reasons
will be issued.

In the absence of any regulations or statutory provision representations should
ideally:

Indicate the name and address of the person or organisation making the
representation

Indicate the premises to which the representation relates
Indicate the proximity of the premise to the person making the representation
Set out the reasons for making the representation

Advise the licensing authority if any special assistance is required in
submitting or making the representation in writing or orally

Electronic submission of representations is deemed to be equal to written
submission

Representations

Persons making representations should be aware that full disclosure of
representations will be made available to applicants and published as part of
Council reports to allow for transparency and negotiation between parties. In
the event of a hearing, all representations will form part of a public report
unless the person making the representations can satisfy the Council that there
is a compelling reason not to do so.

Interested parties and responsible authorities are reminded that the Act does
not include the prevention of public nuisance as a licensing objective. This is
dealt with under separate legislation. The only representations that are likely to
be relevant are those that relate to the licensing objectives, or which raise

10

Page 248



1.9

issues set out in this policy, the Guidance or Gambling Commission Codes of

practice.

Responsible Authorities

The responsible authorities for this licensing authority are:

Licensing Department
Community Safety Partnership
Bridgend Police Station
Brackla Street

Bridgend CF31 1BZ

Phone: 01656 679507

Adran Twydded

Partneriaeth Diogelwch yn y Gymuned
Gorsdaf Heddlu Pen-y-bont

Stryd Bracla

Pen-y-bont

CF311BZ

Ffén: 01656 679507

Licensing

Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street

Bridgend

CF31 4WB

Phone: 01656 643643

Trwyddedu

Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr
Y Swyddfeydd Dinesig

Stryd yr Angel

Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr.

CF31 4WB

Ffén: 01656 643643

licensing@bridgend.gov.uk

Development Group

Communities Directorate
Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices,

Angel Street

Bridgend

CF31 4WB

Phone: 01656 643643

Y Grwp Datblygu

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth Gymunedau
Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar
Ogwr

Y Swyddfeydd Dinesig,

Stryd yr Angel

Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr

CF31 4WB

Ffén: 01656 643643

planning@bridgend.gov.uk

11
Page 249



mailto:licensing@bridgend.gov.uk
mailto:planning@bridgend.gov.uk

Bridgend County Borough Council

Children’s Directorate Health and Safety Executive
Safeguarding and Family Support Government Buildings
Civic Offices, Angel Street, Bridgend CF31 Phase 1
4WB Ty Glas
Llanishen
Cardiff,
CF14 5SH

Health and Safety Executive
Government Buildings

Rhan 1,

Adeiladau’r Llywodraeth,

Ty Glas,

Llanishen,

Caerdydd

CF14 58H

The Gambling Commission
Victoria Square House
Victoria Square

South Wales Fire & Rescue Service BIRMINGHAM
Forest View Business Park B2 4BP
Llantrisant

CF72 8LX

Phone:01443 232000

Gwasanaeth Tan ac Achub De Cymru
Parc Busnes Fforest View

Llantrisant

CF72 8LX

Ffén: 01443 232000

H. M. Revenue & Customs
Ty Nant

180 High Street
SWANSEA

12
Page 250



SA1 5AP

Her Majesty’s Commissioners of Customs
and

Excise,

Government Buildings

Ty Glas

Llanishen

Cardiff. CF14 5FP

029 2032 5003

Shared Regulatory Services
Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street

Bridgend

CF31 4WB

Phone: 01656 643260

Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr
Y Swyddfeydd Dinesig

Stryd yr Angel

Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr.

CF31 4WB

Ffon: 01656 643260

publicprotection@bridgend.gov.uk

1.10

1.11

Please note that the addresses of these bodies may change from time to time
and you are advised to contact the Licensing Section before submitting an
application.

Information Exchange and Responsible Authorities

In fulfilling its functions and obligations under the Act the Council will exchange
relevant information with other regulatory bodies or responsible authorities
and will establish separate protocols with these bodies where applicable. In
exchanging such information, the Council will comply with the requirements of
data protection, freedom of information, existing Council policies and any
Guidance issued by the Gambling Commission. Section 29 of the Act places an
obligation on the authority to comply with the Gambling Commission’s
information requests and the Gambling Commission’s website sets out the
information exchange protocols in place.

Requlation and Instituting Criminal Proceedings

13

Page 251




In exercising the functions under Part 15 of the Act with respect to the
inspection of premises and the powers under section 346 of the Act to institute
criminal proceedings in respect of the offences specified in that section, the
licensing authority will ensure compliance with the terms of premises
licences and other permissions which it authorises.

The main enforcement and compliance role for this authority will be in respect of
premises and other permissions for which it has responsibility The Gambling
Commission will be the enforcement body for operating and personal licences
and concerns about manufacture, supply or repair of gaming machines will be
notified to the Gambling Commission.

The principles for regulation will be informed by the Gambling Commission’s
Guidance and will endeavour to be in accordance with the principles of better
regulation.

The principles to be followed are that regulators and regulation should be:

e Proportionate, appropriate to the risk posed, accountable, consistent and
transparent.

This licensing authority will adopt a risk-based inspection programme of
premises; the following criteria are to be used in determining the level of risk in
respect of premises.

Use of licensed premises for the sale and distribution of drugs and the
laundering of the proceeds of drugs crimes;

Use of licensed premises for the sale and distribution of illegal firearms;
Use of licensed premises for prostitution or the sale of unlawful pornography;
Use of licensed premises as a base for organised criminal activity;

Use of licensed premises for the organisation of racist, homophobic or sexual
abuse or attacks;

Use of licensed premises for the sale of smuggled tobacco or goods;

The use of licensed premises for the sale of stolen goods.

Where children and/or vulnerable persons are put at risk.

The licensing authority will investigate complaints against licensed premises in
relation to matters relating to the licensing objectives for which it has
responsibility. In the first instance, complainants are encouraged to raise the

complaint directly with the licensee or business concerned to seek a local
resolution.

14
Page 252



12

1.13

1.14

1.15

Where any party has made valid representations about licensed premises, or a
valid application for a licence to be reviewed, the licensing authority is minded
to support conciliation meetings to address and clarify the issues of concern.
This process will not override the right of any party to ask that the licensing
authority consider their valid objections, or for any licence holder or applicant to
decline to participate in a conciliation meeting.

The authority recognises that certain operators have a number of premises
within its area. In order to ensure that any compliance issues are recognised
and resolved at the earliest opportunity, the authority requests that operators
provide a single named point of contact who should be a senior individual within
the organisation, and whom the authority will endeavour to contact first should
any compliance issues arise.

The Council will take account of the guidance issued by the Gambling
Commission and any subsequent amendments, in respect of making test
purchases at gambling premises and will also have regard to its own policies
and procedures regarding the use of underage test purchasers.

Integration with existing legislation and local and national strateqgies

The licensing authority will follow the Guidance issued by the Gambling
Commission when determining applications and will not take into account
irrelevant matters, i.e. those not related to gambling objectives. In the unlikely
event that the licensing authority perceives a conflict between a provision of a
Gambling Commission code of practice or the statutory guidance issued by the
Commission, and the authority’s policy statement, the Gambling Commission’s
codes and Guidance will take precedence.

The licensing authority will have regard to the Guidance in respect of the
relationship between planning permission, building regulations and the granting
of premises licences

The Statement of Licensing Principles will be reviewed in accordance with the
provisions of the Act and will serve as a basis for determining licence
applications.

Following consideration of the consultation responses, the Statement was
approved at a meeting of Council held on 19 December 2018 and comes into
effect on 22 January 2019. A copy is available at www.bridgend.gov.uk.

A copy is also available free of charge from the Licensing Section and in other
formats on request.

A list of persons whom the authority has consulted in preparing the statement.
The Council consulted with the following bodies before adopting the Statement:

The Chief Constable:South Wales Police
The Chief Fire Officer: South Wales Fire & Rescue Service

15

Page 253


http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

1.16

1.17

Council Safeguarding and Partnership leads

Town and Community Councils

Local Health Board

Community Safety Partnership members

H. M. Revenue & Customs

Association of British Bookmakers (ABB)

BACTA

British Assoc. of Leisure Parks, Piers & Attractions Ltd.

GAMCARE

The Gambling Commission

Sample of existing licensees

Licensee representatives who have previously expressed a wish to be notified
of consultations

Public consultation also took place via the authority’s website between 31
August 2018 and 9 November 2018

Casinos

This licensing authority has not passed a ‘no casino’ resolution under Section
166 of the Gambling Act 2005, but is aware that it has the power to do so.
Should this licensing authority decide in the future to pass such a resolution,
it will update this policy statement with details of that resolution. Any such
decision will be made by the full Council. Should the Council pass such a
resolution, this licensing authority will consider applications in line with the
guidance issued by the Gambling Commission.

Declaration

In producing the final Statement, the licensing authority has had regard to the
licensing objectives of the Gambling Act 2005, the guidance issued by the
Gambling Commission, and responses from those consulted on the Statement.
The authority has also had regard to its responsibilities under Section 17 of the
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and the Human Rights Act 1998 (Articles 1, 6, 8
and 10), and legislation to eliminate unlawful discrimination and inequality.

The Council recognizes its diverse responsibilities under equality legislation and
will monitor impact of these statutory duties through its various corporate
equality schemes and impact assessments. The Statement of Licensing
Principles is not intended to duplicate existing legislation and regulatory
regimes which already place obligations on employees and operators of
gambling establishments.

When discharging its functions, the licensing authority will have regard to the
different considerations between the objectives set out in the Licensing Act
2003 and the Gambling Act 2005. When deciding whether or not to grant a
licence, the licensing authority will not have regard to the expected demand or
need for gambling premises that are the subject of the application.

The Guidance to Local Authorities issued by the Gambling Commission may
be revised from time to time and references to criteria etc. set out in this

16

Page 254



2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

statement are to be construed as referring to the current edition of the
Guidance.

CONSIDERATION OF APPLICATIONS

Nothing in this Statement will:

Undermine the rights of any person to apply under the Act for a variety of
permissions and have the application considered on its individual merits, or

Override the right of any person to make representations on any application or
seek a review of a licence or permit where they are permitted to do so under the
Act, or

Preclude each case being decided on its merits taking into account the
measures proposed by an applicant to address the gambling licensing
objectives.

The licensing authority’s primary obligation under section 153(1) of the Act
is to permit the use of premises in so far as it thinks that to do so is:

a. in accordance with relevant codes of practice issued by the Commission
b. in accordance with guidance issued by the Commission

c. reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives (subject to (a) and (b)
above),

and

d. in accordance with the Licensing Authority Statement of Policy published
by the authority (subject to (a) to (c) above).

Primary Gambling Activity and Definition of Premises

2.3.11In considering applications and undertaking its regulatory role the licensing

authority will apply the principles and tests set out in the Guidance in
respect of the following matters:

The primary gambling activity of the premises

The definition of a “premises”

Multi-purpose sites and multiple licences for a building
Division of premises and access between premises

Full details are contained in the current Guidance and the licensing authority
will have regard to any future revisions of these definitions. The authority will

17

Page 255



therefore consider these and other relevant factors in making its decision,
depending on all the circumstances of the case.

2.3.2This authority will have regard to the Commission’s Guidance in respect of
the relationship between planning permission, building regulations and
granting of a premises licence.

2.3.3The licensing authority will be mindful that operators can apply for a
premises licence in respect of premises which have still to be constructed or
altered and will determine any such application on its merits. The authority will
adopt the process of assessment advocated by the Commission in its
Guidance. It will also consider imposing an effective date of commencement of
the licence or a condition stating when a licence will come into effect, as the
case may be, to ensure that premises are constructed in accordance with plans.
The authority will consider a physical inspection as an appropriate means of
ensuring compliance with any condition imposed.

2.4 Location of premises

2.4.1 This licensing authority will follow the Commission’s guidance that demand
issues cannot be considered with regard to the location of premises but that
considerations in terms of the licensing objectives can. This authority will pay
particular attention to the protection of children and vulnerable persons from
being harmed or exploited by gambling as well as issues of crime and disorder.

2.4.2 When determining applications or reviews the authority will determine each
application on its merits and if an applicant can show how risks to the licensing
objectives can be mitigated, the licensing authority will take this into account in
its decision making.

2.4.3 The licensing authority will give sympathetic consideration to the re-siting of
premises within the same locality subject to any representations which highlight
a likely negative impact on the licensing objectives.

2.4.4 The licensing authority recommends applicants to consider adopting the British
Amusement Catering Trade Association’s (BACTA) voluntary codes of practice
relating to social responsibility, good practice, training initiatives and age of
entry control policies.

2.45The licensing authority recommends that applicants consider BACTA and
GamCare codes of policy regarding site self-exclusion to support those persons
who have difficultly controlling their gambling.

2.5 Vessels and vehicles

2.5.1The Act permits premises licences to be granted for passenger vessels.
Separate application forms are prescribed for vessels under the  Premises
Licences and Provisional Statements Regulations. This authority adopts the
definition of vessels and vehicles set out in the Act and the criteria set out in the
Guidance when considering structures which are an extension of the land,

18
Page 256



including a pier or a bridge which are to be considered as premises under the
Act and all other matters relating to vessels and the waters over which it has
jurisdiction to act.

2.5.2 The Act allows pleasure boats to apply for premises licences and the Guidance
set out by the Gambling Commission in this and all other matters relating to
vessels.

2.6 Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being associated
with crime or disorder, or being used to support crime

2.6.1 The licensing authority will pay due regard to the proposed location of gambling
premises in terms of this licensing objective and to the distinctions between
serious crime, disorder and nuisance. The licensing authority will only grant a
licence application if it is satisfied that crime prevention has been adequately
addressed.

2.6.2Thus, where an area has known high levels of organised crime this authority will
consider carefully whether gambling premises are suitable to be located there
and whether conditions may be appropriate such as the provision of door
supervisors. The licensing authority will not address issues of nuisance
which can be addressed by other relevant legislation or general nuisance
issues e.g. parking or anti-social behaviour.

2.6.3 Applicants are encouraged to discuss the crime prevention procedures in their
premises with the South Wales Police before making a formal application.

2.6.4In considering licence applications, the licensing authority will particularly take
into account the following:

e The design and layout of the premises;

e The training given to staff in crime prevention measures appropriate to those
premises;

e Physical security features installed in the premises. This may include matters
such as the position of cash registers or the standard of CCTV that is installed;

e Where premises are subject to age-restrictions, the procedures in place to
conduct age verification checks;

e The likelihood of any violence, public order or policing problem if the licence is
granted.

This list is not exhaustive and applicants may propose other measures  which
will address this licensing objective. Applicants for a premises licence will first
need to obtain an operating licence issued by the Gambling Commission. As a
result the licensing authority will not be primarily concerned with the suitability
of an applicant, but where those concerns do arise, the licensing authority will
bring these to the attention of the Gambling Commission.

19
Page 257



2.7

Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way

2.7.1 The Gambling Commission does not generally not expect licensing authorities

2.8

to become concerned with ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and
open way; this will be addressed via operating and personal licences save
with regard to tracks, which is explained in more detail below. The authority
will, as required, advise the Commission if there is evidence that this
objective is not being met.

Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or
exploited by gambling

2.8.1 This authority will have regard to the intention of the Gambling Act that, with

limited exceptions, children and young persons should not be permitted to
gamble and should be prevented from entering those gambling premises
which are adult-only environments. The objective refers to children from being
harmed or exploited by gambling. This means preventing them from taking part
in gambling and for there to be restrictions on advertising so that gambling
products are not aimed at children or advertised in such a way that makes them
particularly attractive to children, (excepting Category D gaming machines).

The LCCP Codes prescribe how operators must prevent children from using
age restricted gaming or gambling activities particularly where gaming
machines are licensed. The authority will take all conditions and codes into
account when considering applications or undertaking compliance and
enforcement activities

2.8.2Having due regard to the measures set out in the application, and to any

relevant representations, the licensing authority may therefore consider whether
specific measures are required at particular premises, with regard to this
licensing objective. Appropriate measures may include supervision of
entrances/machines, segregation of areas, training, and siting of ATM'’s (cash
machines).

2.8.4As regards the term “vulnerable persons” it is noted that the Gambling

2.9

Commission does not seeking to offer a definition but sets out for regulatory
purposes a number of vulnerable groups to may not be able to make informed
or balanced decisions about gambling. This licensing authority will consider
whether any special considerations apply to this licensing objective on a case
by case basis balanced against the objective to aim to permit the use of
premises for gambling.

Considerations relating conditions to be attached to Premises Licences

2.9.1 The licensing authority acknowledges that mandatory conditions are set by the

Secretary of State with the intention that no further regulation in relation to
that matter is required. Therefore it is considered extremely unlikely that the
authority will need to impose individual conditions imposing a more restrictive
regime in relation to matters that have already been dealt with by mandatory
conditions. The licensing authority will only consider imposing conditions where

20

Page 258



there is evidence of regulatory concerns of an exceptional nature and any
additional licence conditions will be evidence based and relate to the licensing
objectives.

2.9.2 In addition to any default conditions that may be prescribed by regulation, any

conditions attached to licences by the licensing authority will be
proportionate and will be:

relevant to the need to make the proposed building suitable as a gambling
facility;

directly related to the premises and the type of licence applied for;
fairly and reasonably related to the scale and type of premises; and,

reasonable in all other respects.

2.9.3This licensing authority will also expect the licence applicant to offer

his/her own suggestions as to the way in which the licensing objectives can be
met effectively.

2.9.4This licensing authority take particular care in assessing applications for

2.10

multiple premises licences for a building in accordance with the Gambling
Commission's Guidance.

Door Supervisors

2.10.1Where the authority exercises its discretion to impose a premises licence

3.0

3.1

condition to require entrances to the premises to be controlled by a door
supervisor, that person is required to be licensed under the Private Security
Industries Act 2001 (PSIA). Each case will be judged on its merits within the
overarching Guidance relating to imposing conditions above any Mandatory
Conditions.

PRINCIPLES GOVERNING THE CONSIDERATION OF SPECIFIC CLASSES
OF PREMISES OR PERMIT

In addition to the general principles to be applied when considering applications,
the following issues may be considered in appropriate circumstances in respect
of the following specific classes of permit or premises.

The Licence Conditions and Code of Practice (LCCP) issued by the Gambling
Commission places further onus on premises to complete a risk assessment
based on the Social Responsibility code. The authority will have regard to this
code when considering applications.  Operators may access this information
via the Gambling Commission website at www.gambling commission.gov.uk

Risk Assessments

21

Page 259


http://www.gambling/

The Gambling Commission and social responsibility code within the LCCP
requires gambling operators to assess the local risks to the licensing objectives
posed by the provision of gambling facilities at each of their premises, and to
have policies, procedures and control measures to mitigate those risks. These
local risk assessments are specific to the potential harm that gambling may
have on one or more of the licensing objectives. They should be specific to the
premises, the local area and the community and the licensing authority
therefore expects the applicant to have a good understanding of the area in
which they either operate, or intend to operate.

It is a mandatory requirement that risk assessments are carried out:

e When there are significant changes in local circumstances

e When there are significant changes at a licensee’s premises that may
affect their mitigation of local risks

e When applying for the grant or variation of a premises licence

This is not an exhaustive or prescriptive list, but matters that risk assessment
may include are:

e The area in which the premises is located/to be located

e Staff training in intervention when a customer shows signs of excessive
gambling

e Location and coverage of CCTV cameras and how the system is
operated and monitored

e The layout of the premises to allow staff to have an unobstructed view of
persons using the premises

o Staff numbers including the supervisory and monitoring arrangements
when staff are absent from the licensed area by reason of dealing with
customers

e Arrangements for monitoring and dealing with underage persons and
vulnerable persons, which may include dedicated trained personnel,
leaflets, posters etc.

¢ Information held by the licensee regarding self-exclusions and incidences
of underage gambling

e Arrangements for localized exchange of information regarding self-
exclusions and gaming trends

e Setting, including proximity to schools, youth centres, leisure centres,
other gambling outlets, refreshment and entertainment type facilities,
parks and playgrounds

e Known problems in the area involving young persons such as problems
arising from anti-social behavior

e The risk assessment should include an assessment of the impact of any
promotional material likely to encourage the use of the premises by
children who are not allowed to access the premises.

e The licensing authority considers it best practice for a copy of the local
risk assessment to be retained on the premises.

Appropriate Licence Environment

22
Page 260



3.2

3.3

Where gambling facilities are provided at premises as a supplementary activity
to the main purpose of the premises e.g. at motorway service areas and
shopping malls, the authority will expect the gambling area to be clearly defined
to ensure that customers are fully aware that they are making a choice to enter
into the gambling premises, and that the premises is adequately supervised at
all times.

Adult Gaming Centres

This licensing authority will specifically have regard to the need to protect
children and vulnerable persons from harm or being exploited by gambling
and will expect the applicant to satisfy the authority that there will be sufficient
measures to ensure that under 18 year olds do not have access to the
premises. This licensing authority will expect applicants to offer their own
measures to meet the licensing objectives, however appropriate measures may
cover issues such as:

Proof of age schemes

CCTV

Supervision of entrances / machine areas

Physical separation of areas

The display of sources of help for persons with a gambling problem in
prominent areas, and in more discreet areas to afford anonymity.

Self-barring and self-exclusion schemes

Gaming odds to be clearly displayed on machines

ATM or other cash machines to be separate from gaming machines

This list is not mandatory, nor exhaustive, and is merely indicative of
example measures.

(Licensed) Family Entertainment Centres

This licensing authority will specifically have regard to the need to protect
children and vulnerable persons from harm or being exploited by gambling
and will expect the applicant to satisfy the authority, for example, that there will
be sufficient measures to ensure that under 18 year olds do not have access
to the adult only gaming machine areas.

This licensing authority will expect applicants to offer their own measures to
comply with the licensing objectives and mandatory conditions; however
appropriate measures may cover issues such as:

CCTV

Supervision of entrances / machine areas
Physical separation of areas

Location of entry

Notices / signage

Specific opening hours

23

Page 261



e Self-barring and self-exclusion schemes

e Provision of information leaflets / helpline numbers for organisations such as
GamCare

e Measures / training for staff on how to deal with suspected truant school
children on the premises.

e Gaming odds to be clearly displayed on machines

e ATM or other cash machines to be separate from gaming machines

This list is not mandatory, nor exhaustive, and is merely indicative of example
measures.

3.4 Bingo premises

Bingo is not given a statutory definition in the Act and the licensing authority will
have regard to the commonly understood terms of cash bingo and prize bingo
laid down in the Guidance.

This licensing authority will have regard to the Gambling Commission’s
Guidance and Mandatory Conditions relating to the admission of children to
premises licensed for bingo.

3.5 Betting premises

Children and young persons will not be able to enter premises with a
betting premises licence although special rules will apply to tracks. The
licensing authority intends to follow the Commission’s Guidance in respect of
off course betting and premises licences.

3.6 Tracks

3.6.1This licensing authority adopts the Guidance set out by the Gambling
Commission in terms of definitions of tracks and the grant of premises
licences. It will especially consider the impact upon the third licensing objective
(i.e. the protection of children and vulnerable persons from being harmed or
exploited by gambling).

3.6.2This authority will therefore expect the premises licence applicant to
demonstrate suitable measures to ensure that children do not have access to
adult only gaming facilities.

3.6.3 This licensing authority will expect applicants to offer their own measures to
meet the licensing objectives; however appropriate measures may cover issues
such as:

Proof of age schemes

CCTV

Supervision of entrances / machine areas
Physical separation of areas

Location of entry

Notices / signage

24
Page 262



e Specific opening hours

e Self-barring and self-exclusion schemes

e Provision of information leaflets / helpline numbers for organisations such as
GamcCare

e Gaming odds to be clearly displayed on machines

e ATM or other cash machines to be separate from gaming machines

This list is not mandatory, nor exhaustive, and is merely indicative of example
measures.

3.6.4 Plans should make clear what is being sought for authorization under the track
betting premises licence and what, if any, other areas are to be subject to a
separate application for a different type of premises licence. Plans need not
be to a particular scale but should be sufficiently detailed to comply with
regulations and enable the licensing authority to make an informed judgement
about whether the premises are fit for gambling. The authority will have
regard to the specific Guidance issued in respect tracks including defining the
outer perimeter of a track and the location of betting areas

3.7 Travelling Fairs

3.7.1 The licensing authority adopts the Commission’s Guidance on this matter.

3.8 Conditions and avoiding duplication with other legislation

3.8.1 A range of general legislation governing health and safety, disability and race
discrimination, employment law and fire safety is already imposed on the
owners of gambling premises. The licensing authority will strive not to
duplicate existing regulatory regimes.

3.9 Consideration of Provisional Statements

3.9.1Section 204 of the Act provides for a person to make an application to the
licensing authority for a provisional statement in respect of premises that he
or she:

e expects to be constructed
e expects to be altered
e expects to acquire a right to occupy.

The Guidance states that a licence to use premises for gambling should only be
issued in relation to a premises that the licensing authority can be satisfied are
going to be ready to be used for gambling in the reasonably near future. If the
construction of the premises is not yet complete or if they need alteration, or if
the applicant does not yet have a right to occupy them, then an application for a
provisional statement should be submitted.

The authority will follow the Gambling Commission guidance in respect of the
two stage process for determining an application.

25
Page 263



3.9.2Applicants for premises licences must fulfil certain criteria. They must hold or

have applied for an operating licence from the Commission (except in the case
of a track), and they must have the right to occupy the premises in respect
of which their premises licence application is made. However, these restrictions
do not apply in relation to an application for a provisional statement. The
licensing authority will not speculate on or otherwise take into account the
likelihood of an operating licence being granted in its consideration of the
application for a provisional statement.

3.9.3The authority may refuse the premises licence (or grant it on terms different to

those attached to the provisional statement) only by reference to matters:

which could not have been raised by way of representations at the provisional
licence stage,

which, in the authority’s opinion, reflect a change in the operator's
circumstances,

where the premises has not been constructed in accordance with the plan and
information submitted with the provisional statement application.

3.9.4 This must be a substantial change to the plan and licensing authorities will

discuss any concerns they have with the applicant before making a decision.

3.9.5The licensing authority will not have regard to whether or not a proposal by the

applicant is likely to be permitted in accordance with planning or building law.

3.9.6In terms of representations about premises licence applications, following the

4.0

41

4.2

grant of a provisional statement, no further representations from relevant
authorities or interested parties will be taken into account unless they concern
matters which could not have been addressed at the provisional statement
stage, or they reflect a change in the applicant’s circumstances

Reviews

A premises licence may be reviewed by the licensing authority of its own volition
or following the receipt of an application for a review. Reviews will be normally
be delegated to a Licensing Sub-Committee for determination.

Consideration of applications for review will be made on the basis of
whether the request for the review is relevant to the matters listed below
(subject to proviso that each case will be dealt with on merit). Due regard will
be given as to whether the request is frivolous, vexatious or repetitious.
Representations which may trigger the review process will involve serious crime
and may therefore include:

Use of licensed premises for the sale and distribution of drugs and the
laundering of the proceeds of drugs crimes;

Use of licensed premises for the sale and distribution of illegal firearms;

Use of licensed premises for prostitution or the sale of unlawful pornography;

26

Page 264



e Use of licensed premises as a base for organised criminal activity;

e Use of licensed premises for the organisation of racist, homophobic or sexual
abuse or attacks;

e Use of licensed premises for the sale of smuggled tobacco or goods;

e The use of licensed premises for the sale of stolen goods;

e Children and/or vulnerable persons are being put at risk.
4.3 In addition, due consideration will be given to the following;

e the grounds are irrelevant;

e the grounds will not cause the Licensing Authority to revoke or suspend a
licence or to remove, amend or attach conditions on the Premises Licence;

e the grounds are substantially the same as the grounds cited in a previous
application relating to the same premises; or

e the grounds are substantially the same as representations made at the time
the application for a Premises Licence was considered.

5.0 PERMITS / TEMPORARY & OCCASIONAL USE NOTICES

5.1 Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre gaming machine permits

5.1.1 The licensing authority does not intend to publish a separate statement of
principles for considering applicant suitability for applications for FEC permits
under paragraph 7 of Schedule 10 to the Act and, for ease of reference,
includes this as part of this policy document.

5.1.2 Application for a permit can only be made by a person who occupies or plans to
occupy the premises to be used as an unlicensed FEC and, if the applicant is
an individual, he or she must be aged 18 or over. Applications for a permit
cannot be made if a premises licence is in effect for the same premises.

5.1.3Where a premises does not hold a premises licence but wishes to provide
gaming machines, it may apply to the licensing authority for this permit. It
should be noted that the applicant must show that the premises will be wholly or
mainly used for making gaming machines available for use (Section 238 of the
Gambling Act 2005).

5.1.4 The licensing authority adopts the Gambling Commission’s Guidance for local
authorities in respect of these permits, giving particular weight to child
protection issues.

27
Page 265



5.1.5 An application for a permit is likely to be granted only if the licensing authority is
satisfied that the premises will be used as an unlicensed FEC and the applicant
can demonstrate:

e a full understanding of the maximum stakes and prizes of the gambling that is
permissible in unlicensed FECs;

e that he or she has no relevant convictions (those that are set out in Schedule 7
of the Act; and

e that staff are trained to have a full understanding of the maximum stakes and
prizes;

5.1.6 The licensing authority will have regard to membership of any trade
association which has included training and guidance to operators.

5.1.7 This licensing authority will expect the applicant to show that there are policies
and procedures in place to protect children from harm. Harm in this
context is not limited to harm from gambling but includes wider child
protection considerations.

e The efficiency of such policies and procedures will each be considered on their
merits, however, they may include:

o staff training as regards suspected truant school children on the premises;
e measures and or training covering how staff would deal with unsupervised
very young children being on the premises, or children causing perceived

problems on / around the premises.

e |t should be noted that a licensing authority cannot attach conditions to this
type of permit.

5.2 (Alcohol) Licensed premises gaming machine permits

The licensing authority will adopt the Gambling Commission statutory guidance
in relation to notifications and permits in alcohol licensed premises.

5.2.1 There is provision in the Act for premises licensed to sell alcohol for

consumption on the premises, to an automatic entitlement to have 2 gaming
machines, of categories C and/or D. The premises merely needs to notify the

licensing authority of their intention to make gaming machines available for use.
The licensing authority will consider making an Order under Section 284 of the
Act if it is satisfied that:

e provision of the machines is not reasonably consistent with the pursuit of the
licensing objectives;

e gaming has taken place on the premises that breaches a condition of section
282 of the Gambling Act.

28
Page 266



e the premises are mainly used for gaming; or
e an offence under the Gambling Act has been committed on the premises.

5.2.2If a premises wishes to have more than two machines, then it needs to apply for
a permit and the licensing authority will consider that application based upon the
licensing objectives, any guidance issued by the Gambling Commission, and
such matters as they think relevant. This licensing authority considers that “such
matters” will be decided on a case by case basis but generally there will be
regard to:

e the need to protect children and vulnerable persons from harm or being
exploited by gambling

e whether the applicant can satisfy the authority that there will be sufficient
measures to ensure that under 18 year olds do not have access to the adult
only gaming machines.

Measures which will satisfy the authority that there will be no access may include:

e the adult machines being in sight of the bar, or in the sight of staff who will
monitor that the machines are not being used by those under 18

e Appropriate notices and signage

5.2.3 As regards the protection of vulnerable persons applicants may wish to consider
the provision of information leaflets / helpline numbers for organisations such
as GamCare.

5.2.4 1t is recognised that some alcohol licensed premises may apply for a premises
licence for their non-alcohol licensed areas. Any such application would
most likely need to be applied for, and dealt with as an Adult Gaming Centre
premises licence.

5.2.51t should be noted that the licensing authority may decide to grant the
application with a smaller number of machines and/or a different category of
machines than that applied for.

5.2.6 It should also be noted that the holder of a permit must comply with any Code of

Practice issued by the Gambling Commission about the location and operation
of the machine.

5.3 Prize Gaming Permits

5.3.1 The licensing authority does not intend to publish a separate statement of
principles for considering applicant suitability for applications for prize gaming
permits under paragraph 8 of Schedule 14 to the Act and, for ease of reference,
includes this as part of this policy document.

29
Page 267



5.3.2 This licensing authority will expect that, when making an application for a prize
gaming permit, the applicant should set out the types of gaming that he or she
is intending to offer and be able to demonstrate:

e that they understand the limits of stakes and prizes that are set out in
Regulations and

¢ that the gaming offered is within the law.

e Clear policies are available which outline the steps to be taken to protect
children from harm

5.3.3In making its decision on an application for this permit the licensing authority
may have regard to the licensing objectives, the Gambling Commission
guidance and relevant representations from the South Wales Police. This will
include representations about the suitability of an applicant in terms of relevant
convictions, the location of the premises in relation to disorder and child
protection issues.

5.3.4 1t should be noted that there are conditions in the Gambling Act 2005 with
which the permit holder must comply, but that the licensing authority cannot
attach conditions. The conditions in the Act are:

e the limits on participation fees, as set out in regulations, must be complied
with;

e all chances to participate in the gaming must be allocated on the premises on
which the gaming is taking place and on one day; the game must be played
and completed on the day the chances are allocated; and the result of the
game must be made public in the premises on the day that it is played,;

¢ the prize for which the game is played must not exceed the amount set out in
regulations (if a money prize), or the prescribed value (if non-monetary prize);
and

e participation in the gaming must not entitle the player to take part in any other
gambling.

5.4 Club Gaming and Club Machines Permits

5.4.1The licensing authority will have regard to and follow the Commission’s
Guidance in respect of the grant of Club Gaming and Club Machines Permits

5.4.2 There is also a ‘fast-track’ procedure available under the Act for premises which
hold a Club Premises Certificate under the Licensing Act 2003 (Schedule 12
paragraph 10). The licensing authority will follow the Gambling Commission’s
Guidance that the grounds on which an application under the process may be
refused are:

30
Page 268



e that the club is established primarily for gaming, other than gaming prescribed
under schedule 12;

e that in addition to the prescribed gaming, the applicant provides facilities for
other gaming; or

e that a club gaming permit or club machine permit issued to the applicant in the
last ten years has been cancelled.

5.5 Temporary Use Notices

5.5.1Part 9 of the Act sets out the position in relation to temporary use notices.
These allow the use of premises for gambling where there is no premises
licence but where a gambling operator wishes to use the premises temporarily
for providing facilities for gambling.

5.5.2 The licensing authority will have regard to the Guidance regarding the examples
of premises that might be suitable for a temporary use notice which include
hotels, conference centres and sporting venues.

5.5.3 The meaning of ‘premises’ in Part 8 of the Act will be a question of fact in the
particular circumstances of each notice that is given. The licensing authority
will examine, amongst other things, the ownership/occupation and control of
the premises and will follow the criteria set out in the Guidance when
assessing applications where it appears that the effect of notices would be to
permit regular gambling in a place that could be described as one set of
premises.

5.5.4 When considering whether to give notice of objection, the licensing authority
will have regard to the licensing objectives and if they consider that the
gambling should not take place, or only with modifications, they will give a
notice of objection to the person who gave the temporary use notice.

5.5.5 The principles that the authority will apply in issuing a counter-notice will be the
same as those in determining premises licence applications. In particular, the
licensing authority is aware of the Guidance that it should aim to permit the
provision of facilities for gambling under a temporary use notice subject to its
view as to whether to do so accords with a Commission code, the Guidance, or
its Statement of Policy and is reasonably consistent with the licensing
objectives.

5.5.6 The licensing authority will have particular regard to whether the effect of
Temporary Use Notices is to permit regular gambling in a place that could be
described as one set of premises. Factors such as ownership, occupation and
control of the premises will be considered when deciding whether to object to a
Temporary Use Notice.

5.6 Occasional Use Notices

31
Page 269



5.6.1 Section 39 of the Act provides that where there is betting on a track on eight
days or less in a calendar year, betting may be permitted by an occasional use
notice without the need for a full premises licence. The licensing authority is
mindful that the meaning of ‘track’ in the Act covers not just horse racecourses
or dog tracks, but also any other premises on any part of which a race or other
sporting event takes place, or is intended to take place (section 353(1)). This
means that land which has a number of uses, one of which fulfils the
definition of track, can qualify for the occasional use notice provisions (for
example agricultural land upon which a point-to-point meeting takes place).
Land used temporarily as a track can qualify, provided races or sporting events
take place or will take place there. The track need not be a permanent fixture.

5.6.2 The licensing authority has very little discretion as regards these notices aside
from ensuring that the statutory limit of 8 days in a calendar year is not
exceeded. This licensing authority will though consider the definition of a
‘track’ and whether the applicant is permitted to avail him/herself of the notice.

5.7 Small Society Lotteries

5.7.1 Applicants for registration are reminded that it is inherent in the definitions that a
society must have been established for one of the permitted purposes, and that
the proceeds of any lottery must be devoted to those purposes. It is not
permissible to establish a society whose sole purpose is to facilitate lotteries —
it must have some other purpose. The authority will apply the following tests:

e society status — the society in question must be ‘non-commercial’

e lottery size — the total value of tickets to be put on sale per single lottery must
be £20,000 or less, or the aggregate value of tickets to be put on sale for all
their lotteries in a calendar year must not exceed £250,000. If the operator
plans to exceed either of these values then they may need to be licensed with
the Commission to operate large lotteries instead.

5.7.2 The authority recommends applicants and prospective applicants obtain the
Commission’s advisory documents relating to lotteries which are available on
the Commission’s website.

5.7.3 Applications for small society lottery registrations must be in the form
prescribed by the Secretary of State and be accompanied by both the required
registration fee and all necessary documents required by the licensing
authority to assess the application accordingly.

5.7.4 The authority may ask new applicants for a copy of their terms and conditions
or their constitution to establish that they are a non-commercial society. It may
also require applicants to provide a declaration, stating that they represent a
bona-fide non-commercial society.

5.7.5The authority will delegate the registration of small societies to licensing
officers, subject to its specific process of delegations.

32
Page 270



5.7.6 The authority proposes to set out the following grounds for licensing

for refusing a small society lottery registration application:
An operating licence held by the applicant for registration has been revoked or

an application for an operating licence made by the applicant for registration
has been refused, within the past five years, or

The society in question cannot be deemed non-commercial. Each case will be
determined on its merits but an applicant may be required applicants to
provide a statement with their application form declaring that they represented
a bona-fide non-commercial society, and identifying how the purpose of the
society could be established. In some circumstances further supporting
information will be sought.

A person who will or may be connected with the promotion of the lottery has
been convicted of a relevant offence. The licensing authority may require an
applicant to provide an additional statement declaring that they have no
relevant convictions that would prevent them from running lotteries.

Information provided in or with the application for registration is found to be
false or misleading.

5.7.7 The licensing authority will only refuse an application for registration after the

society has had the opportunity to make representations. These will normally be
considered at a formal hearing. The licensing authority will inform the society
of the reasons why it is minded to refuse registration and provide it with at least
an outline of the evidence on which it has reached that preliminary conclusion in
order to enable representations to be made. Representations and objections
that may result after such a decision will be handled in the same way that the
authority would handle representations relating to other licensing matters. A
copy of these procedures will be provided with the initial correspondence.

5.7.8 The licensing authority may determine to revoke the registration of a

society if it thinks that they would have had to, or would be entitled to, refuse
an application for registration if it were being made at that time.

5.7.9 Revocations will not take place unless the society has been given an

6.0

6.1

opportunity to make representations at a hearing or via correspondence. In
preparation for this, the authority will inform the society of the reasons why it is
minded to revoke the registration and provide them with the terms of the
evidence on which it has reached that preliminary conclusion.

DECISION MAKING AND DELEGATION OF FUNCTIONS

Appreciating the need to provide a speedy, efficient and cost-effective
service to all parties involved in the licensing process, the Licensing
Committee may delegate certain decisions and functions and has established
Sub-Committees to deal with them. Functions which are purely

33

Page 271



6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

administrative in nature and non-contentious applications will be delegated to
Council Officers.

A Licensing Sub-Committee of three Councillors will sit to hear applications
where representations have been received from interested parties and
responsible authorities. Ward Councillors will not sit on a panel involving an
application within their ward.

Where a Councillor who is a member of the Licensing Committee is
making or has made representations regarding a licence on behalf of an
interested party, in the interests of good governance they will disqualify
themselves from any involvement in the decision-making process.

The Licensing Committee will also sit to determine general licensing
matters that have been delegated to it by the full Council that are not
associated with the Gambling Act 2005.

The Licensing Sub-Committee will also refer to the Licensing Committee any
matter it is unable to deal with because of the number of its members who are
unable to take part in the consideration or discussion of any matter or vote on
any question with respect to it.

The Licensing Committee will refer to the full Council any matter it is unable
to deal with because of the number of its members who are unable to take part
in the consideration or discussion of any matter or vote on any question with
respect to it.

Every determination of a licensing decision by the Licensing Committee or Sub-
Committee shall be accompanied with clear, cogent reasons for the decision.
The decision and the reasons for that decision will be sent to the applicant and
those who have made relevant representations as soon as practicable.

Nothing in this Statement will override the right of an applicant, responsible
authority or interested party to appeal against the decision of a Licensing Sub-
Committee.

Decisions as to whether representations are irrelevant, frivolous or vexatious
will be made by Council officers, who will make the decisions on whether
representations or applications for licence reviews should be referred to the
Licensing Sub-Committee. Where representations are rejected, the person
making that representation will be given written reasons as to why that is the
case.

This form of delegation is without prejudice to Officers referring an application
to a Sub-Committee, or a Sub-Committee to Committee, or Committee to
Council, if considered appropriate in the circumstances of any particular case.

Matter Council Sub-Committee OFFICERS

34

Page 272




Three year licensing policy

Policy not to permit

casinos

Fee Setting - when X

appropriate

Application for premises Where representations Where no

licences have been received and representations
not withdrawn received/

representations have
been withdrawn

Application for a variation
to a licence

Where representations
have been received and
not withdrawn

Where no
representations
received/
representations have
been withdrawn

Application for a transfer of
a licence

Where representations
have been received from
the Commission

Where no
representations
received from the
Commission

Application for a
provisional statement

Where representations
have been received and
not withdrawn

Where no
representations
received/
representations have
been withdrawn

Review of a premises
licence

X

Application for club
gaming /club machine
permits

Where representations
have been received and
not withdrawn

Where no
representations
received/
representations have
been withdrawn

Cancellation of club
gaming/ club machine
permits

Applications for other
permits

Cancellation of licensed
premises gaming machine
permits

Consideration of
temporary use notice

Decision to give a counter
notice to a temporary use
notice

Determination as to
whether a person is an
Interested Party

Determination as to
whether representations
are relevant

Page 273

35




Determination as whether
a representation if X
frivolous, vexatious or
repetitive

The above delegations relate to the overarching principles of delegation for policy
issues and applications for premises licences. Other delegations may be added from
time to time and will be available at www.bridgend.gov.uk in accordance with the
Council’s constitution and Scheme of Delegation to officers and the Commission’s
Guidance.

7.0

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

RIGHTS OF APPEAL AND JUDICIAL REVIEW

The avenues of appeal against decisions by a licensing authority are set out
in sections 206 to 209 of the Gambling Act 2005.

The licensing authority will give clear and comprehensive reasons for a
rejection of an application. The reasons will address the extent to which the
decision has been made with regard to the Licensing Authority’s Statement
of Policy and the Commission’s Guidance.

An appeal has to be commenced by the giving of a notice of appeal by the
appellant to the Cardiff and the Vale Magistrates Court within a period of 21
days, beginning with the day on which the appellant is notified by the
licensing authority of the decision being appealed.

Any party to a decision may apply for judicial review if they believe that the
decision taken by the licensing authority is:

illegal — that is beyond the powers available to the licensing authority

subject to procedural impropriety or unfairness — which is a failure in the
process of reaching the decision, such as not observing the ‘rules of natural
justice’

irrational — where a decision is so unreasonable that no sensible person could
have reached it (in effect ‘perverse’ or ‘Wednesbury’ unreasonable).

Sources used to prepare the Statement of Principles included:

The Gambling Commission Guidance available at
www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk

Census data from www.bridgend.gov.uk

36

Page 274



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/
http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/
http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

APPENDIX B

ORGANISATION

RESPONSE

ACTION OR AMENDMENT TO
THE POLICY

GAMCARE

While we do not have the
resources available to allow us
to personally respond to each
Local Authority which contacts
us regarding their refreshed
Statement of Principles, we
have compiled a list of the
issues or factors which we think
it would be helpful to consider
below, more information is
available via the Gambling
Commission.

A helpful first step is to develop
a risk map of your local area so
that you are aware of both
potential and actual risks
around gambling venues. A
useful explanation of area-
based risk-mapping has been
developed with Westminster
and Manchester City Councils,
which gives some guidance on
those who may be most
vulnerable or at-risk of
gambling-related harm. For
more information please see
www.geofutures.com/research-

2/gambling-related-harm-how-
local-space-shapes-our-
understanding-of-risk/

The risk based mapping
methodology will be assessed
during the next three year
policy review. As indicated
within the draft policy, the
Chief Medical Officer for Wales
has also called for further
research into the impact of
gambling on health.

Consider that proposals for new
gambling premises which are
near hostels or other
accommodation or centres
catering for vulnerable people,
including those with learning
difficulties, and those with
gambling / alcohol / drug abuse
problems, as likely to adversely
affect the licensing objectives
set out by the Gambling
Commission. This is also
relevant regarding the
proximity to schools, colleges
and universities.

The location of premises is
considered within paragraphs
2.4 and 2.6 of the policy
document and follows the
statutory guidance on this
point.

The issues for operators to
consider within their risk
assessments are considered in
paragraph 3.1 of the policy
document.

This links the risk assessment to
the specific premises, the local
area and the community. Each
case must be determined on its
merits and not be pre-
determined.

Page 275



http://www.geofutures.com/research-2/gambling-related-harm-how-local-space-shapes-our-understanding-of-risk/
http://www.geofutures.com/research-2/gambling-related-harm-how-local-space-shapes-our-understanding-of-risk/
http://www.geofutures.com/research-2/gambling-related-harm-how-local-space-shapes-our-understanding-of-risk/
http://www.geofutures.com/research-2/gambling-related-harm-how-local-space-shapes-our-understanding-of-risk/

A detailed local risk assessment
at each gambling venue —
pertinent to the environment
immediately surrounding the
premises as well as the wider
local area —is a good way to
gauge whether the operator
and staff teams are fully aware
of the challenges present in the
local area and can help
reassure the Local Licensing
Authority that appropriate
mitigations are in place.

Local risk assessments are
covered in paragraph 3.1 of the
policy document and are
specific to the premises, the
local area and the community .

It is a mandatory requirement
that risk assessments are
carried out and include the
proximity of the premises to
schools, youth centres,
entertainment venues and
parks and playgounds.

Does the operator have a
specific training programme for
staff to ensure that they are
able to identify children and
other vulnerable people, and
take appropriate action to
ensure they are not able to
access the premises or are
supported appropriately?

The authority has specified that
staff training is a matter for
consideration as part of the
local risk assessment at
paragraph 3.1 of the policy.

Does the operator ensure that
there is an adequate number of
staff and managers are on the
premises at key points
throughout the day? This may
be particularly relevant for
premises situated nearby
schools / colleges / universities,
and/or pubs, bars and clubs.

The authority has already
specified that staff numbers is a
matter for consideration within
the local risk assessment.

Consider whether the layout,
lighting and fitting out of the
premises have been designed
so as not to attract children and
other vulnerable persons who
might be harmed or exploited
by gambling.

The authority has already
specified that layout and
provision of CCTV are matters
for consideration within the
local risk assessment.

Page 276




Consider whether any
promotional material
associated with the premises
could encourage the use of the
premises by children or young
people if they are not legally
allowed to do so.

Proposed amendment 1

Add the following to the risk
assessment guidelines at
paragraph 3.1

The risk assessment should
include an assessment of the
impact of any promotional
material likely to encourage
the use of the premises by
children who are not allowed
to access the premises.

Reason: to protect children and
vulnerable persons from harm
or being exploited by gambling

We would suggest that the
Local Licensing Authority
primarily consider applications
from GamCare Certified
operators. GamCare
Certification is a voluntary
process comprising an
independent audit assessment
of an operator’s player
protection measures and social
responsibility standards, policy
and practice. Standards are
measured in accordance with
the GamCare Player Protection
Code of Practice.

The licensing authority must
consider each application on its
merits and cannot prescribe
membership of any particular
organisation.

GAMBLING COMMISSION

Local Risk Assessments

Consider making it explicit that
the risk assessment should be
kept on the premises

Proposed amendment 2

Paragraph 3.1 to have an added
requirement that a copy of the
risk assessment is retained on
the premises.

Reason: to comply with the
licensing objectives by enabling
officers to inspect the
document during compliance
visits and to ensure local staff

Page 277




are aware of the document.

(Alcohol) Licensing premises
gaming machine permits and
notifications

Make more explicit reference
to the statutory guidance in
relation to this type of permit
and notification

Proposed amendment:3

At paragraphs 5.2.1 and 5.2.2
add the following header:

The licensing authority will
adopt the Gambling
Commission statutory
guidance in relation to
notifications and permits in
alcohol licensed premises.

Reason: to provide applicants
and the existing trade with
clear guidelines on the
authorities approach to
licensing.

ELECTED MEMBER

| feel the Council should lobby
Welsh Government to limit the
number of TV adverts for
gambling in

view of addiction and debt.

Response:

This is not a devolved function,
but the impact of gambling on
public health is being
considered by the Chief
Medical Officer for Wales.
Advertising forms part of the
specific recommendations
made by the CMO as follows:

“Welsh Government should
continue to urge

UK Government for stronger
action on placing
restrictions on gambling
advertising (especially
online); improving consumer
protection, and
minimisation of gambling-
related harm.”

This comment will be fed back
to the Chief Medical Officer for
Wales.

For information, the Gambling

Page 278




Commission requires the
advertising of gambling
products and services to be
undertaken in a socially
responsible manner and
operators must comply with
the UK Advertising Codes
issued by the Committees of
Advertising Practice (CAP) and
administered by the Advertising
Standards Authority (ASA).

Page 279




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 16

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 281



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Approval of Minutes
	4 Outcome of the Consultation 'Shaping Bridgend's Future'
	Shaping Bridgend's Future Consultation Report Final 04122018.docx

	5 Capital Programme 2018-19 to 2027-28
	Appendix 1 Capital Programme December Report

	6 Kenfig National Nature Reserve Management
	7 Traffic Regulation Order / Traffic Calming and Pedestrian Crossing Process
	8 School Modernisation Programme - Band B
	9 Welsh - Medium Capital Grant
	10 Appointment of Local Authority Governors
	11 Advocacy - Children's Services
	12 Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act Section 65 Power To Fix Fares For Hackney Carriages Objections To The Proposal To Amend The Hackney Carriage Fares Tariff
	Appendix A - Report to Cabinet - 23 October 2018 (Power to Fix Fares for Hackney Carriages)
	Appendix B - Consultation Responses
	Cabinet Report 23 Oct 2018 - Appendix A - Current Tariff
	Cabinet Report 23 Oct 2018 - Appendix B - Current and Previous Licensing Fees
	Cabinet Report 23 Oct 2018 - Appendix C - Proposals and Questionnaire Consultation
	Cabinet Report 23 Oct 2018 - Appendix D - Bridgend Consultation Responses Redacted
	Cabinet Report 23 Oct 2018 - Appendix E - Questionnaire Responses Redacted
	Cabinet Report 23 Oct 2018 - Appendix F - Mr Borland and Parrot Proposal
	Cabinet Report 23 Oct 2018 - Appendix G - Mr Burke Proposal
	Cabinet Report 23 Oct 2018 - Appendix H - Mr Renwick Proposal
	Cabinet Report 23 Oct 2018 - Appendix I - Mr Nelson Proposal

	13 Gambling Act 2005 Statement of Principles
	181218 Gambling Act Appendix A Draft Policy Update English 2019-2022
	181218 Gambling Act Appendix B

	16 Approval of Exempt Minutes



